
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2024 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. City Council Code of Ethics Discussion (Mayor)

4. NEW BUSINESS  (*Item has corresponding Consent Agenda Item)
b. Business Development Focused Vision Forum Discussion (NC Dept. of Commerce) *Item T
c. Goldsboro Urban Area 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update (Kimley-Horn)
d. Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Greenway Update (Alta)
e. Request for City Sponsorship – 2024 Veterans Parade (Eric Busse, Wayne County Veterans and

Patriots Coalition) *Item U
f. Boards and Commission Vacancy Discussion (City Clerk) *Item V
g. Fleet and Fuel Policy Revisions Discussion (Finance) *Item L
h. Procurement Policy Update Discussion (Finance) *Item M

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Father David Wyly, Police Chaplin)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of September 16, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Wreaths Across America Presentation (Lisa Corbett, Willowdale Cemetery Preservation Society)    
C. National Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation (Sherry McAllister, Wayne Uplift) 
D. Industry Appreciation Month Proclamation (Julie Graham, NC Global TransPark Economic 

Development Region) 

VI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
E. Breast Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation
F. Safety First on Halloween Proclamation

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
G. Amending Chapter 90: Abandoned, Junked, and Nuisance Vehicles, of The City of Goldsboro’s Code of

Ordinances (Planning) – Continued from September 16, 2024  
H. SU-16-24 Ahmed Aljabali: (Convenience Store with No Fuel Sales) (Planning) 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
I. Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) (Police)
J. Funding for the Neuse River Pump Station Intake Structure (Public Utilities)
K. Capital Project Grant for PFAS Studies (Public Utilities)
L. Fleet and Fuel Policy Revisions (Finance)
M. Procurement Policy Update (Finance)

Vote postponed to October 21, 2024



2 

N. Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund 
(G1109) (Finance) 

O. Grant Project Budget Amendment for the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201) (Finance) 
P. Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance - PFAS Study and Treatment Grant Project Ordinance 

(W1115) (Finance) 
Q. Ordinance Amending the Utility Capital Reserve Fund (6110) (Finance) 
R. Municipal Ordinance to Update the School Zone on US 70 Business/Ash Street between Meadow Lane 

Elementary School and Greenwood Middle School (Engineering)  
S. Chamber of Commerce Agreement (City Manager’s Office) 
T. MOU with the NC Department of Commerce to facilitate a Vision Forum (City Manager’s Office) 
U. Request for City Sponsorship – 2024 Veterans Parade (City Manager’s Office) 
V. Advisory Boards and Commissions Appointments (City Clerk)  
 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
W. Operating Budget Amendment FY24-25 (Finance) 
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



w.s. a



1

Samantha Darlington, 
North Carolina Department of Commerce, Main Street & Rural Planning Center

CREATING A VISION STATEMENT 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NC

w.s.item b



Who are we?
Mission: The NC Main Street & Rural 
Planning Center works in regions, 
counties, cities, towns, downtown 
districts, and in designated North 
Carolina Main Street communities, to 
inspire place making through building 
asset-based economic development 
strategies that achieve measurable 
results such as investment, business 
growth, and jobs.

NC Main Street & Rural Planning Center
Rural Economic Development Division
North Carolina Department of Commerce



City of Goldsboro Community Economic Development 
Assessment & Plan: May 2022

3

• The CEDAP is a short-term, 
efficient assessment that 
will "jump-start" communities' 
economic development efforts 
by providing action items.

• Completed by the MS&RP 
team in May of 2022, 
Business Development was a 
main strategy identified in the 
plan.



Where does the City fit into the economy? What role 
or gaps is the city taking on?

• Downtown Goldsboro Development 
Corporation 

The DGDC provides leadership dedicated to the 
improvement of Downtown Goldsboro by creating and 
facilitating downtown development, promotion and 
preservation activities. The DGDC strives to enhance the 
appearance, desirability and vitality of Downtown 
Goldsboro.

• Wayne County Development Alliance 
The WCDA’s five-year strategic plan pursues 
opportunities to build product (available industrial 
buildings and sites) and collaborate with allies to attract 
new companies and assist existing industries with 
expansion in Wayne County. 



What is a Vision Statement?

5

• A Vision statement identifies the economic 
role that your city will play in the greater 
economy in the local/county/regional 
economy over the next five years

• Your Vision statement is what your 
community can achieve and how will your 
city be different from other areas in your 
county and region

• A Vision Statement is grounded in growth 
opportunities. 



What is a Vision Forum & Who Participates? 

6

• A Vision Forum takes 2 to 4 hours and can be 
done in a variety of ways.

• Recommendation: A round table style discussion 
with a group of diverse stakeholders that is 
reflective of the community. 

• Process: Discuss CEDAP Findings, refresh the 
SWOT Analysis, Asset Identification, and 
Economic Drivers, and create a 5-year vision. 

• Deliverables: 
• A Report that Contains

• The 5-year Vision
• A summary of the round table 

discussion. 
• A few recommendations from the 

workgroup. 



What are the Outcomes and Impacts of a Vision?

7

• Identify Gaps in services and needs within 
the community. 

• Identify partnerships opportunities and how 
to strengthen existing partnerships.

• Can help a community determine a focus 
and priorities for the next 5 years. 

• First step in developing a comprehensive 
City Economic Development Plan identified 
as a project in the 2022 CEDAP.

• Can also help determine if one is still 
needed 

• Will serve as a foundation for this plan. 



CONTACT:

Samantha Darlington
Community Economic Development Planner
Southeast Region
North Carolina Department of Commerce
(984) 365-5868  mobile
Samantha.Darlington@commerce.nc.gov

mailto:Samantha.Darlington@commerce.nc.gov


Council Work Session
2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

October 7, 2024

w.s. item  c



MTP Agenda

1. Project Background

2. Engagement Recap

3. Recommendations

4. Prioritization 

5. Financial Constraint

6. Next Steps 

What is an MTP

How are we engaging

What are we recommending

How are we prioritizing

What are we funding

Where do we go from here



Project Background



What is an MTP?
A Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is a long-range 
transportation plan required to be fiscally constrained and updated 
every 5 years.

An MTP considers all modes of transportation relevant to an area, 
including walking, biking, transit, and freight.

Each metropolitan area is required to have an updated MTP to 
access federal funds for transportation projects.



Planning Process
May - June June - July July - September October



2050 MTP Goals
Accessibility
Ensure that roads provide safe access 
points to local businesses to increase 
traveler safety and network efficiency.

Environment
Preserve and enhance the Goldsboro region’s 
valued places and environment by a providing 
resilient transportation system.

Connectivity
Provide a well-connected transportation 
network for automobiles, bicycles, and 
pedestrians.

Maintenance
Emphasize the preservation of the existing 
network that maximizes benefits to the 
transportation system while minimizing costs.

Economic Development 
Support regional economic development with 
a transportation system that makes it easy to 
move people and goods within and through 
the region and promotes overall job growth. 

Safety
Limit crashes in the region and provide safe facilities 
for bicyclists and pedestrians. 

Efficiency
Ensure the transportation operates efficiently 
through coordinated policy and technology 
decisions. 

Security
Provide safe access to evacuation routes and 
Seymour Johnson Air Force Base while 
maintaining a flexible transportation system that 
aids the response and recovery from natural and 
man-made disasters



Engagement Recap



Purpose

• Describe the approach for engaging the community

• Provide meaningful integration of the MTP and Bicycle, 
Pedestrian, and Greenway Plan engagement to avoid 
engagement fatigue 

• Align plan outcomes with the needs and wishes of the 
community



Outreach Events

Steering Committee Meetings

Stakeholder Interviews

Online Survey

Regional Public Meetings

Plan Update Presentations (to TCC & TAC)

5 meetings between Steering Committee and the Project Management Team 

5 small group stakeholder meetings

2 Online surveys/opinion polls

2 pop up events or public meetings

Reviewing progress & key milestones- presentations to TCC and TAC



Engagement Phases

Project Visioning & Needs (May - June)
Raising awareness and identifying needs01
Events
• Steering Committee #1 - June
• Online Survey #1 - June
• In-Person Event #1 - June



Engagement Phases

Multimodal Recommendations & 
Prioritization (July - Aug)02
Events
• Steering Committee #2 - July
• Plan Update Presentation (TCC) – July
• Plan Update Presentation (TAC) – July 
• Steering Committee #3 - August



Engagement Phases

Project Wrap-Up & Adoption (Sept - Oct)
Plan Adoption!03
Events
• In-Person Event – September 
• Council Work Session – October 
• Plan Update Presentation (TCC) - October
• Plant Update Presentation (TAC) - October



Recommendations



Final Recs
Steering 

Committee/
Public Input

Draft Modal 
Recs

Universe of 
Projects

Needs and 
Gaps 

Analysis

Adopted 
and 

Ongoing 
Plans

Refine 
and Adjust

Recommendations Development

Reviewed in the Area 
Snapshot

Data Analysis and 
Feedback

Start with known 
projects (CTP, STIP, 

etc.)



Recommendation Types

Corridor
Access Management
Future Interstate
New Location
Widening
Complete Street
Modernization
Safety
E+C



Recommendation Types

Intersections
Intersection Study/Improvement
Intersection Safety
New Interchange
Roundabout
Traffic Signal
E+C



Intersections
Intersection Study/Improvement
Intersection Safety
New Interchange
Roundabout
Traffic Signal
E+C

Corridor
Access Management
Future Interstate
New Location
Widening
Complete Street
Modernization
Safety
E+C

Recommendations



Public Comment So Far
Add projects at: 
• Pecan Road at Arrington Bridge
• Arrington Bridge at NC581/Bill Lane Blvd
• Slocumb Street at Elm St



Prioritization



STI/SPOT
Funding

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Division Needs
30%

Regional Impact
30%

Statewide Mobility 
40%

Division 4

Division 1

Region A

Goldsboro



STI/SPOT
Scoring Process

Projects Submitted
MPOs, RPOs, & Divisions

Statewide Mobility
40% of Funds

Regional Impact
30% of Funds

Division Needs
30% of Funds

SPOT Review 1. Reviewed for category eligibility

2. Data screened 

3. Quantitative scores calculated

1. Total scores calculated

2. Projects programmed

3. Projects not programmed 
cascaded to next category

1. Local input points assigned 

2. Total scores calculated 

3. Projects programmed 

4. Projects not programmed 
cascaded to next category

1. Local input points assigned 

2. Total scores calculated 

3. Projects programmed

= 100% QuantitativeScore = 70% Quantitative + 
30% Local Input

= 50% Quantitative + 
50% Local Input



SPOT 7.0 Weighting
Criteria

Mobility Project Weights Modernization Project Weights

Statewide Mobility Regional Impact Division Needs Statewide Mobility Regional Impact Division Needs

Freight 25% 10% 5% 25% 10% 5%

Safety 10% 10% 10% 25% 25% 20%

Congestion 30% 20% 15% 10% 5%

Benefit-Cost 25% 20% 15%

Economic Comp. 10%

Lane Width 10% 10% 5%

Shoulder Width 20% 10% 10%

Pavement Condition 10% 10% 10%

Accessibility/Connectivity 10% 5%

Quantitative Total 100% 70% 50% 100% 70% 50%

Local Input 30% 50% 30% 50%

Total Score  100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%



Intersections
High Priority
Medium Priority
Low Priority
E+C

Corridor
High Priority
Medium Priority
Low Priority
E+C

Prioritization Results





Financial Constraint 



Financially Constrained Plan

Financially 
Constrained Plan

3
1 2• Prioritized Projects

• Cost Estimates
• Available Funding and 

Revenue
List of Projects by 
Horizon Band
2024-2028

2029-2033

2034-2040

2041-2050



Financial Forecast – How? 

Review Historical Data

Review and Refine Forecasts 

Prioritize and Constrain Projects

Identify Funding Gap



Roadway Capital Revenues

Horizon Band Anticipated Revenue

2024-2028 $109,298,000

2029-2033 $124,296,000

2034-2040 $185,660,000

2041-2050 $301,047,000

Total $720,301,000



Project Funding Horizon 



Bicycle and Pedestrian Capital Revenues

Horizon Band Anticipated Revenue

2024-2028 $2,465,000

2029-2033 $131,000

2034-2040 $2,166,000

2041-2050 $3,480,000

Total $8,242,000



Transit Revenues

Horizon Band Anticipated Capital Revenue Anticipated O&M Revenue

2024-2028 $1,073,000 $12,147,000

2029-2033 $1,073,000 $12,147,000

2034-2040 $1,505,000 $17,003,000

2041-2050 $2,150,000 $24,290,000

Total $5,801,000 $65,587,000



Aviation Capital Revenue

Horizon Band Anticipated Revenue

2024-2028 -

2029-2033 $3,737,000

2034-2040 $2,978,000

2041-2050 $4,630,000

Total $11,345,000



Rail Capital Revenue

Horizon Band Anticipated Revenue

2024-2028 $1,195,000

2029-2033 -

2034-2040 $1,016,000

2041-2050 $1,647,000

Total $3,858,000



Next Steps



Next Steps

1. Address Public Comments

2. TCC Meeting

3. TAC Meeting

4. FHWA Deadline

Oct o b e r

Oc t ob e r 

Oc t ob e r

Oc t o b e r



Goldsboro MPO 
Bike/Ped/Greenway Plan 
Overview
Goldsboro City Council Meeting 
October 7, 2024

w.s. item d



















Bike/Ped 
Facility 
Context





















Thank you!



1 of 16 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina met in a Work Session in the 
Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina at 5:00 
p.m. on September 16, 2024.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilman Rod White 

Absent: Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda. Mayor Gaylor requested to move Item F. Small Batch Craft Event – 
Temporary Street Closure and Item G. 2024 Halloween Festival – Temporary Street Closure to Items 
Requiring Individual Action for discussion. Councilman Boyette made a motion to adopt the agenda as 
amended. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.  Council 
adopted the amended agenda.  

Old Business. 
Work Session Item a. Three-Month Update on Parking Enforcement for Goldsboro 

Downtown. Dwight Bassett, Parking Consultant shared the presentation attached as Exhibit A.   

Interim Assistant City Manager, Kelly Arnold and Erin Fonseca, Downtown Director, shared the 
information below.  

In May 2024 the City Council approved Ordinance No 2024-22 which implemented a new two-hour 
parking limit on Center Street and streets around Center Street.  In addition, full-time parking 
enforcement program of downtown was initiated for all parking violations including the two-hour parking 
limit.  With three months of full implementation, data has been gathered including: 

• Ticket and revenue for parking violations issued
• Business placards issued
• Renewed downtown parking study by consultant Dwight Bassett
• Survey of Downtown businesses about the parking program

After a two-week warning during the first two weeks of June and a full month of moratorium for the 100 
block of Center St in July, the parking program experienced its first full month in August.  Three-month 
results include: 

Total parking violations/revenue: June = 122/$1,825 
             July = 172/$1,600 
             Aug. = 147/$3,124 

Total businesses taking placards/issued: 11 businesses/45 issued 

Dwight Bassett, parking consultant studied the economic impact of managed parking downtown and 
reported the daily potential sales of each space in the managed parking footprint is $176.68 for downtown 
businesses. The total impact of each space is reported at $53,534.  

A survey of the was conducted by staff with a 59% response rate. Merchant impact varied significantly 
based on the business type and the length of customer dwell time. Some of the findings include: 

Item A



2 of 16 
 

 
• Customer dwell time: Most businesses (around 77%) reported that 25% or less of their customers 

stay longer than 2 hours. 
 
• Customer complaints about parking: Around 37% receive complaints about the 2-hour parking limit 

daily, while 30% never receive such complaints. 15% report once or twice per month and 18% once 
or twice per week 

• Overall impact on business results is mixed, with 42% reporting no significant effect, 30% noting a 
somewhat positive effect, 21% experiencing a somewhat negative effect and 13 % experiencing a 
significant negative effect 

 
Via program implementation, staff recognizes some administrative challenges/constraints, particularly as 
it relates to the appeal process, that could be improved after more time    
 
It was recommended that the program continue as is for another three months, and another update with 
potential administrative amendments be considered before the end of 2024. 
 
Council discussed the following: parking restrictions and turnover on Saturday’s, downtown residential 
parking, future development for residential properties, regulating parking, and the data from a survey 
from the downtown businesses.  
 
Mr. Bassett discussed residential parking regulations and limiting the time for residents. 
 
Erin Fonseca, Downtown Director shared information regarding the survey. She shared there are 75 active 
businesses in the managed parking footprint. They were able to get with 59% of the businesses, the ones 
not surveyed were not open at the time of the survey.    
 
Ms. Fonseca discussed the parking placards offered to businesses. She shared there are currently 45 
placards provided to businesses and each business is allowed 5 placards.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked that the Downtown Goldsboro department go back out and get responses 
from the businesses not surveyed.  
 
Mr. Bassett encouraged Council to continue the parking enforcement. 
 
Interim City Manager Livingston thanked Mr. Bassett for coming to the meeting and for assisting with the 
parking enforcement plan. 
 

Work Session Item b.  Goldsboro’s Water Treatment Project to Address PFAS. Interim City 
Manager Livingston shared information regarding PFAS and PFOS. Bert Sherman, Public Utilities 
Director introduced Reed Barton with CDM Smith. Mr. Barton shared the presentation attached as Exhibit 
B.  
 
Councilman White asked if the PFAS study includes Seymour Johnson Air Force Base. Mr. Barton 
shared they are studying what comes out of the City’s water treatment plant and the study will cover the 
water that goes to the Base. 
 
City Attorney Lawrence shared the City is involved in class action lawsuits involving DuPont, Tyco and 
3M. Those settlements have been approved by the federal courts and the city will be receiving billions of 
dollars.  
 
Mr. Reed shared the city is in full compliance.  
 

New Business. 
Work Session Item c. Stormwater Inventory. Dylan Schreffler, GIS Manager shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit C.   
 
Mr. Schreffler introduced his new staff, Kelsey Palmer, GIS Technician and Mizanur Rahman, GIS 
Specialist.  
 
Mayor Gaylor shared the importance of stormwater mapping, and that he appreciates the work of the 
department.  
 



3 of 16 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked how citizens can access the information. Mr. Schreffler shared they are 
working on having the data accessible online. In the meantime, citizens can contact the GIS staff for 
information.    
 

Work Session Item d. Musgrave Manor Subdivision Storm Drainage Improvements. The 
item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager.   

 
Musgrave Manor Subdivision is prone to flooding during a small rain event. It has been determined by 
Engineering staff that the storm drainage system is undersized and did not account for the additional 60 
acres of land that drains to that subdivision. This project would upsize undersized storm lines in this 
subdivision and should alleviate flooding issues. 
  
Engineering staff has completed the design of this project in-house. The estimated costs to bid the project 
to the private sector is $930,000.  
 
Staff recommends that the storm drainage improvements for Musgrave Manor be completed in-house by 
Public Works Department staff. This storm drainage project would be within City rights of way and/or 
existing easement areas, as shown on the attached map. 
 
It was recommended that Council concur in the recommendation for Public Works Department staff to 
complete storm drainage improvements within Musgrave Manor Subdivision. 
Mayor Gaylor shared the following: staff is working on this project because all the pieces were in line. 
There are other parts of the city that if we can get this and we can have a consistent system where we're 
able to identify if there's any property issues that are in the way, if we have the assets in-house to be able 
to do it, then start whittling away at some of these issues around the city.  
 
Interim City Manager Livingston shared this is coming out of the stormwater fund and staff will bring an 
ordinance to Council at the next meeting.  
 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to concur with the completion of storm drainage 
improvements using in house resources in Musgrave Manor Subdivision and ask staff to submit a budget 
ordinance at an October meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously 
approved.  
 

Work Session Item e. Change Order #1 for Metal Maintenance Shed Building at Bryan 
MSCX. The item was presented by Felicia Brown, Parks & Recreation Director. 
 
In the FY24 Budget, Occupancy Tax Funds in the amount of $240,000 was approved for a metal 
maintenance shed building to be installed at the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX).  The cost for the 
project came in at $169,400, releasing the other funds back into the Occupancy Tax Fund.  The cost of the 
project did not include insulating the building. 
 
Before installation began, Carolina Bay Construction (contractor) contacted staff and recommended 
insulating the metal building to prevent condensation and future rust issues.  Staff verified with City of 
Goldsboro’s Public Works Department and an independent contractor this would be beneficial to do and 
asked Carolina Bay Construction to submit a change order to include insulation installation.    
 
Carolina Bay Construction has submitted a change order in the amount of $9,025.  This change order is 
for the insulation installation of our metal maintenance shed building at the Bryan MSCX.  Funding is 
available in the Occupancy Tax Fund to cover this cost.   
 
It is recommended that Council approve the change order in the amount of $9,025 with Carolina Bay 
Construction to install insulation with the installation of the metal maintenance shed building at the Bryan 
Multi-Sports Complex. The Finance Director has submitted with this agenda a budget amendment 
allocating these funds out of the Occupancy Tax Fund. 

 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to approve the change order in the amount as presented. The 

motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.  
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Item L.  Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Arrington Bridge Road Water 

Reclamation Facility Expansion Project FY27 (S1112). Ordinance Adopted. The item was submitted 
by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 



4 of 16 
 

The expansion of the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) has been a part of the City’s Utility CIP for 
some time and has been discussed with Council on multiple occasions.  Recently, on August 19, 2024, 
Hazen and Sawyer presented City Council with an overview of the upcoming expansion of the City’s 
Water Reclamation Facility on Arrington Bridge Road from a 14.2 mgd to a 17.6 mgd treatment facility. 

  
The scope of work contract needs to be executed so that Hazen and Sawyer can start work on the pre-
construction services portion of the project.  The cost of this service is $600,000 and will be funded with a 
transfer from the Utility Fund. 

  
Future budget amendments will be presented as costs are agreed upon, and funding sources can be 
determined which will include cash funding from the Utility Fund, debt funding and possibly grant 
funding.  The total cost of the project is yet to be determined. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to establish the grant capital 
project fund for the same. 
 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to adopt the ordinance to establish the grant capital project 
fund. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved.  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-48 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR 
THE ARRINGTON BRIDGE ROAD WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION PROJECT FY27 
(S1112)” 

 
Item F. Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure. The item was submitted and 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief. 
 

The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is sponsoring a craft fair to be held downtown to support local artists 
and makers of goods.  

 
The events will be hosted from 12:00pm – 5:00pm at The Hub on November 30, 2024. The Small Batch 
Craft Market, LLC is requesting the closure of the north bound lane of the 200 block South Center Street 
from Spruce to Chestnut Street from 10:00am – 6:00pm.  

  
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted, and the following concerns are 
to be addressed:  

 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South 
Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street as stated above. 
 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the temporary street closing. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved. 

 
Item G.  2024 Halloween Festival – Temporary Street Closure. The item was submitted and 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief. 
 
The Artistic Dance Academy, along with Downtown Goldsboro and the Downtown Development 
Corporation, will host the 2024 Halloween Festival event.  The event is free, family-friendly, and open to 
the public.  
 
The event will be on Saturday, October 26, 2024, from 6:00pm – 9:00pm on North Center Street, utilizing 
the Northbound Lane of the 200 block of North Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street, steps of City 
Hall, and the City Hall Parking lot.   There will be Vendors setup with children’s activities and Food 
Trucks. The Artistic Dance Academy, along with the Downtown Development Corporation is requesting 
the closure of the northbound lane of North Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street from 5:30pm –
9:30pm.  
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted, and the following concerns are 
to be addressed:  
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  



5 of 16 
 

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of North 
Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street as stated above. 
 
The updated checklist which lists the event as Tier 4, not Tier 2, was distributed to Council and updated 
in the agenda packet.  
 
Councilwoman Jones asked how much police presence is needed. Chief West shared he will have officers 
scheduled to work that can work downtown. He shared he thought 2-4 officers would be needed.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared concerns regarding the Small Batch Craft Market being moved to the 
HUB and that because the city is involved with this event, that they should have been directed to the HUB 
as well.  
 
Council discussed street closing events and the street closing policy with the Interim City Manager and 
Police Chief.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion to approve the event. There were no seconds. Council 
discussed the event. Councilman White asked what the role of the city is.  
 
Mayor Gaylor shared he would like to bring this back at the 7:00 p.m. session during Items Requiring 
Individual Action.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews inquired about the last Small Batch Craft event on Mulberry Street being 
denied.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews withdrew her motion regarding the street closing event.   
 
 

Consent Agenda Review.  
Items E, H, I, J and K on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 

following: 
 
Item J. Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina. 

Council discussed the supplement and how often the ordinances are codified.  
 

 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:50 p.m. 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on September 16, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Archbishop Anthony Slater, Fire Chaplain provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilman Rod White 

Absent:   Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 



6 of 16 
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of August 19, 2024 and the minutes of the Work Session and Regular 
Meeting of September 3, 2024.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously 
approved.   

 
Presentations. 
Item B.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Ralph “Trey” Ball, III 

as an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 28 Years. Resolution Adopted.  
 

Ralph “Trey” Ball, III retires on October 1, 2024 as a Police Captain, with more than 28 years of service 
with the Police Department. Trey began his career on August 23, 1995 as a Police Cadet with the Police 
Department. On July 10, 1996, Trey was hired as a Police Officer with the Police Department. On April 
4, 2001, Trey was promoted to Corporal with the Police Department. On September 10, 2003, Trey was 
promoted to Investigator with the Police Department. On September 28, 2005, Trey was promoted to 
Sergeant with the Police Department. On September 19, 2012, Trey was promoted to Captain with the 
Police Department, where he has served until his retirement. Trey has proven himself to be a dedicated 
and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on 
behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Trey 
Ball their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years and 
express to Ralph “Trey” Ball, III our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health 
in his future endeavors. 
 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in 
full force and effect from and after this 16th day of September, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor presented the retirement resolution to Captain Ball. Captain Ball was joined by his parents 
and police department staff.  
 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to accept the resolution as presented. The motion was seconded 
by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-94 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES 
RENDERED BY RALPH “TREY” BALL, III AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR 
MORE THAN 28 YEARS” 

 
Public Hearings.  
Item C.  City of Goldsboro: Amend the City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances, Chapter 90: 

Abandoned and Junked Vehicles. Public Hearing Held and Continued to October 7, 2024. The item 
was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 

Mayor Gaylor shared the information was not available for the agenda packet. Interim City 
Manager Livingston shared comments regarding the agenda item. Mr. Helmer shared staff has an 
ordinance amendment to regulate junk, abandoned and nuisance vehicles. However, after staff review, it 
was determined that the existing towing ordinance also needs to be updated.  

 
Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke.  
 

Councilman White asked about towing and the bid process.   
 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to continue the public hearing to the October 7, 2024 Council 

meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved. 
 
The public hearing remained opened. 
 
Item D.  SU-15-24 Henry Lee Battle Jr. - East side of S. James Street between Spruce Street 

and Pine Street. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, 
Planning Director after being properly sworn in.  
 
The applicant, Henry L. Battle, requests a Special Use Permit to allow the operation of a place of 
entertainment with ABC permits.   
 

Frontage:  111.94 ft.   
Depth:  205.88 ft. 
Area:  22,951 sq. ft. or 0.526 acres 
Zoning:  Central Business District (CBD) 



7 of 16 
 

The site is the location of the former Elk’s Lodge, and the physical address of the property is 312 S. 
James Street.   
 
The request is for a place of entertainment that is described by the applicant as a space available to rent 
for special occasions such as birthday parties, ballroom dancing and dancing lessons, wedding receptions, 
family reunions and live entertainment.   
 
In 2007 and 2008, City Council denied Special Use Permits to operate a place of entertainment with ABC 
permits and without ABC permits, respectively, at the subject property.   
 
In 2010, City Council approved site and landscape plans to allow an indoor flea market to operate upon 
the property.  Since the applicant never commenced development of the property, the site plan expired, 
and the property remained vacant. 
 
On July 15, 2019, Goldsboro City Council amended the City’s Unified Development Code as it pertained 
to bars, nightclubs, pool halls, microbreweries, places of entertainment (both public, private and non-
profit) with ABC Permits.   
 
The following regulations were approved as they pertain to places of entertainment: 
 

1. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side of George 
Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street, there shall be no minimum 
separation distance from residentially zoned or developed property.  A 50 ft. minimum separation 
distance shall be required for stand-alone churches or schools. 

2. For the remainder of the CBD, not described by the boundaries above, the minimum separation 
distance from residentially zoned or developed property, stand-alone churches or schools shall be 
one hundred feet. 

3. In the CBD, there shall be no minimum separation distance between two such establishments. 
4. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side of George 

Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street there shall be no minimum 
off-street parking requirements. 

 
On December 16, 2019, City Council approved the applicant’s request for a Special Use Permit to allow 
the operation of a place of entertainment with ABC permits to rent the property for special occasions such 
as birthday parties, ballroom dancing and dancing lessons, wedding receptions, family reunions, live 
entertainment.  Since the applicant never commenced development of the property before the expiration 
of two years, the Special Use Permit expired, and the property has since remained vacant. 
 
The property is zoned CBD (Central Business District) and is not located in the Historic District.  A place 
of entertainment with ABC permits is permitted in the CBD only after the issuance of a Special Use 
Permit approved by City Council.   
 
As previously stated, the site was the location of the former Elk’s Lodge.  It contains an existing single-
story, brick-veneer and concrete block building of approximately 3,408 sq. ft. on one private lot.  
 
The existing site is adjacent to single-family residential homes to the north and four vacant, undeveloped 
lots to the south.  East of the site exists a city-owned parking lot and a vacant commercial building. 
Across the street exists a residential duplex, child daycare and two vacant undeveloped lots.   
 
Land-Use Plan:  The City’s Land-Use Plan locates this property within the Mixed-Use Downtown land 
use designation.  The Central Business District is a corresponding zoning district for the Mixed-Use 
Downtown land use designation. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

North  CBD Residential-single family 

South CBD Vacant and undeveloped land 

East CBD City-owned parking lot/existing commercial 

West CBD Residential duplex/daycare/vacant and undeveloped land 



8 of 16 
 

The applicant has submitted a preliminary site plan and floor plan for the proposed use to be reviewed by 
planning staff and city council.  The floor plan indicates a main ballroom assembly area consisting of 
approximately 1,568 sq. ft., a seating area consisting of 14 tables and 84 chairs, a kitchen, storage rooms, 
offices and restrooms. 
 
According to the applicant, the facility would be available to rent for special occasions such as birthday 
parties, ballroom dancing and dancing lessons, wedding receptions, family reunions and live 
entertainment.  
 
Days/Hours of Operation: Reservations only (Thursday-Sunday) 

5:00pm-3:00am or other times as approved by owner 
No. of Employees:    4  
Refuse Collection:   Private commercial dumpster 
 
As previously stated, a 50 ft. minimum separation distance shall be required for stand-alone churches or 
schools.  Currently, the existing building is approximately 200 ft. from a stand-alone church. 
 
Since the property is bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side of George Street, the north 
side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street, no off-street parking is required. 
 
Parking:  The site is not part of the City’s managed parking area.  As previously stated, the site is located 
within a part of the Central Business District (CBD) that does not require off-street parking.  If off-street 
parking were a requirement for the site, a total of 49 parking spaces would be required.  The applicant is 
proposing 37 off-street parking spaces with additional public parking to be utilized along S. James St., W. 
Pine St. and a public parking lot at the corner of W. Pine and S. Center St. 
 
Mr. Helmer showed images of the proposed site and the site plan.  
 
Engineering:  The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 
 
TRC:  If the proposed use is approved, separate site plan approval will be required by the City’s 
Technical Review Committee.  In addition, City Inspections will require that the existing commercial 
facility be rehabilitated to meet the North Carolina Building Code before a certificate of occupancy is 
issued. 
 
Planning Staff recommends approval of SU-15-24 in accordance with the finding of fact for a special use 
permit to allow for a place of entertainment with ABC permits on property located within the Central 
Business (CBD) zoning district. 

 
Council shall now close the Public Hearing, enter deliberation, and vote on each of the four findings to 
determine whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued. The worksheet, which is part of the 
agenda packet lists the four findings to be voted on and conditions for consideration related to each 
finding. Council does have the ability to continue the hearing or place conditions upon its approval as 
long as Council is able to conclude that evidence exists in the record to support the condition.   
 
The applicant, Mr. Henry Battle shared the following comments after being properly sworn in:  
 
Mr. Henry Battle: I started this venture back in 2006 and it's been a long journey. A lot of it I don't really 
understand. It's hard to say because a lot of it, it really don't make a whole lot of sense. But I'm here just 
to let everyone know what I'm putting together here will benefit this city. And if anybody’s got a 
question, I'll be glad to answer.  
Mayor Gaylor: I have a question around the time. This was raised to me between the time we released 
the packet and today about the times. It says from 5:00 PM to 3:00 AM. There's not much else in the City 
of Goldsboro open all the way till 3:00 AM.  
Mr. Battle: Well, I didn't have the 3:00 AM on there. I don't know how 3:00 AM got there. But is Mr. 
Terry here, from Kornegay Engineering and Survey.  
Mayor Gaylor:  We'll verify that, but I just want to be real clear, if that's not your intent, then it actually 
resolves my question.  

 
   Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing and the following people spoke: 

 
1. Richard Taylor shared the following comments after being affirmed: My name is Richard 

Taylor, and I was coming forth on behalf of Mr. Battle. He reached out to me, and I think I met 
him about 3 years ago at an event and he was telling me about, his vision and yesterday, or last 
week, he called me and told me that this was on the agenda for the Council and so he had 



9 of 16 
 

explained some of the issues that he has been having of no fault of his own and he advised me to 
come and speak for him. So, I'm speaking for him on behalf of, he is willing to reestablish a 
staple in the community that has been, therefore quite some time, known as the Elks Lodge. I 
don't know what he wants to call it now, but from my understanding as well, there is currently a 
project sponsored by the CDBG for the revitalization of the historic black business district on 
James St. and I don't know their plans. I spoke with Ms. D'Antonio, the coordinator, a few times, 
and she has some visions, but I don't see any way to bring that project to fruition, other than, 
letting the business be used for what it has always been used for in the past. So that is my petition 
to the Council as well.  

 Councilwoman Jones:  I am on that committee, and we have no intention. I do not, to take away 
Mr. Battle’s vision for having that place there on James Street. It is very instrumental, very 
important to the black community, so, I have no plans of trying to keep him from making his 
dream come to fruition on James Street.  

 
2. Cynthia Reed shared the following comments after being properly sworn in: My name is Cynthia 

Reed. My husband and I just recently purchased the home next to the business that Mr. Battle 
owns, and we now have my mother-in-law living with us and I don't want to damper anyone's 
dreams but it would not be a good idea to have any party in that place being it is so close to our 
home and our 84 year old mother would wake up a lot and her sleep would be disturbed so much. 
We live in 304, 306 and 308. Our fence connects about maybe two feet away from the edge of his 
building. It could be a good idea, but you never know if any party he has, how it will turn out. 
There could be a rowdy group. People can throw bottles of wine or beer or something in our yard. 
And I'm sure we will have to go get it. And we have a dog. And if the bottles break, I don't want 
him to get cut if he goes out in the yard. I oppose of his venture.  
 
Councilwoman Taylor: You own three homes?  
Cynthia Reed: No, we own one, but we own three lots. 
Councilwoman Taylor: When was your home originally built?  
Cynthia Reed: 1928.  
Councilwoman Taylor: I was just curious because I know when I was younger, the Elks was 
always in business, and I just was curious if you know what the people that used to live in those 
homes thought about that. I hadn't heard any complaints before. 
Cynthia Reed: Like I said, we just moved in recently, don't know much about the area.  
Councilwoman Taylor: It used to be, for years and years, it was always a place of business since 
I was a kid.  
Councilwoman Jones: I just heard your report and what I understood was that the places were 
vacant around this.  
Mr. Helmer: There are some vacant properties nearby, but there are a mix of uses around there.  

 
Mr. Helmer reviewed the chart below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Helmer: I've been briefed on this and the last time this came before Council, I believe those 
residents at that time also have concerns about it and not so much of the throwing of the bottles, 
and the behavior of the folks, but they were concerned that the overflow traffic would be parking 
in the street and in front of their homes. And so, I believe that Council placed a condition on it so 
that to limit negative impacts on the residential properties to the north, they put a condition on it 
that all on street parking be to the South of the property around the corner and in that parking lot.  
Cynthia Reed: I didn't know how his entertainment area would turn out to be. Because one day it 
could turn out to be rough or something.  
Councilman Boyette: Only because I don't recall, there's a structure showing between the 
residential property that sits at 304/306. There's another structure that sits between that and Mr. 
Battles building. What is that building? What is that structure?  

Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

North  CBD Residential-single family 

South CBD Vacant and undeveloped land 

East CBD City-owned parking lot/existing commercial 

West CBD Residential duplex/daycare/vacant and undeveloped land 



10 of 16 
 

Mr. Helmer: The property owner just said it was a paved surface. It appears to be a structure 
because of the shadow it's casting. 
Councilwoman Jones: This permit has already been approved at one time, am I correct?  
Mr. Battle: Yes.  
Councilwoman Jones: So, in that time that you were allowed to have, you were approved? Have 
you had any parties or anything in that building?  
Mr. Battle: No, not other than me coming up and doing different work and stuff like that. 
Councilwoman Jones: So, you've not had any parties or any weddings or any occasions or 
anything happened in that building in the other two-year period that you were approved?  
Mr. Battle: No. 
Mayor Gaylor: Have you had any events that used the grounds? That were not in the building 
but used the grounds.  
Mr. Battle: Yeah, we've had some stuff where we've had, like a bounce house on the grounds, 
but that's for the kids.  
Councilwoman Jones: But there's still some other things that you have to get clear and straight 
before you even, that's why you want the permit, so you can continue to work on what you need 
to have, is that correct?  
Mr. Battle: Yes. 
Councilwoman Jones: This means that this is not happening right away. If this is approved, 
these parties and dances and weddings is not going to happen tomorrow, next week or two weeks 
from now. Is that correct? We are approving this so that you can get the necessary work done for 
your building so that, in the future you can have these events, is that correct? 
Mr. Battle: Exactly.  
Councilwoman Jones: But you may, if the permit is approved, you may have some bouncy 
houses or something like that.  
Mr. Battle: No, this was last month. I did a little something for the kids and I had a bounce 
house. This was in the parking lot because the building is actually on 312. But I own 14 and 16, 
which is the parking lot.  
Councilwoman Jones: So, going back to the permit, what you're asking for us tonight is that we 
approve this permit so that you continue the work that you need on this building? That is what 
you're that's what you're asking for, am I correct?  
Mr. Battle: That's what I need.  
Mayor Gaylor: Just as a point of clarification, this is more than simply a building permit. This is 
also the operations permit. If granted tonight, if he's able to get the building up to code and once 
he got his certificate of occupancy, it would be the permit to be able to operate. I do want to be 
very clear on that.  
Councilman Boyette: In all my years on Planning, it seems like I remember us approving this 
each and every time it come before us.  
Mr. Battle:  I came before the Council the first time 2007, with ABC permits, I was denied. I 
came back again in 2008 with no ABC permits and was still denied. So, I'm saying to myself, 
well, what is it?  
Councilman Boyette: Then moving forward from that place of entertainment, wasn't those 
original requests for a full-time business, not for an event venue?  
Mr. Battle: No, I got the building in 2006.  I came before the Council in 2007. And then I came 
back again in 2008. First time, ABC permits denied. Second time, no ABC permits and was 
denied. Now, like I said, I don't know. I look at everyone who comes up here, they say they have 
the right to do this. They have the right to do that. I'm trying to figure out what's my situation.  
Councilman Boyette: At least once, if not twice, it has been approved as you requested and then 
you had to come back because you haven't started the process. Is that correct?  
Councilwoman Jones: Yes, that is correct.  
Mr. Battle: No, when I got approved in December 19, remember COVID kicked in. So, 
everything shut down for a couple of years. I didn't know which way to go on it because I didn't 
know whether we were going to survive.  
Councilman Boyette: I'm certainly in support of your request. I just want to make sure I was 
clear on your application, is basically just to re-up what had already been approved, that's 
expired.  
Councilwoman Taylor: So, they never told you why you were denied those other times?  
Mr. Battle: Well, not exactly. When I was denied in 2007 and eight, it was about the parking lot. 
I had to pave the parking lot and do all of this. Now, once they started the business on the corner 
of James and Chestnut and the business on the corner of Pine and George, when they came in 
with the breweries, they changed up the whole format. That's when they came from Ash to Elm, 
from George to William is considered the downtown district, on-street parking, because none of 
those places even have a parking lot. And so that's what I couldn't understand, I said. Now you 
held me back all these years. Because of the complaint about the parking lot didn't have enough 



11 of 16 
 

parking. That's why I purchased the properties over on Pine Street so if there was an issue with 
parking, I’ve got 2 lots over there on Pine that that's conjoined with what I already have.  
Councilwoman Taylor: If you get approved, what is your timeline for possibly opening?  
Mr. Battle: I'm hoping within six to eight months.  
Councilwoman Jones: I want to talk a little bit about 2002 when Mr. Battle came to me because 
he had some concerns, and he felt that the city was not cooperating with him. 
Mr. Battle: And they are not, never have.  
Councilwoman Jones: So, we had a meeting. I do have those emails in which the city was 
supposed to help, and we were supposed to help you get started and acclimated on what you're 
supposed to do. I do have those emails. I know we don't have time to read them now, but I will 
disseminate them to you (Councilwoman Jones passed out a copy of an email to Council attached 
as Exhibit D). I want us to work as hard as we can to help him have his business on James Street 
and I want us to understand that you may not have all these things. I don't know what you have 
already done in these things. We had a long drawn out, we had a whole table of people, didn't 
we?  
Mr. Battle: About six people. 
Councilwoman Jones: Yes, and we talked about what was supposed to happen and what we 
were supposed to do to help you get started. Tonight, I'm understanding it’s for operation and a 
permit, so these things that we talked about that need to happen, they've already been done, 
correct?  
Mr. Battle: Not all of them. The engineer part has been done. I got an architect. The guy from 
Kornegay Engineer, he's the one that's that submitted all this for me.  
Mayor Gaylor: As with any other property that's being purchased that currently is not up to code 
where it can be issued a certificate of occupancy, the applicant is in front of us to get the zoning 
piece done first and then would be required to bring the building up to code before getting a 
certificate of occupancy and then once you have the certificate of occupancy, to Councilwoman 
Jones's point, at that point then of course he would be able to operate the business within the 
confines of the law.  
 

3. Christopher Reed shared the following comments after being properly sworn in: I'm the one that 
purchased the properties 304, 306 and 308. 308 is where I park my cars. His fence and mine, 
we’re really close. I don't see a problem. The one problem I see is at night with all the cars. If he 
has parking on the other side, I'll have no problem. But if there's anything that goes on past 2:00 
AM, I'll have a big problem. A very big problem. Because I work for a school district, working 
on school buses and I have to get to work. I have to get the kids to school. I would like my sleep.  
 
Councilwoman Jones: We did clarify that we need to take out that 3:00 AM time. Is that 
correct? What time are you saying?  
Mayor Gaylor: What are your anticipated hours of operation?  
Mr. Battle: 1:00 was my, but I don't know how it got to be 3:00. Like I said, Terry over at 
Kornegay Engineering and Survey and I thought he would be here tonight.  
Councilwoman Taylor: If you say 1:00 AM, does that mean 1:00 AM, that's what time you're 
going to close? Because if that's the case, you may need a little extra time to get everyone out of 
the parking lot. I know he said he didn't have a problem with 2:00.  
Mr. Battle: 2:00 is fine. Mostly what I do, I'm a line dancer.  
Mayor Gaylor: Would you be willing to accept a 1:00 AM stop time for any events? Obviously, 
if you're having to stay there and clean up, but as far as the things that would cause noise, would 
you allow us to include the condition a 1:00 AM stop time for the events?  
Mr. Battle: Well, I can go with that.  
Councilman White: We do have businesses downtown where residents reside, that close at 2:00. 
So just for being uniform across the board, I would say 2:00. I would offer him 2:00 instead of 
3:00.  
Mayor Gaylor: That’s when alcohol sales stop legally in North Carolina. If you’ll accept the 
condition.  
Councilwoman Jones: I just wanted to have it clear on the time and have it documented.  

 
4. Douglas Horne shared the following comments after being properly sworn in: I saw there's going 

to be a public hearing about the business. Some of you may recall that I was here before you 
couple of years ago because I was trying to utilize Mr. Battle’s facility, and it just couldn't 
happen. The Council offered me an alternative that worked out well. Thank you all for that. But I 
would like to see Mr. Battle be able to continue his business and maintain that “historical site” 
that it is. I mean, there's a lot of history and great memories of Goldsboro. It’s kind of the last 
man standing on James Street which was a very important part of Goldsboro, it represents 
independence and the American dream for a lot of people. I do appreciate the consideration and 
allow Mr. Battle to continue.  



12 of 16 
 

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine 
whether or not the Special Use Permit should be issued. 

 
1. Councilman Boyette made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or 

safety. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 
2. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial 

use of adjoining or abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and 
unanimously carried. 

3. Councilwoman Taylor made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development 
and uses within the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette 
and unanimously carried. 

4. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of 
Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor 
and unanimously carried. 

 
Mayor Gaylor stated SU-15-24 passes. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following person 

spoke:  

1. Carl Martin spoke about the stormwater drainage ditch and multi-use trail on New Hope Road 
and provided his comments attached as Exhibit E. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 
3:04.)   

Councilman White shared that is a state-owned road and Kappa Alpha Psi has contacted the state about 
cutting the grass. He shared the crosswalk has been there a while and we need to look at the state building 
some type of crossover so the residents can use the trail.  

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager Livingston presented the 

Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one 
motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the 
Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. Item F. Small Batch Craft Event – 
Temporary Street Closure and Item G. 2024 Halloween Festival – Temporary Street Closure were moved 
to Items Requiring Individual Action during the Adoption of the Agenda. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews 
moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E, H, I, J and K be approved. The motion was seconded 
by Councilwoman Jones and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item E. Operating Budget Amendment FY24-25. Ordinance Adopted. The item was submitted 
by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
Council adopted the FY24-25 annual operating budget on June 17, 2024. 

  
Human Resources (1016) 
At the August 19th meeting, Council authorized the amendment to the Management Advisory Group 
contract to add an organizational study for $45,000.  This will be funded with an appropriation of General 
Fund fund balance. 

 
Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance 
General Fund 

 

Date Description Adopted
6/17/2024 Ord 2024-34 FY24-25 Adopted Budget 1,992,251.94$  
8/5/2024 Team Foods USA, Inc. Economic Development Incentive 57,834.00        

8/19/2024 Purchase Order Rollover FY24 to FY25 1,059,795.16    

Current Year Appropriations 3,109,881.10$  

9/16/2024 Organizational Study contract revision Management Advisory Group 45,000.00$      

Proposed 45,000.00$      

Current Year with Proposed 3,154,881.10$  



13 of 16 
 

Transfers – Utility Fund (8101) 
Public Utilities is ready to move forward with the scope of work services with Hazen & Sawyer, the 
engineering firm working with Crowder Construction on the design build for the expansion of the Water 
Reclamation Facility on Arrington Bridge Road from 14.2 mgd to 17.6 mgd.  The cost of this service is 
estimated at $600,000 and will be funded with an appropriation of Utility Fund fund balance. 

 
Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance 
Utility Fund 

 
 

Civic Center – Occupancy Tax Fund (9076) 
Felicia Brown, Parks & Recreation Director, requested a change order of $9,025.00 to Carolina Bay 
Construction to add insulation to the equipment shed being constructed at the Bryan Multi Sports 
Complex.  As per ordinance, the City Manager is authorized to approve construction change orders of 
$10,000 or less.  An amendment to the Civic Center organization budget is presented to appropriate the 
expenditures to fund the change order, and this will be funded with an appropriation of Occupancy Tax 
Fund fund balance. 

 
Occupancy Tax Fund 

 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY24-25 Operating 
Budget for the General Fund, Utility Fund and Occupancy Tax Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Matthews/Jones (6 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-46 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2024-25 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
Item H.  Memorandum of Agreement between the Goldsboro Police Department and NC 

DHHS and Cherry Hospital. Resolution Adopted. The item was submitted by Mike West, Police Chief. 
 
The Goldsboro Police Department has coordinated in the past for use of Cherry Hospital grounds or 
facilities for training exercises. Both parties have agreed to formalize this relationship through a MOA. 

 
The terms of this agreement, as modified with the consent of both parties, will expire one (1) year from 
date of execution, upon mutual agreement, this contract can be extended for a period of one (1) year on a 
yearly basis. This agreement will remain in effect until terminated by one of the parties. Either party may 
terminate this agreement, without cause, upon sixty days' (60) written notice. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Police Chief to 
enter into a Memorandum of Agreement with NCDHHS and Cherry Hospital which allows the Goldsboro 
Police Department to use the grounds or facilities at Cherry Hospital for training exercises. Consent 
Agenda Approval. Matthews/Jones (6 Ayes)  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-95 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE POLICE CHIEF TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH NC DHHS AND CHERRY HOSPITAL” 

 

Date Description Adopted
6/17/2024 Ord 2024-34 FY24-25 Adopted Budget 503,944.26$    
8/19/2024 Purchase Order Rollover FY24 to FY25 1,990,554.28    

Current Year Appropriations 2,494,498.54$  

9/16/2024 Transfer to S1112 for WRF Expansion Scope of Work Costs (Hazen & 
Sawyer) 600,000.00$    
Proposed 600,000.00$    

Current Year with Proposed 3,094,498.54$  



14 of 16 
 

Item I.  Approval of the FY25-26 Budget Calendar. Approved. The item was submitted and 
presented by Matt Livingston, Interim City Manager. 
 
Each year, the City Manager in conjunction with city staff, prepares a budget calendar to prepare staff as 
the budget process begins.  This year, the Interim City Manager is bringing the budget calendar to 
Council for approval as a show of transparency and cooperation.  

 
Provided with this memorandum is the proposed FY 25-26 budget calendar to be used as a basic plan in 
preparing, reviewing, and approving the 2025-2026 Operating Budget.  The process has already begun 
this year with city staff planning and developing the CIP.   

 
The Interim City Manager would like Council to review their calendars and let the City Clerk know 
which dates are best for the schedules between January and February for the Council retreat.  

 
It was recommended that Council approve the proposed FY25-26 budget calendar as recommended by the 
Interim City Manager and staff.  Consent Agenda Approval. Matthews/Jones (6 Ayes) 

 
Item J.  Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina. 

Ordinance Adopted.  The item was submitted and presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk. 
 
In 1990, an agreement was reached between the North Carolina League of Municipalities and the City of 
Goldsboro to engage American Legal Publishing Company to revise the Code of Ordinances of 
Goldsboro.  The revised Code was published in 1995.  
 
The agreement stated that American Legal Publishing Company would prepare supplements for 
incorporation of new Ordinances to the City Code of Ordinances on a recurring basis.  In compliance with 
this agreement, the City has received the S-49 Supplement.  This Supplement contains all Ordinances of a 
general nature enacted since the S-48 Code of Ordinances dated November 20, 2023. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance enacting and adopting the 2024 
S-49 Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro. 
 
Councilman White shared comments regarding the ordinance in the supplement regarding the mayor 
setting the agenda and how Council gets notified of what has been requested to be added to the agenda.  
Council discussed the ordinance and the process of adding items to the agenda. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared comments regarding the Boards and Commissions ordinance. She 
would like to add a discussion regarding the Boards and Commissions ordinance at a future meeting.  
 
Mayor Gaylor shared he would like Council, as well as department heads to bring out of date ordinances 
forth to be reviewed/updated.  Consent Agenda Approval. Matthews/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-47 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT TO 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Item K.  Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  
The various departmental reports for August 2024 were submitted for Council approval. It was 

recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda Approval. Matthews/Jones 
(6 Ayes) 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action. 
Items Requiring Individual Action were addressed during the September 16, 2024, 5:00 p.m. work 

session. Council continued discussion on Item G.  
 
Item G.  2024 Halloween Festival – Temporary Street Closure. The item was submitted and 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief. 
 

The Artistic Dance Academy, along with Downtown Goldsboro and the Downtown Development 
Corporation, will host the 2024 Halloween Festival event.  The event is free, family-friendly, and open to 
the public.  

 
The event will be on Saturday, October 26, 2024, from 6:00pm – 9:00pm on North Center Street, utilizing 
the Northbound Lane of the 200 block of North Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street, steps of City 



15 of 16 
 

Hall, and the City Hall Parking lot. There will be Vendors setup with children’s activities and Food 
Trucks. The Artistic Dance Academy, along with the Downtown Development Corporation is requesting 
the closure of the northbound lane of North Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street from 5:30pm –
9:30pm.  

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted, and the following concerns are 
to be addressed:  
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of North 
Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street as stated above. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion to approve the street closing request. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.  

 
City Manager’s Report.  
Interim City Manager Livingston shared comments regarded the PFOS and PFAS study. He also 

shared staff is working on implementing best management practices throughout all departments. Staff is 
also working with Davenport on the CIP, and he plans to present that to Council sometime in the Winter. 
He shared comments regarding the transportation plan draft that includes the master transportation plan 
for roads, and the bike and PED plan. He shared we’re doing a pavement study so we can start 
understanding the condition of our roads, the current audit is going very well and we're going to have that 
in on time. 

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman White had no comments.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews had no comments.   
 
Councilwoman Taylor had no comments.  
 
Councilman Boyette shared the following: Thank you to our hard-working city employees. Every 

one of you are valued and appreciated and this city couldn't run without you. I would like to see us 
formulate a public information campaign or something to emphasize to the public our citizen request 
(311) form that's available online. I've had four phone calls in the last week, as we all do as elected 
officials. People reach out to their district person and say such and such is going on just like the 
gentleman that came forth tonight with a very valid concern, which he was able to get an answer as to 
whose responsibility it is. Those type of things, there is a way to report that on the city's website. If you 
can’t immediately find it on the city's website, if you Google Goldsboro, NC, 311, it'll be the first thing 
that comes up in your search bar. If you go to that location, there's a way to report whatever your 
concerns are and someone get it because if you call and say, well, such and such is wrong and then 
something doesn't get done about it or it’s not addressed, and you wonder, well, did it make it somewhere 
or did somebody call? If you enter that information into the 311 system online, it documents your concern 
and sends it to the appropriate person that needs to see that in order to address it. Out of the four phone 
calls that I've got this week, not one of those four people were aware of the 311 system and two of those 
was approximately four or five days ago, and the next day both of those people called me and said, my 
issues have been addressed. So, it does work and our employees of our city, just like this elected body 
that sits here, we're here to serve our citizens. And if you have a concern, we have a concern, and the 
employees of this city want to work to do the things that need to be done to run the city. If you don't get a 
response to your concern when you use that system, reach out to this elected body and we'll see if we can't 
get you an answer.  

 
Councilwoman Jones shared the following: I just want to thank the city staff for all that they do and 

that we all appreciate you. To my District 1, I want to thank so many of you for your support and always 
calling me and listening to me and when I come around to speak with you. I thank the city staff for 
everything that they're doing, and I thank you for some of the houses that have been torn down, not 
because there's another house being reconstructed there, but because it was dangerous for the other houses 
in the community. I know that there are other districts that need that to happen too, but I want to thank 
you on behalf of District 1. I really want to work on the area where there are two foxes. I'm very 
concerned about that area. There is an elderly lady that lives there and there are two foxes that are coming 
out from that house and there is no one there and I really want something to be done about it.    



y

Cd

O >, 

4

ao

4, 

Cp

C) 

3

o

3

oC13

30  
o0

y

u

Cd

0

It

cts

C,

3

0

bo

cd

fn

CA

C) 

v,. 

o

o

s . . (

1) 

to

y

r ° > 

ti

cq3 = = 

a ` 

W

M

ami

cd . 

3

U

Y

bpi

O

i

p

3

a 

3

p. 

on

U

144 '" 

co

Cd

U >

o

cz

IVU
i

p

U

cd05
A

y

O .

d

p

O •,  

c

C  

c 

tW   

O '^' 

N

N

cl

En

C,

3 -,

W

o

o

10y >, ; 

cd

o

o

i

a

N

a

O

U

p

In

3

G" 

U

U

U



















































Item C



Item D



Item E



Item F



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING 

Item ---

Amending Chapter 90: Abandoned, Junked, and Nuisance 
Vehicles, of The City of Goldsboro's Code of Ordinances 

After a review of Chapter 90 of The City of Goldsboro's Code of 
Ordinances, Planning staff determined an update was needed to 
comply with recently updated General Statutes. Most of Chapter 
90 has not been revised since at least July 2005. 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Department is requesting a 
comprehensive text amendment to Chapter 90 of the City's Code 
of Ordinances that includes language pertaining to abandoned, 
junked, and nuisance vehicles. The proposed amendment will 
update the Code of Ordinances to be in compliance with current 
statutes; in particular, G.S 160A-303, 160A-303.2, 20-219. 

Key components of the proposed text amendment include: updated 
definitions for the chapter, updated authorization for vehicle 
removal, pre- and post-towing notice requirements, probable cause 
hearing requirements, and updates to how unclaimed vehicles will 
be disposed of. 

STAFF RECOMENDATION: Planning Staff recommends approval of the proposed ordinance 
amending Chapter 90. 

REQUIRED ACTION: 

Date: 10/z/if 

Date: / ) /i hit 

Council shall continue the public hearing from their September 
16th, 2024 meeting and vote to approve or deny the ordinance 
amending Chapter 90. 

E. Helmer, Planning Director 

Pag 111 

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD.

G



ORDINANCE NO. 2024 -   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO CODE OF ORDINANCES 
CHAPTER 90: ABANDONED, JUNKED, AND NUISANCE VEHICLES 

 
 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the 
City Council at a regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the 
Historic City Hall building, on Monday, September 16, 2024 at 7:00 p.m., and continued to a 
certain date voted and approved by City Council, on Monday, October 7, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., for 
the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an ordinance amending the City of 
Goldsboro Code of Ordinances; and  

 
WHEREAS, after a review of Chapter 90 of The City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances, 

Planning staff determined an update was needed to comply with recently updated General Statutes. 
Most of Chapter 90 has not been revised since at least July 2005; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Planning Department is requesting a comprehensive 

text amendment to Chapter 90 of the City’s Code of Ordinances that includes language pertaining 
to abandoned, junked, and nuisance vehicles; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendment will update the Code of Ordinances to be in 

compliance with current statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, key components of the proposed text amendment include: updated definitions 

for the chapter, updated authorization for vehicle removal, pre- and post-towing notice 
requirements, probable cause hearing requirements, and updates to how unclaimed vehicles will 
be disposed of. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Goldsboro, that sections 90.01-90.12 of Chapter 90 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, are hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Goldsboro, Chapter 90 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, hereby amended by adding sections 90.13 and 90.14 as follows. 

 
 
 

CHAPTER 90: ABANDONED, AND JUNKED, AND NUISANCE VEHICLES 
 

General Provisions 
Section 
 
   90.01   Intent and pPurpose and administration. 
   90.02   Definitions 
   90.03   Duty of owner to remove Unlawful; removal authorized. 
   90.04   Removal by city Nuisance vehicle removal authorized. 
   90.05   Costs of removal; notice to owner Removal; pre-towing notice requirements. 
   90.06   Sale of abandoned motor vehicles Notice requirement exceptions. 
   90.07   Disposition of proceeds of sale of abandoned motor vehicle Removal; post-towing notice. 
   90.08   Disposition of junked motor vehicles Right to probable cause hearing. 
   90.09   Disposition of unidentified vehicles Redemption of vehicle during proceedings. 
   90.10   Disposition of proceeds of sale of junked motor vehicle Sale and disposition of 
unclaimed vehicles. 
   90.11   Immunity Removal of vehicle from private property. 
   90.12   Limitations of provisions Protection against criminal or civil liability. 
   90.13. Exceptions. 
   90.14. Removal of impounded vehicle. 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
§ 90.01 INTENT AND PURPOSE. 



 
   It is the intent of the city to prohibit the abandonment of motor vehicles on public streets or on 
public or private property within the city and the city may enforce this chapter by removing and 
disposing of junked or abandoned motor vehicles according to the procedures prescribed herein. 
 
§ 90.01 PURPOSE AND ADMINISTRATION. 
 
(A) Abandoned, junked, and nuisance vehicles constitute a hazard to the health, safety, and 

welfare of the citizens of the City. Such vehicles can harbor noxious diseases, provide shelter 
and breeding places for vermin, and present physical dangers to the safety of children and 
other citizens. Such vehicles detract from community, neighborhood, and area appearances; 
value of property; the character and integrity of the community; tourism and other economic 
development opportunities; and the comfort, happiness, and emotional stability of area 
residents. It is therefore the purpose of this article to eliminate existing abandoned, junked, 
and nuisance vehicles, and to prevent future proliferation thereof.  

 
(B) The City Police Department and the Planning Department shall be responsible for the 

administration and enforcement of this article. The Police Department shall be responsible 
for administering the removal and disposition of vehicles determined to be abandoned on the 
public streets and highways within the City and property owned by the City. The Planning 
Department shall be responsible for administering the removal and disposition of abandoned, 
junked, and nuisance vehicles located on private property within the ordinance-making 
jurisdiction of the City. The City shall utilize private tow truck operators or towing businesses 
to remove, store, and dispose of abandoned, junked, and nuisance vehicles in compliance with 
this article and applicable state laws. Nothing in this article shall be construed to limit the 
legal authority or powers of City officers in enforcing any other laws or otherwise carrying 
out their duties.  

 
§ 90.02 DEFINITIONS. 
 
   For the purpose of this chapter the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning. 
   ABANDONED VEHICLE. A motor vehicle shall be deemed to have been abandoned in the 
following circumstances: 
      (1)   It is left unattended upon a street or highway for longer than 12 hours in violation of a 
law or ordinance prohibiting parking; 
      (2)   It is left unaccompanied on property owned or operated by the city for a period longer 
than 24 hours; 
      (3)   It is left unaccompanied on any public street or highway for a period longer than seven 
days; or 
      (4)   It is left on private property without the consent of the owner, occupant or lessee thereof 
for longer than two hours. 
   JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE. A vehicle that does not display a current license plate and: 
      (1)   Is partially dismantled or wrecked; 
      (2)   Cannot be self-propelled or moved in the manner in which it originally was intended to 
move; or 
      (3)   Is more than five years old and appears to be worth less than $100 as determined by the 
Director of Planning or his designee. 
      (4)   Except that one vehicle which is located in the rear yard on private property and is fully 
covered by a manufactured car cover and is not surrounded by overgrown weeds or grass shall 
not be considered a junked motor vehicle. 
 
§ 90.02 DEFINITIONS. 
 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

 
A Motor vehicle or vehicle means a machine designed or intended to travel over land or water by 
self-propulsion or while attached to any self-propelled vehicle. 
 
An abandoned motor vehicle is one that: 

(1) Has been left upon a street or highway in violation of a law or ordinance prohibiting parking; 
or 

(2) Is left on property owned or operated by the City for longer than 24 hours; or 



(3) Is left on private property without the consent of the owner, occupant, or lessee thereof for 
longer than two hours; or 

(4) Is left on any public street or highway for longer than seven days, or is determined by law 
enforcement to be a hazard to the motoring public. 

 
A junked motor vehicle is an abandoned motor vehicle that also: 
 

(1) Is partially dismantled or wrecked; or 
(2) Cannot be self‑propelled or moved in the manner in which it was originally intended to 

move; or 
(3) Is more than five years old and worth less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) or is more 

than five years old and worth less than five hundred dollars ($500.00) as provided by the 
municipality in an ordinance adopted under this section; or 

(4) Does not display a current license plate. 
 
A Nuisance vehicle is a junked motor vehicle on public or private property that is determined and 
declared to be a health or safety hazard, a public nuisance, and unlawful, including a vehicle found 
to be:  
 

(1) A breeding ground or harbor for mosquitoes or other insects, or for rats or other pests.  
(2) A point of heavy growth of weeds or other noxious vegetation over eight inches in height.  
(3) A point of collection of pools or ponds of water.  
(4) A point of concentration of quantities of gasoline, oil, and other flammable or explosive 

materials as evidenced by odor.  
(5) One which has areas of confinement which cannot be operated from the inside such as 

trunks, hoods, etc.  
(6) Situated or located so that there is a danger of its falling or turning over.  
(7) Any other vehicle specifically declared a health and safety hazard and a public nuisance by 

the City Council.  
(8) So offensive to the sight as to damage the community, neighborhood, or area appearance, 

upon the finding by the authorizing official, that such aesthetic regulation is necessary and 
desirable for the protection of property values, promotion of tourism, indirect protection of 
health and safety, preservation of the character and integrity of the community, or promotion 
of the comfort, happiness, and emotional stability of area residents; or  

(9) Used by children in play activities.  
 
An authorizing official means the supervisory employee of the Police Department or the Planning 
Department, respectively, designated to authorize the removal of vehicles under the provisions of 
this article. 
 
§ 90.03 DUTY OF OWNER TO REMOVE. 
 
   (A)   (1)   If a motor vehicle is abandoned or junked on a public street or highway, it shall be 
the duty and responsibility of the owner of such motor vehicle to cause the removal thereof 
immediately and to pay all costs incident to such removal. 
      (2)   It shall be unlawful for any person to allow a motor vehicle owned by him to remain 
abandoned on a public street or highway after notice has been duly given to such person to have 
the vehicle removed. 
   (B)   (1)   If a motor vehicle is junked on private property, it shall be the duty and responsibility 
of the owner of such motor vehicle to cause the removal thereof immediately and to pay all costs 
incident to such removal. 
      (2)   It shall be unlawful for any person to allow a motor vehicle owned by him to remain 
junked on private property after notice has been duly given to such person to have the vehicle 
removed. 
      (3)   One junked motor vehicle, in its entirety, can be located in the rear yard, as defined by 
the city's Unified Development Code, if the junked motor vehicle is entirely concealed from 
public view from a public street and from abutting premises by a manufactured car cover and is 
not surrounded by overgrown weeds or grass. The city has the authority to determine whether 
any junked motor vehicle is adequately concealed and located as required by this provision. The 
covering must remain in good repair and must not be allowed to deteriorate. The covering or 
enclosure must be compatible with the objectives stated in the preamble of the ordinance from 
which this subsection is derived. 
 



§ 90.03 UNLAWFUL; REMOVAL AUTHORIZED. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner, or person entitled to possession of a vehicle, to 
cause or allow such vehicle to be abandoned. Upon investigation, proper officials of the City may 
determine that a vehicle is an abandoned vehicle and order the vehicle to be removed.  
 
§ 90.04 REMOVAL BY CITY. 
 
   Whenever any motor vehicle is abandoned or junked on a public street or highway, or on 
property owned or operated by the city, or on private property, any such vehicle may be removed 
by or under the direction of the Director of Planning or his designee or Chief of Police, or their 
designee to a storage garage or area; provided, no merely abandoned vehicle shall be removed 
from private property without the written request or permission of the owner, lessee or occupant 
thereof unless the same has been declared by the Director of Planning or the City Council to be a 
health or safety hazard. 
 
§ 90.04 NUISANCE VEHICLE REMOVAL AUTHORIZED. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner of a motor vehicle, or for the owner, lessee, or 
occupant of the real property upon which the vehicle is located, to leave or allow the vehicle to 
remain on the property after it has been declared a nuisance vehicle. Upon investigation, proper 
officials of the Planning Department may determine and declare that a vehicle is a health or safety 
hazard and a nuisance vehicle, and order the vehicle removed.  
 
§ 90.05 COSTS OF REMOVAL; NOTICE TO OWNER. 
 
   (A)   When an abandoned or junked motor vehicle is removed from private property at the 
request of the owner, lessee or occupant thereof, the person at whose request such vehicle is 
removed shall be required to pay or otherwise indemnify the city for any expenses incurred by 
reason of the removal and storage of such vehicle. When the city removes a junked vehicle from 
private property, due to a violation of § 90.03, the property owner shall pay to the city an 
administrative fee of $100 and real costs incurred by reason of the removal. The vehicle owner 
shall pay to the city all administrative and real costs incurred by reason of the towing, storage 
and disposition of the vehicle. 
   (B)   The owner of any vehicle removed hereunder from any public street or highway, or any 
property owned or operated by the city, or any private property, shall pay to the city an 
administrative fee of $100 and all reasonable costs incident to the removal and storage of such 
vehicle and to locating the owner thereof. 
   (C)   Written notice of each removal of an abandoned or junked vehicle and of the possible sale 
or disposition thereof shall be given as promptly as possible to the owner thereof at his last 
known address according to the latest registration certificate or certificate of title on file with the 
State Department of Motor Vehicles. 
   (D)   Notice need not be given to the registered owner when the vehicle does not display a 
license plate and the vehicle identification numbers have been removed or defaced so as to be 
illegible. 
   (E)   The owner of a towed vehicle may, within 20 days of the notice required by § 90.06, 
request a hearing before the City Manager to contest the towing and charges therefor, pursuant to 
G.S. § 160A-303. 
 
§ 90.05 REMOVAL; PRETOWING NOTICE REQUIREMENTS. 
 
(A) Except as set forth in section 90.05, a vehicle to be towed or otherwise removed because it 

has been abandoned or declared to be a nuisance vehicle, shall be towed only after notice to 
the owner or person entitled to possession of the vehicle. Notice shall be given by affixing on 
the windshield, or some other conspicuous place on the vehicle, a notice indicating that the 
vehicle will be removed by the City on a specified date, no sooner than seven days after notice 
is affixed, unless the vehicle is moved by the owner or legal possessor prior to such time.  

 
(B) If the owner or person entitled to possession of an abandoned or nuisance vehicle on private 

property does not remove the vehicle, but chooses to appeal the determination that the vehicle 
is abandoned or a nuisance vehicle, such appeal shall be made to the Planning Director in 
writing, and further proceedings to remove the vehicle shall be stayed until the appeal is heard 
and decided.  

 
§ 90.06 SALE OF ABANDONED MOTOR VEHICLES. 



 
   If an abandoned motor vehicle is worth $100 (value to be determined by the Planning Director) 
or more and should the owner thereof refuse to pay the aforementioned costs or should the 
identity or whereabouts of such owner be unknown and unascertainable after a diligent search, it 
shall, after being held by the city for 30 days and after 20 days' written notice to the registered 
owner at his last known address if his identity is known, and to the holders of all liens of record 
against the vehicle, and to the State Department of Motor Vehicles, be sold by the Director of 
Planning or his designee at public auction. However, any person having an interest in the vehicle 
may redeem it at any time before the sale by paying all costs, including administrative and legal 
fees of the city, which have accrued to date. 
 
§ 90.06 NOTICE REQUIREMENT EXCEPTIONS. 
 
(A) The requirement that notice be affixed to an abandoned or nuisance vehicle at least seven 

days prior to removal may, as determined by the authorizing officer, be omitted in 
circumstances where there is a special need for prompt action to eliminate traffic obstructions 
or to otherwise maintain and protect the public safety and welfare.  

 
(B) The Chief of Police determines that immediate removal of vehicles left on the public streets 

and highways is warranted when such vehicles are:  
 

(1) Obstructing traffic.  
(2) Parked in a no stopping or standing zone.  
(3) Parked in loading zones. 
(4) Parked in bus zones; or  
(5) Parked in violation of temporary parking restrictions.  

 
(C) Abandoned or nuisance vehicles left on City-owned property other than on streets, highways, 

and private property, may be removed without giving the minimum seven days' prior notice 
only in those circumstances where the authorizing official finds, and enters such findings in 
appropriate daily records, a special need for prompt action to protect and maintain the public 
health, safety, and welfare. By way of illustration but not limitation, such circumstances shall 
include vehicles blocking or obstructing ingress or egress to businesses and residences, 
vehicles parked in such a location or manner as to pose a traffic hazard, and vehicles causing 
damage to public or private property.  

 
§ 90.07 DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE OF ABANDONED MOTOR VEHICLE. 
 
   The proceeds of the sale of an abandoned motor vehicle shall be paid to the city and the 
Director of Finance shall pay from such proceeds the costs of removal, storage, investigation, 
sale and liens, in that order. The remainder of the proceeds of sale, if any, shall be paid over to 
the registered owner, or held by the city for 60 days if the registered owner cannot be located 
with reasonable diligence. If the owner does not claim the remainder of the proceeds within 60 
days after the sale, the funds shall be deposited into the city's general fund and the owner's rights 
therein shall be forever extinguished. 
 
§ 90.07 REMOVAL; POST-TOWING NOTICE. 
 
(A) Any vehicle which has been determined to be an abandoned or nuisance vehicle may be 

removed to a storage garage or area by the tow truck operator or towing business utilized to 
perform such services for the City. Whenever such a vehicle is removed, the authorizing City 
official shall immediately notify the last known registered owner of the vehicle; which notice 
shall include the:  

 
(1) Description of the removed vehicle. 
(2) Location where the vehicle is stored. 
(3) Violation with which the owner is charged, if any.  
(4) Procedure the owner must follow to redeem the vehicle; and  
(5) Procedure the owner must follow to request a probable cause hearing on the removal of 

such vehicle.  
 
(B) Notice of removal shall, if feasible, be given by telephone; however, whether or not the owner 

is reached by telephone, written notice, including the information set forth in subsection 
(A)(1)-(5) of this section, shall also be mailed to the owner's last known address, unless this 
notice is waived in writing by the vehicle owner or their agent.  



 
(C) If the vehicle is registered in the state, notice of removal shall be given within 24 hours of 

such removal of the vehicle. If the vehicle is not registered in the state, notice of removal shall 
be given to the registered owner within 72 hours from the removal of the vehicle.  

 
(D) Whenever an abandoned or nuisance vehicle is removed, and such vehicle has no valid 

registration or registration plate, the authorizing City official shall make reasonable efforts, 
including checking the vehicle identification number, to determine the last known registered 
owner of the vehicle, and to notify them of the information as set forth in subsection (A)(1)-
(5) of this section.  

 
§ 90.08 DISPOSITION OF JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES. 
 
   (A)   With the consent of the owner, the Building Inspector, or his designee, may dispose of 
any vehicle as a junked motor vehicle without holding it for any prescribed period of time. 
   (B)   Any unclaimed junked motor vehicle as defined by this chapter shall be held for a period 
of at least 15 days. The owner of any such vehicle may claim his vehicle during the 15-day 
retention period by exhibiting proof of ownership to the Building Inspector and after paying all 
reasonable costs incident to the removal and storage of the vehicle plus administrative expenses. 
If after the vehicle is held 15 days it remains unclaimed, the vehicle may be destroyed or sold at 
private sales as junk. Within 15 days after final disposition of a junked motor vehicle, written 
notice thereof shall be given to the State Department of Motor Vehicles that the vehicle has been 
determined to be a junked motor vehicle and disposed of as such. The notice shall contain as full 
and accurate a description of the vehicle as can be reasonably determined. 
 
§ 90.08 RIGHT TO PROBABLE CAUSE HEARING. 
 

After removal of a vehicle declared to be an abandoned or nuisance vehicle, the owner or any 
person entitled to possession of such vehicle, is entitled to a hearing for the purpose of determining 
if probable cause existed for removing the vehicle. A request for such hearing must be filed with 
the county magistrate designated by the chief district court judge to receive such hearing requests. 
The magistrate will set the hearing within 72 hours of receipt of the request, and the hearing will 
be conducted in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 20-219.11.  
 
§ 90.09 DISPOSITION OF UNIDENTIFIED VEHICLES. 
 
   Vehicles not displaying a license plate and whose identification numbers have been removed or 
defaced so as to be illegible may be destroyed or sold at a private sale, without regard to value, 
after being held for 48 hours. 
 
§ 90.09 REDEMPTION OF VEHICLE DURING PROCEEDINGS. 
 

At any stage in the proceedings, including before the probable cause hearing, the owner 
may obtain possession of the removed vehicle by paying the towing fee, or posting a bond for 
double the amount of the towing fee, to the private tow truck operator or towing business having 
custody of the removed vehicle.  
 
§ 90.10 DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE OF JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE. 
 
   The proceeds of the sale of a junked motor vehicle, after all costs of removal, storage, 
investigation and sale, and satisfaction of any liens of record on the vehicle have been deducted 
therefrom, shall be held by the Director of Finance for 30 days and paid to the registered owner 
upon demand. If the owner does not appear to claim the remainder of the proceeds within 30 
days after disposal of the vehicle, the funds shall be deposited into the city general fund and the 
owner's rights therein shall be forever extinguished. 
 
§ 90.10 SALE AND DISPOSITION OF UNCLAIMED VEHICLES. 
 

Any vehicle declared to be an abandoned or nuisance vehicle, which is not claimed by the 
owner or other party entitled to possession, will be disposed of by the private tow truck operator 
or towing business having custody of the vehicle. Disposition of such vehicle shall be carried out 
in coordination with the City and in accordance with N.C.G.S. 44A-1 et seq.  
 
§ 90.11 IMMUNITY. 



 
   Neither the city nor any person shall be held to answer in any civil or criminal action to any 
owner or other person legally entitled to the possession of any abandoned, lost or stolen vehicle 
for disposing of such vehicle as contemplated by this chapter. 
 
§ 90.11 REMOVAL OF VEHICLE FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY. 
 

As a general policy, the City will not remove a vehicle from private property if the owner, 
occupant, or lessee of such property could have the vehicle removed under applicable State law 
procedures. No vehicle will be removed by the City from private property without a written request 
of the owner, occupant, or lessee, except in those cases where a vehicle is declared a nuisance 
vehicle. The City may require any person requesting the removal of an abandoned or nuisance 
vehicle from private property to indemnify the city against any loss, expense, or liability incurred 
because of the removal, storage, or sale thereof.  
 
§ 90.12 LIMITATIONS OF PROVISIONS. 
 
   Nothing in this chapter shall apply to any vehicle in an enclosed building or any vehicle on the 
premises of a business enterprise being operated in a lawful place and manner if the vehicle is 
necessary to the operation of the enterprise, or to any vehicle which is lawfully used on a regular 
basis for personal or business purposes or to any vehicle in an appropriate storage place or 
depository maintained in a lawful place or manner. 
 
§ 90.12 PROTECTION AGAINST CRIMINAL OR CIVIL LIABILITY. 
 

No person shall be held to answer to any civil or criminal action to any owner or other person 
legally entitled to the possession of any abandoned or nuisance vehicle, for disposing of such 
vehicle as provided in this article.  
 
§ 90.13 EXCEPTIONS. 
 

Nothing in this article shall apply to any vehicle:  
 
(1) In an enclosed building.  
(2) On the premises of a business enterprise being operated in a lawful place and manner, if 

the vehicle is necessary to the operation of the enterprise, or  
(3) In an appropriate storage place or depository maintained in a lawful place and manner by 

the City.  
 
§ 90.14 REMOVAL OF IMPOUNDED VEHICLE. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, or attempt to remove, from any storage facility 
designated by the City, any vehicle which has been impounded pursuant to the provisions of this 
article, unless and until all towing and impoundment fees, or bond in lieu of such fees, have been 
paid.  

 
§ 90.15—90.19 RESERVED. 
 
  
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 7th day of October, 2024. 
 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
 Charles Gaylor, IV 

Mayor 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Laura Getz 
City Clerk  



H





PASS

hjones
Pencil



hjones
Pencil

















I



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 9 to

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2024 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL

JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT ( JAG) APPLICATION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro wishes to submit an application for the 2024
Justice Assistance Grant Funds. The Grant requires that the application be filed on behalf of

both the Goldsboro Police Department and the Wayne County Sheriff' s Office; and

WHEREAS, the total amount of the grant is $ 41, 745. 00. The Goldsboro Police

Department will be eligible to receive $ 26, 987. 00, and the Wayne County Sheriff' s Office
will be eligible to receive $ 14, 758. 00; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Police Department wishes to purchase thirty ( 30) 

automated license plate reader cameras for in -car camera systems and associated allied

equipment, and one ( 1) complete new in -car video system in the amount of $26, 956. 11 and

taxes in the amount of $2, 335. 30, for a total of $28,392.41. These cameras will be used to

attempt to locate stolen vehicles, vehicles of missing persons, or other vehicles of interest in
ongoing investigations; and

WHEREAS, the Wayne County Sheriff' s Office wishes to utilize their $ 14, 758. 00

allotted portion of the grant funds towards the purchase of eight ( 8) pepper ball launchers and

associated allied equipment. These launchers will be used as a less than lethal use of force

option for the agency in cases of barricaded persons and non- compliant subjects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Goldsboro Police Department is authorized to apply for the 2024 JAG Funds
in the amount of $41, 745. 00. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
7th

day of
October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

sa-u IL;h— 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

L Q Mayor

AT~ 

I

1





J



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 91

RESOLUTION OF AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF

THE USE OF PUBLIC UTILITIES CAPITAL RESERVE FUND FOR

FABRICATION OF A NEW INTAKE SCREEN

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Water Treatment Plant requires the fabrication of a new
Intake Screen for the Neuse River Pump Station Intake Structure; and

WHEREAS, it is requested that the funding of $109, 872. 00 from the Public Utilities Capital
Reserve Fund be approved to complete this project fabrication; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under § 143- 129( e)( 6)( iii) to exempt
purchases from bidding requirements when standardization or compatibility is the overriding
consideration; and

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City contract services with Elgin Separation
Solutions Norris Screen Manufacturing in an amount not to exceed $ 109, 872. 00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Goldsboro
North Carolina that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract with Elgin
Fabrications in an amount not to exceed $ 109, 872. 00 to fabricate a new intake screen

for the Neuse River Intake Structure. 

2. The funding request of $65, 500 from the Public Utilities Capital Reserve Fund and
44,372. 00 for the Utility Fund be approved for a total of $109, 872. 00. 

3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
7th

day of October. 

Attested by: 

1"' Ju— 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Z; le,  5  --, '-    
e Charles Gaylor

Mayor



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 9 $ 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FUNDING OFFER FROM

NORTH CAROLINA DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTUCTURE ( DWI) 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Water Infrastructure ( DWI) funded $ 500, 000

from the State to assist eligible units of government with meeting their water/ wastewater infrastructure
needs; and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered North
Carolina Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) funding in the amount of $500,000 to perform a
PFAS evaluation and pilot study as detailed in the submitted application; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed
scope of work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro does hereby accept the North Carolina Division of Water Infrastructure
DWI) offer of $500,000. 

2. The City of Goldsboro does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be
adhered to. 

Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed to furnish
such information as the appropriate State Agency may request in connection with such
application or the project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other

documents as may be required by the Division of Water Infrastructure. 

Adopted this
7th

day of October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

1-1 Aj - 
Laura Getz

ki

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor

Mayor



L



 
City of Goldsboro 

Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 1 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Prepared by: Finance and City 
Manager’s Office    

Submitted by: Finance  Supersedes: 4/17/2023 Approved by: City Council    

 
Purpose 
 
This policy details the management, operations, and maintenance of City of Goldsboro (City) 
government owned and leased vehicles and motorized equipment (fleet), and the associated fuel 
procedures, to ensure a safe work environment for employees, a positive public image, and protect 
against liability. 
 
Management 
 
The city manager, in coordination with department heads, is responsible for the development and 
implementation of this policy. Department heads are responsible for tasks herein and the 
development and implementation of appropriate department standard operating procedures. 
 
Department heads will authorize and assign the use of all City-owned or leased vehicles assigned 
to their department to an employee or divisional supervisor via the Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Acknowledgement Statement (Attachment A) and the Department Fleet Assignment List 
(Attachment B). Take-home vehicles for emergency on-call employees must be approved by the 
city manager via Attachment B. 
 
The City Public Works Fleet Maintenance (Garage) supervisor will assign a City vehicle or 
motorized equipment number and be responsible for all maintenance and repair of these assets 
unless otherwise approved by the Public Works director and department head for certified 
employees; this maintenance will be documented with the Garage supervisor or responsible 
department head shall ensure that sufficient records are maintained. The Garage supervisor may 
contract maintenance and repairs as approved by the Public Works director and city manager. The 
Garage supervisor will also assign a key and fuel fob to each City vehicle and motorized 
equipment. 
 
Operations 
 
The use of City-owned vehicles and motorized equipment is restricted to City employees who are 
at least 18 years of age, who retain a valid North Carolina (NC) driver’s license and special 
endorsements or licenses as required by the NC Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV), and are 
engaged in their official duties as an employee of the City (this may include commutes to and from 
work and normal meal periods within on-duty hours). Only city employees or authorized personnel 
on official duties are allowed to ride in city owned vehicles.  Written pre-authorization from the 
City Manager’s office must be obtained for non-city employees riding in city vehicles in an official 
capacity. Prohibited uses include use for political or partisan purposes, and personal use except as 
noted above. Exceptions to written pre-authorization shall be authorized by standard procedures 
implemented by the City Manager’s office. Improper use may be considered misappropriation of 
assets, and as such violations of this policy regarding use may result in disciplinary action up to 
and including termination, and may also include legal action. 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 2 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
 
All operators and occupants of City vehicle and motorized equipment shall observe the following: 
 
1. All traffic laws are to be obeyed as outlined by the DMV Administrative Code and NC General 

Statute. 
2. Seat belt usage is mandatory for all occupants (except detainees per Goldsboro Police 

Department (GPD) General Order GO7.11). 
3. Cellular phone use (i.e., talking, texting, emailing, or reading emails) is prohibited while 

driving a vehicle or operating motorized equipment unless hands-free devices are used. If cell 
phone use is required without hands-free devices, park the vehicle or equipment in a safe 
location until the cell phone is no longer used. 

4. Tobacco, e-cigarettes, or vaping product use is prohibited. 
5. Weapons are prohibited (except for authorized law enforcement personnel). 
6. The warranty booklet (if available), registration card, insurance card, inspection certificate, 

and owner’s manual shall be maintained in the glove box. 
7. Installed special equipment (e.g., fire extinguisher, flashlight, first aid kit) shall be properly 

accounted for, maintained, and used only for official City business.  
8. Personal items are a personal responsibility; the City will not be responsible for damage or loss 

of personal items. 
9. Alcoholic beverages and illegal drugs are prohibited (except for authorized law enforcement 

personnel, emergency medical personnel, and public safety personnel who transport alcoholic 
beverages or drugs that have been lawfully confiscated or scheduled for training and employees 
authorized to handle alcoholic beverages for resale at City facilities from the distributor to the 
facility). 

10. Passengers who are not City employees or contracted employees are prohibited except on 
official City business or as authorized in writing by the operator’s department head, or as noted 
in Exceptions below. 

11. Operators shall park vehicles or motorized equipment not being used in safe and secure 
locations. 
 
Exceptions 
1. The use of City-owned vehicles for the transportation of participants (non-city employees)  

in parks and recreation, police, fire, community relations, travel and tourism, downtown 
development programs,  or other activities as approved in writing by the City Manager. 

2. The use of City-owned police vehicles to transport individuals(non-city employees) as part 
of law enforcement activities and subject to General Orders issued by the Police 
department. 

3. The use of City-owned golf carts or gators in parks and recreation by City employees ages 
16-18 who retain a valid North Carolina (NC) driver’s license.  

4. The use of City-owned police vehicles driven by authorized City volunteers over the age 
of 18 who retain a valid North Carolina (NC) driver’s license and subject to General Orders 
issued by the Police department. 

5. City Manager shall have the authority to grant additional exceptions in writing as requested 
by department heads so long as it is not prohibited by the City’s insurance carriers or places  
excessive risk on the City. 
 
 
 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 3 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
Take Home Vehicles 
 
The city manager will determine whether circumstances warrant a vehicle driven home by a City 
employee. This determination will consider such facts as the purpose for which the vehicle is being 
driven home, the hours during which the vehicle is to be used, and other pertinent information. 
Authorization of a take home vehicle should be providing in writing by the City Manager to the 
department head and to the Finance Director. Issuance of take home law enforcement vehicles 
shall not require the approval of the City Manager and shall adhere to the General Orders issued 
by the Police department. Take home vehicles issued to bona fide law enforcement officers are 
excepted from the commute value calculation required by the IRS.  Use of City vehicles for 
commuting to and from work usually will generally be limited to an employee who is subject to 
emergency call-back work. Employees who drive City-owned vehicles back and forth to work will 
be subject to all provisions of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regarding the private use of City 
vehicles. “De Minimis” (very small or trifling matters) use of City-owned property, exemplified 
by vehicle use for stops in route from residence to workplace for personal business, is not 
prohibited by the IRS. Such stops will be kept to a minimum. 

 
The commuting costs of the use of a City vehicle may be a taxable fringe benefit to an employee 
for any vehicle not specifically designated as exempt under the IRS regulations. The Finance 
department shall compute the commuting cost of any vehicle taken home by a non-exempt 
employee and report this taxable benefit on the employee’s Form W-2 at the end of each calendar 
year. The City will only deduct FICA taxes on the cost of this benefit. No federal or state income 
taxes will be deducted by the City; the payment of these taxes will be the employee’s responsibility 
when his or her personal income tax return is filed. The gross cost of this benefit is not subject to 
local government retirement deductions. Certain exceptions for public safety exist and shall be 
determined by the finance department. 
 
Personnel not specifically authorized in writing to take home a City vehicle are prohibited from 
doing so unless advance written permission is granted by the department head for a temporary 
cause. 

 
Inclement Weather 
 
The use of City-owned vehicles during inclement weather shall be limited to essential and 
emergency personnel. During freezing conditions, department heads shall contact the Garage 
supervisor for the installation of snow tires or chains and the use of four-wheel drive vehicles when 
possible. 
 
Accident/Crash Actions and Reporting 
 
In the event of a motor vehicle or equipment accident/crash, the following actions and reports shall 
be done as soon as possible by those involved: 
 
1. Remain calm and check on the welfare of others. 
2. Do not admit fault. 
3. Call 911. 
4. Notify the department head or supervisor. 
5. Notify the appropriate law enforcement agency. 
6. Notify the City safety coordinator as outlined in the City Safety Policy Manual. 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 4 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
7. Submit a signed statement explaining the details surrounding the accident to the Finance 

department insurance claims, billing, and collections manager within 24 hours. Pictures should 
be taken if possible and submitted with the statement. 

8. The department head or supervisor will be responsible for obtaining repair estimates and 
coordinating the work with the Garage superintendent. This information shall be forwarded to 
the insurance claims, billing, and collections manager. 

9. The insurance claims, billing and collections manager shall be responsible for notifying the 
appropriate insurance carrier to report any claims activity. 

 
Drug Tests 

 
1. An employee shall submit to a post-accident drug test if he/she is involved in a traffic accident 

or a violation of any law while performing his or her duties as a City employee. 
• The department head/supervisor should take the employee to Immediate Care during 

regular business hours or to the nearest emergency room after regular business hours. 
• If out of town, an employee must be tested at the nearest emergency room. 

2. An employee shall submit to a post-accident drug test if he/she is involved in an on-the-job 
accident where: 
• Death results; 
• Any person is injured and/or transported from the accident scene for medical attention; 
• Any of the vehicles are towed from the scene; or 
• The employee is cited for a moving violation. 

3. An employee shall submit to a drug test if there is reasonable suspicion that he or she is in 
violation of this policy based upon observed actions or physical evidence while performing his 
or her duties as a City employee. 

 
Key (Fob) Responsibility 

Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the City for the cost of replacing a misplaced or 
lost key or fob. The reimbursement should be made to the City within 30 days of purchase. If 
reimbursement is not made within 30 days, the cost may be deducted from the employee's payroll 
per the Employee Responsibility Form.  
 
Maintenance 
 
The employee to whom the vehicle or motorized equipment is assigned shall be responsible for 
keeping it clean and properly maintained.  
 
Interior detailing and exterior washes shall be done by the assigned employee. 
 
The assigned employee shall be responsible for scheduling maintenance with the City Garage: 
within 500 miles of the recommended mileage for said service; within the hours range of said 
service; for annual inspections; or as otherwise required. The assigned employee is responsible for 
drop off and pick up of vehicle at the City Garage or contracted vendor at the designated time.  
 
In case of an emergency breakdown, the operator shall call the City Garage for maintenance and 
tow service during work hours; after hours, contact Public Works dispatch at (919) 734-8674. 
Public safety vehicles (police and fire) will be given priority for maintenance and repairs. 
 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 5 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
Unsafe or dangerous vehicles and equipment should be removed from service by the department 
head with notice in writing to the Garage supervisor. The Garage supervisor will assist in obtaining 
a spare, if possible, until the asset is made safe and serviceable or replaced.  
 
Parks and Recreation Department staff have the authority to perform and document maintenance 
on their small engine motorized equipment (mowers, golf carts, etc.).  
 
Fire Department certified technicians have the authority to perform and document maintenance on 
their motorized equipment.   
 
Employee Accountability 
 
All employees using City-owned vehicles or equipment shall be accountable for their actions. The 
privilege to operate any City-owned vehicle or motorized equipment may be suspended, restricted, 
or revoked with cause by the department head or management.  
 
The safety coordinator shall investigate accidents involving City-owned vehicles and motorized 
equipment. Findings will be presented to the City safety committee, which will determine fault 
based on the facts of the investigation. The safety coordinator shall report findings and fault 
determination to the city manager, department head, and employee for appropriate action. 
 
Unauthorized personal use is prohibited. Such misuse is grounds for disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment with the City and may also include legal action. 
 
Should an employee who drives a City-owned vehicle be involved in an incident — on or off the 
job — where his/her license is suspended or revoked, the employee is obligated to inform his/her 
supervisor and department head within 24 hours of the incident; failure to do so shall result in 
disciplinary action according to the City Personnel Policy. 
 
Moving Violations 
 
Operators of City vehicles or motor equipment shall be responsible for any fines or penalties 
because of a violation of laws. Any violation for speeding 10 mph or more over the speed limit, 
reckless driving, driving while intoxicated (DWI), speeding in a school zone, or other serious 
moving violation shall be reported to the department head within 24 hours. Moving violations may 
be subject to disciplinary action. Drivers may be subject to random checks of their driving history. 
Failure to report a moving violation to your department head shall result in disciplinary action as 
outlined in the City Personnel Policy. 
 
Equipment Citations 
 
Employees who operate City vehicles shall ensure that their assigned vehicle is roadworthy. Any 
vehicle deemed unsafe should be reported to the department head and the Garage supervisor 
immediately. The operator should use good judgment to assure compliance with weight and 
marking regulations that apply to the vehicle he/she is operating. 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 6 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
Insurance Reporting 
 
Employees authorized to operate a vehicle or motorized equipment shall be reported to the City’s 
insurance carrier for the purpose of insurance coverage. The employee’s name, date of birth and 
driver’s license information are generally required to add an employee to the City’s auto insurance 
policy. 
 
Insurance on Rented Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 

Vehicles (cars, SUV’s, trucks, and vans) that are rented for the purpose of travel on city business 
are covered under the City’s auto insurance. Therefore, do not opt in on the auto insurance offered 
by the rental car company. If a bus, moving van or truck is rented, contact the Finance department 
insurance claims, billing, and collection manager to provide details of rental so that a determination 
can be made on insurance coverage. 

Rented motorized equipment is covered under the City’s property insurance as “borrowed 
equipment” but coverage is limited to $250,000 in cost. The department head is responsible for 
contacting the insurance claims, billing, and collection manager to report any equipment to be 
rented in excess of this amount so that the City may secure an additional endorsement. This must 
be done before the equipment is rented and must be done in writing (email is acceptable). 
 
 
Driver Training 
 
Each City department responsible for regularly transporting members of the general public, such 
as emergency units and specialty vehicles (e.g., bucket trucks, eight-passenger vans), is responsible 
for meeting driver training requirements. Internal or external training programs shall comply with 
standards set by the selected training system or applicable state laws (e.g., Commercial Driver’s 
License (CDL)). This training shall include initial education for new employees and continuing 
education for qualified drivers. 
 
 
Vehicle and Motorized Equipment Replacement 
 
The department head shall recommend vehicle and motorized equipment replacement to the city 
manager based on mileage, age, or condition during the annual budget submission or as required 
in accordance with manufacturer or professional organization guidelines.  The City Manager shall 
have the authority to prescribe the manner in which capital vehicles and motor equipment 
replacement is determined or scored. 
 
If any City vehicle is used to travel less than 1,000 miles per year, it may be re-issued to another 
department as deemed appropriate by the city manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP-002 10/7/2024 1 10/7/2024 7 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2023-33 

Approved by: City Council    

 
 
Use of City Fuel Pumps 
 
Fuel fob access to the City fuel pumps is strictly for fueling City-owned vehicles and equipment. 

 
Employees are expected to refuel city vehicles and equipment at the City’s fuel pumps, and not at 
retail fuel stations unless it is unavoidable or while traveling outside of Wayne County.  
 
Personal use of city fuel is prohibited. Such misuse is grounds for disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment with the City and may also include legal action. 
 
Duty to Notify of Fraud, Waste or Abuse 
 
Each employee is responsible for notifying management of instances of fraud, waste, or abuse of 
City property. Incidents may be reported to the employee’s supervisor, department head, city 
manager or finance director, and should be done as soon as possible. 
 
The City has the right to inspect City property at any given time for suspicion of illegal materials 
under reasonable circumstances, or as part of a routine inspection. 

 
Additional Reference: 

Fleet and Fuel Policy Acknowledgement Statement (Attachment A)  

Department Fleet Assignment List (Attachment B) 

City of Goldsboro Safety Policy (City Intranet) 

 

 









M



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 10 0

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO PROCUREMENT POLICY

APPENDIX A PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES WITH FEDERAL FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is a municipal body created by the State of North Carolina
and is required to comply with North Carolina state law and Federal law, and desires to establish policy to
provide governance over the acquisition of materials and services; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the Procurement Policy ( Policy) 
on March 17, 2014, and amended the Policy on June 25, 2018 to incorporate federal Uniform Guidance
procurement standards; and

WHEREAS, the Policy conforms to the requirements set by Uniform Administrative
Requirements and this policy update is intended to establish compliance with Federal guidelines; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Policy for changes in federal standards set forth in
Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Case No. 2018- 004. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City' s Procurement Policy, Appendix A is hereby amended to include the updated Federal
Standards set forth in ( FAR) Case No. 2018- 004 which includes updates to the federal Micro - 
purchase Threshold ( MPT) to Ten Thousand dollars ($ 10, 000) and the Simplified Acquisition

Threshold ( SAT) to Two Hundred Fifty Thousand dollars ($ 250, 000), and shall be effective as of

the date of this resolution. 

2. All actions heretofore taken by the City Manager and staff acting on behalf of the City of
Goldsboro in furtherance of foregoing resolutions are hereby ratified, adopted, approved, and
confirmed in all respects. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
7th

day of October, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gayl V

Mayor



 

 

Council Adopted 6-25-18 Amended 10/7/2024 

 
City of Goldsboro 
Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds 
 

I. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines that meet or exceed the procurement   
requirements for the purchase of goods (apparatus, supplies, materials, and equipment), services, 
and construction or repair projects when federal funds are being used in whole or in part to pay 
for the cost of the contract.  
 

II. Policy 
 

A. Application of Policy.  This policy applies to contracts for purchases, services, and 
construction or repair work funded with federal financial assistance (direct or reimbursed) 
which includes, but is not limited to, direct grants, USDA grants and loans, CDBG funds, FEMA 
disaster assistance grants, and the Highway Planning, Research, and Construction Program.  
The requirements of this Policy also apply to any subrecipient of the funds. 

 
All federally funded projects, loans, grants, and sub-grants, whether funded in part or wholly, 
are subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for federal awards (Uniform Guidance) codified at 2 C.F.R. Part 200 unless 
otherwise directed in writing by the federal agency or state pass-through agency that 
awarded the funds.  

 
B. Compliance with Federal Law.  All procurement activities involving the expenditure of federal 

funds must be conducted in compliance with the Procurement Standards codified in 2 C.F.R. 
§200.317 through §200-326 unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal agency or 
state pass-through agency that awarded the funds.  The City of Goldsboro will follow all 
applicable local, state, and federal procurement requirements when expending federal funds.  
Should the City of Goldsboro have more stringent requirements, the most restrictive 
requirement shall apply so long as it is consistent with state and federal law. 

 
C. Contract Award.  When bids are required by law, or otherwise solicited by the City, all 

contracts shall be awarded only to the lowest responsive responsible bidder possessing the 
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the contract.  Consideration 
shall be given to contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past 
performance, and financial and technical resources.  

 
D.  No Evasion.  No contract may be divided to bring the cost under bid thresholds or to evade 

any requirements under this policy or state and federal law.  
 
E. Contract Requirements. All contracts paid for in whole or in part with federal funds shall be 

in writing.  The written contract must include or incorporate by reference the provisions 
required under 2 C.F.R Section § 200.326 and as provided for under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Appendix II.  

 
F. Contractor’s Conflict of Interest. Designers, suppliers, and contractors that assist in the 

development or drafting of specifications, requirements, statements of work, invitation for 
bids or requests for proposals shall be excluded from competing for such requirements. 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 2 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 
G.  Approval and Modification.  The Administrative procedures contained in the Policy are 

administrative and may be changed as necessary at the staff level to comply with state and 
federal law. 

III. Procedures: 
 

General: The administrative procedures contained within this policy are administrative and may 
be changed as necessary at staff level to comply with the federal Procurement Standards within 
this Policy.  However, any policy changes must be approved by the governing body prior to 
becoming effective. 

 
Either the Purchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall procure all contracts in 
accordance with the requirements of this Section of the Policy.   
 
General Procurement Standards and Procedures: 
 
A. Necessity.  Purchases must be necessary to perform the scope of work and must avoid 

acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items (no stock-piling).  The Purchasing Department 
and/or the Requesting Department should check with the federal surplus property agency 
prior to buying new items when feasible and less expensive.  Strategic sourcing should be 
considered with other departments and/or agencies who have similar needs to consolidate 
procurements and services to obtain better pricing. 

 
B. Clear Specifications.  The Purchasing Department will ensure that all solicitations incorporate 

a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the materials, products, or 
services to be procured, and shall include all other requirements which bidders must fulfill 
and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.  Technical requirements must 
not contain features that restrict competition.   

 
C. Notice of Federal Funding. All bid solicitations must acknowledge the use of federal funding 

for the contract. In addition, all prospective bidders or offerors must acknowledge that 
funding is contingent upon compliance with all terms and conditions of the funding award.  

 
D. Compliance by Contractors. All solicitations should inform prospective contractors that they 

will need to comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, executive orders, FEMA 
requirements, and terms and conditions of the funding award. 

 
E. Fixed Price. Solicitations must state that the bidders shall submit bids on a fixed price basis 

and that the contract shall be awarded on this basis unless otherwise provided for in this 
Policy.  Cost plus percentage of cost contracts are prohibited. Time and materials contracts 
are prohibited in most circumstances.  Time and Materials (Cost-Plus) contracts will not be 
used unless no other form of contract is suitable and the contract includes a “Not to Exceed” 
amount.  A Time and materials contract shall not be awarded without the express written 
permission of the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the funds.  

 
F. Use of Brand Names.  When possible, performance or functional specifications are preferred 

to allow for more competition leaving the determination of how to reach the required result 
to the contractor. Brand names may be used only when it is impractical or uneconomical to 
write a clear and accurate description of the requirement(s). When a brand name is listed, it 
is used as reference only and “or equal” must be included in the description. 
 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 3 

Amended 10/7/2024 

G. Lease versus Purchase.  Under certain circumstances, it may be necessary to perform an 
analysis of lease versus purchase alternatives to determine the most economical approach.   
Note:  This comparison is necessary for most FEMA financial assistance programs following 
an emergency or major disaster declaration. 

 
H. Dividing Contract for M/WBE Participation.  If economically feasible, procurements may be 

divided into smaller components to allow maximum participation of small and minority 
businesses and women business enterprises.  The procurement cannot be divided to bring 
the cost under bid thresholds or to evade any requirements under this Policy.  

 
I. Documentation. Documentation must be maintained by the Purchasing Department and/or 

the Requesting Department detailing the history of all procurements.  The documentation 
should include procurement method used, contract type, basis for contractor selection, price, 
sources solicited, public notices, cost analysis, bid documents, addenda, amendments, 
contractor’s responsiveness, notice of award, copies of notices to unsuccessful bidders or 
offerors, record of protests or disputes, bond documents, notice to proceed, purchase order, 
and contract.  All documentation relating to the award of any contract must be made available 
to the granting agency upon request.  

 
J. Cost Estimate.  For all procurements costing $150,000 or more, the Purchasing Department 

and/or Requesting Department shall develop an estimate of the cost of the procurement prior 
to soliciting bids.  Cost estimates may be developed by reviewing prior contract costs, online 
review of similar products or services, or other means by which a good faith cost estimate 
may be obtained.  Cost estimates for construction and repair contracts may be developed by 
the project designer.  

 
K. Contract Requirements. The Requesting Department must prepare a written contract 

incorporating the provisions referenced in Section II. C. “Contract Award” of this Policy.   
 
L. Debarment.  No contract shall be awarded to a contractor included on the federally debarred 

bidder’s list.  Prior to preparing the contract, the Purchasing Department or the Requesting 
Department must verify that the contractor is not on the federally debarred bidder’s list. 

 
M. Contractor Oversight.  The Requesting Department receiving the federal funding must 

maintain oversight of the contract to ensure that contractor is performing in accordance with 
the contract terms, conditions, and specifications.   
 

N. Open Competition.  Solicitations shall be prepared in a way to be fair and provide open 
competition.  The City shall not restrict competition by imposing unreasonable requirements 
on bidders, including but not limited to unnecessary supplier experience, excessive or 
unnecessary bonding; specifying a brand name without allowing for “or equal” products, or 
other unnecessary requirement that have the effect of the restricting competition. 

 
O. Geographic Preference.  No contract shall be awarded on the basis of a geographic 

preference. 
 

P. Protests and Disputes. Bid protests and disputes will be in accordance to Fundamental 
Policies, Written Protest Procedures, page 6-8, City of Goldsboro Purchasing Policies and 
Procedures (2014). 
 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 4 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 
 

 
 
IV. Specific Procurement Procedures 
 
Either the Purchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall solicit bids in accordance with the 
requirements under this Section of the Policy based on the type and cost of the contract.  
 
 

Purchase Contracts  
Service Contracts (except for A/E professional services)  
Construction/Repair/Facility Improvement/Renovation 
 
Up to Micro-purchase threshold as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.67 ($3,500 as of 3/21/2017<$10,000):   
Shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “micro-purchase” procedure (2 C.F.R. §200.320(a))    
 

Procedures are as follows: 

 No bidding is required  

 Price must be considered fair and reasonable 

 To the extent practicable, purchases must be distributed among qualified suppliers 

 Contract must be in writing (this could be in the form of a purchase order) 
 

 
 

Purchase Contracts  
Service Contracts (except for A/E Professional Services) 

 
$3,500 $10,000 up to $90,000:  
Shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “small-purchase” procedure (2 C.F.R. §200.320(b))   
 

Procedures are as follows: 

 Cost or price analysis is NOT required prior to soliciting bids 

 Obtain written price quotes from an adequate number of suppliers or sources (which 
shall not be less than two (2) quotes)  
Check specific grant as some agencies may require more than two (2) quotes 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
required under 2 C.F.R. §200.321 

 Award contract as a Fixed Price. A Not to Exceed basis is permissible for service 
contracts only where obtaining a fixed price is not feasible. 

 Award to lowest responsive, responsible bidder 

 Contract must be in writing (purchase contracts may be in the form of a purchase 
order; service contracts and construction repair require use of contract template) 

 Cannot use a cooperative purchasing program as an Exception to the Bidding 
 
 

Service Contracts (Excluding A/E Professional Services) ($90,000 up to $150,000 $250,000) 
Purchase Contracts ($90,000 and above) 
 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 5 

Amended 10/7/2024 

Shall be procured using a combination of the most restrictive requirements of the Uniform Guidance 
“Sealed Bid” procedure (2 C.F.R. §200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 143-129)  
      
  



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 6 

Amended 10/7/2024 

Procedures are as follows: 

 Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids 

 Complete specifications or purchase description must be available to all bidders 

 Public Advertisement: (Electronic Advertising is authorized)   

o Legal notice must reserve to the governing board the right to reject any 
or all bids only for “sound documented reasons.” 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Solicit from adequate number of known suppliers 

 Bids must be submitted sealed 

 Public Bid Opening  

 Must have two (2) sealed bids submitted 

 Bids may only be rejected for “sound documented reasons” 

 Award contract as a fixed-price. A Not to Exceed basis is permissible for service 
contracts only where obtaining a fixed price is not feasible. 

 Award to lowest, responsive, responsible bidder 

 Contract must be in writing (purchase contracts may be in the form of a purchase 
order; service contracts and construction repair require use of contract template) 

 Cannot use a cooperative purchasing program as an Exception to the Bidding 

 Governing board approval is not required (per local policy, governing board has 
delegated award authority to City Manager) 

 
Service Contracts (except for A/E Professional Services) 
 

$150,000 $250,000 and above  
Shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “competitive proposal” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(d)) 
when the “sealed bid” procedure is not appropriate for the particular type of service being sought. 

 
Note: RFP’s (Competitive Proposals) can only be used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of 
sealed bids such as service contracts.  This can be used for all types of contracts $150,000 and over. 

 
Procedures are as follows for competitive proposal method: 

 Publicly advertised. Formal advertisement in a newspaper is not required so long as 
the method of advertisement will solicit proposals from an “adequate number” of 
qualified firms. 

 Solicit from adequate number of qualified firms 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Identify evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria (criteria weight) 
in the RFP. 

 All responses must be considered to the maximum extent practical. 

 Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals and 
selecting the winning firm. 

 Award the contract to the responsible firm with most advantageous proposal taking 
into account price and other factors identified in the RFP.   

 Governing board approval is required per local policy. 

 Award the contract on a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement basis 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included 

 Cannot use a cooperative purchasing program as an Exception to the Bidding 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 7 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 
 

Construction/Repair/Facility Improvement/Renovation 
 
$3,500 $10,000 up to $150,000$250,000:    
Shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “small purchase” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(b))  

 
Procedures are as follows: 

 Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids, although price estimates 
may be provided by the project designer. 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Obtain written price quotes from an adequate number of suppliers or sources 
(typically means two (2) however, verify with granting agency) 

 Award Contract on a fixed-price or not to exceed basis  

 Award to lowest responsive, responsible bidder 

 Governing Board approval is not required 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included  
 
 

Construction/Repair/Facility Improvement/Renovation 
 
$150,000 $250,000 up to $500,000:    
Shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “sealed bid” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) 

         
Procedures are as follows: 

 Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate may be 
provided by the project designer). 

 Complete specifications must be made available to all bidders 

 Public Advertisement: Advertise the bid solicitation for a period of time sufficient to 
give bidders notice of opportunity to submit bids (formal advertisement in a 
newspaper is not required so long as other means of advertising will provide sufficient 
notice of the opportunity to bid).  The advertisement must state the date, time, and 
location of the public bid opening, and indicate where specifications may be obtained 

 Solicit from adequate number of known suppliers 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Bids must be submitted sealed 

 Public Bid Opening  

 Must have two (2) sealed bids submitted prior to opening 

 5% Bid Bond (a bid that does not contain a bid bond cannot be counted toward the 
two (2) bid requirement 

 Performance and Payment Bonds for 100% of contract price 

 Bids may only be rejected for “sound documented reasons” 

 Contract awarded on firm-fixed price basis 

 Award to lowest responsive, responsible bidder 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included  

 Governing Board approval is not required 
 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 8 

Amended 10/7/2024 

* Building Projects over $300,000 – See Notes on next page 
  



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 9 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 
Note: Construction or repair contracts involving a building $300,000 and above must also include:  

1. Formal HUB (historically underutilized business) participation required under G.S. 143-128.2, 
including local government outreach efforts and bidder good faith efforts shall apply.  

2. Separate specifications shall be drawn for the HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and general 
construction work as required under G.S. 143-128(a). 

3. The project shall be bid using a statutorily authorized bidding method (separate-prime, single-
prime, or dual bidding) as required under G.S. 143-129(a1). 

 

 
Construction/Repair/Facility Improvement/Renovation 
 

$500,000 and above:     
Shall be procured using a combination of the most restrictive requirements of the Uniform Guidance 
“sealed bid” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 143-129)  

 
Procedures are as follows: 

 Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate may be 
provided by the project designer). 

 Complete specifications must be made available to all bidders 

 Separate specifications shall be drawn for the HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and general 
construction work as required under G.S. 143-128(a). 

 The project shall be bid using a statutorily authorized bidding method (separate-
prime, single-prime, or dual bidding) as required under G.S. 143-129(a1). 

 Public Advertisement: (Electronic Advertising is authorized)   
o Legal notice must reserve to the governing board the right to reject any or all 

bids only for “sound documented reasons.” 

 Solicit from adequate number of known suppliers 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Good Faith MBE Requirements/Affidavits must be submitted 

 Bids must be submitted sealed and in paper form. 
 Public Bid Opening  

 Must have three (3) sealed bids submitted before opening 

 5% Bid Bond (a bid that does not contain a bid bond cannot be counted toward the 
three (3) bid requirement) 

 Performance and Payment Bonds for 100% of contract price 

 Bids can only be rejected for “sound documented reasons” 

 Contract awarded on firm-fixed Price basis 

 Award to lowest, responsive, responsible bidder 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included  

 Governing Board approval is required (cannot be delegated) 

 Governing board may reject and all bids only for “sound documented 
reasons.” 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 10 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 
 

Professional Services (Architectural and Engineering Services)  
 
Under $150,000 $250,000 
Shall be procured using the state “Mini-Brooks Act” requirements (G.S. 143-64.31)  

 
Procedures are as follows: 

 Issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications from qualified firms  

 Advertisement:  Solicit only - Newspaper is not required.   

 Price (other than unit cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
provided for under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Evaluate the qualifications of respondents based on the evaluation criteria developed 
by the Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department. 

 State licensure requirements apply 

 Rank respondents based on qualifications and select the best qualified firm.  

 Price cannot be a factor in the evaluation.  

 Preference may be given to in-state (but not local) firms. 

 Negotiate fair and reasonable compensation with the best qualified firm.  If 
negotiations are not successfully, repeat negotiations with the second-best qualified 
firm. 

 Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated.   

 Must be a fixed price or not to exceed contract type for services 

 Governing board approval is not required. 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included  
 

Professional Services (Architectural and Engineering Services)  
 
$150,000$250,000 and over 
Shall be procured shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “competitive proposal” 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(d)(5))  

 
Procedures are as follows: 

 Issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications from qualified firms  

 Advertisement:  Solicit only - Newspaper is not required).   

 Price (other than unit cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

 Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers as 
provided for under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

 Identify the evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria (the criteria 
weight) in the RFQ.  

 Proposals must be solicited from an “adequate number of qualified sources” (an 
individual federal grantor agency may issue guidance interpreting “adequate 
number”). 

 Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals and 
selecting the best qualified firm. 

 Consider all responses to the publicized RFQ to the maximum extent practical. 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 11 

Amended 10/7/2024 

 Evaluate qualifications of respondents based on the evaluation criteria developed by 
the Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department  

 Rank respondents based on qualifications and select the most qualified firm.  

 Preference may be given to in-state (but not local) firms provided that granting the 
preference leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms to compete for the 
contract given the nature and size of the project. 

 Price cannot be a factor in the initial selection of the most qualified firm. 

 Negotiate fair and reasonable compensation with the best qualified firm.  If 
negotiations are not successful, repeat negotiations with the second-best qualified 
firm. 

 Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated.   

 State licensure requirements apply 

 Must be a fixed price or not to exceed contract type for services 

 Governing board approval is not required. 

 Must have written contract with federal contract provisions included  
 
Note1:  Geographic preference can be given (in-state) as long as there is an appropriate number of 
qualified firms given the size of the project 

 
Note 2: RFQ process cannot be used for general consulting services or other services not defined by 
state law or PDAT Supplement, Section V-15 even if those services can be performed by an architectural 
or engineering firm. 
 
 
 
V.   Exceptions 

Non-competitive contracts are allowed only under the following conditions and with the written 
approval of the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the federal funds: 
 
A. Sole Source.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the item is available 

from only one source.  The Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department shall 
document the justification for and lack of available competition for the item.  A sole source 
contract must be approved by the governing board. 

 
B. Public Exigency.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when there is a public 

exigency.  A public exigency exists when there is an imminent or actual threat to public health, 
safety, and welfare, and the need for the item will not permit the delay resulting from a 
competitive bidding. 

 
C. Inadequate Competition.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when 

competition is determined to be inadequate after attempts to solicit bids from a number of 
sources as required under this Policy does not result in a qualified winning bidder. 

 
D. Federal Contract.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the purchase is 

made from a federal contract available on the U.S. General Services Administration schedules of 
contracts.  

 
E. Awarding Agency Approval.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding with the 

express written authorization of the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded 



City of Goldsboro 
Appendix A Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds  Page 12 

Amended 10/7/2024 

the federal funds so long as awarding the contract without competition is consistent with state 
law.   



Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-
Purchase and Simpli�ed Acquisition Thresholds;
2018-004

LEGAL STATUS

This site displays a prototype of a “Web 2.0” version of the daily Federal Register. It is not an o�cial legal edition
of the Federal Register, and does not replace the o�cial print version or the o�cial electronic version on GPO’s
govinfo.gov.

The documents posted on this site are XML renditions of published Federal Register documents. Each document
posted on the site includes a link to the corresponding o�cial PDF �le on govinfo.gov. This prototype edition of
the daily Federal Register on FederalRegister.gov will remain an uno�cial informational resource until the
Administrative Committee of the Federal Register (ACFR) issues a regulation granting it o�cial legal status. For
complete information about, and access to, our o�cial publications and services, go to About the Federal
Register on NARA's archives.gov.

The OFR/GPO partnership is committed to presenting accurate and reliable regulatory information on
FederalRegister.gov with the objective of establishing the XML-based Federal Register as an ACFR-sanctioned
publication in the future. While every effort has been made to ensure that the material on FederalRegister.gov is
accurately displayed, consistent with the o�cial SGML-based PDF version on govinfo.gov, those relying on it for
legal research should verify their results against an o�cial edition of the Federal Register. Until the ACFR grants it
o�cial status, the XML rendition of the daily Federal Register on FederalRegister.gov does not provide legal
notice to the public or judicial notice to the courts.

LEGAL STATUS

A Proposed Rule by the Defense Department, the General Services Administration,
and the National Aeronautics and Space Administration on 10/02/2019

PUBLISHED CONTENT - DOCUMENT DETAILS

Agencies: Department of DefenseGeneral Services Administration
National Aeronautics and Space Administration

Agency/Docket Numbers: FAR Case 2018-004Docket No. FAR-2018-0011, Sequence No. 1
CFR: 48 CFR 248 CFR 948 CFR 1348 CFR 1648 CFR 1948 CFR 2248 CFR 25

48 CFR 52
Document Citation: 84 FR 52420
Document Number: 2019-20796

Document Type: Proposed Rule
Pages: 52420-52425 (6 pages)

Publication Date: 10/02/2019
RIN: 9000-AN65

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 1/24

https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/the-federal-register/about.html
https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/the-federal-register/about.html
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/defense-department
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/general-services-administration
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/national-aeronautics-and-space-administration
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/defense-department
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/general-services-administration
https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/national-aeronautics-and-space-administration
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02
https://www.federalregister.gov/regulations/9000-AN65/federal-acquisition-regulation-far-far-case-2018-004-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisi


AGENCY:

ACTION:

SUMMARY:

DATES:

ADDRESSES:

Department of Defense
General Services Administration
National Aeronautics and Space Administration

48 CFR Parts 2, 9, 13, 16, 19, 22, 25, and 52
[FAR Case 2018-004; Docket No. FAR-2018-0011, Sequence No. 1]
RIN 9000-AN65

Department of Defense (DoD), General Services Administration (GSA), and National

Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA).

Proposed rule.

DoD, GSA, and NASA are proposing to amend the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) to

implement a section of the National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year (FY)

2017 and several sections of the NDAA for FY 2018 that increase the micro-purchase

threshold (MPT), increase the simpli�ed acquisition threshold (SAT), and clarify certain

procurement terms, as well as align some non-statutory thresholds with the MPT and SAT.

Interested parties should submit comments to the Regulatory Secretariat Division at one

of the addresses shown below on or before December 2, 2019 to be considered in the

formulation of a �nal rule.

Submit comments in response to FAR Case 2018-004 by any of the following methods:

 Regulations.gov: http://www.regulations.gov (http://www.regulations.gov). Submit
comments via the Federal eRulemaking portal by searching for “FAR Case 2018-004”.
Select the link “Comment Now” that corresponds with “FAR Case 2018-004.” Follow

■

DOCUMENT HEADINGS

PUBLISHED DOCUMENT: 2019-20796 (84 FR 52420)

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 2/24

http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Background

the instructions provided on the screen. Please include your name, company name (if
any), and “FAR Case 2018-004” on your attached document.

 Mail: General Services Administration, Regulatory Secretariat Division (MVCB), ATTN:
Lois Mandell, 1800 F Street NW, 2nd �oor, Washington, DC 20405.

■

Instructions: Please submit comments only and cite “FAR case 2018-004” in all

correspondence related to this case. All comments received will be posted without change

to http://www.regulations.gov (http://www.regulations.gov), including any personal and/or

business con�dential information provided. To con�rm receipt of your comment(s), please

check http://www.regulations.gov (http://www.regulations.gov), approximately two to three

days after submission to verify posting (except allow 30 days for posting of comments

submitted by mail).

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Mr. Michael O. Jackson, Procurement Analyst, at 202-208-4949 or

michaelo.jackson@gsa.gov (mailto:michaelo.jackson@gsa.gov) for clari�cation of content.

For information pertaining to status or publication schedules, contact the Regulatory

Secretariat Division at 202-501-4755. Please cite “FAR Case 2018-004”.

DoD, GSA, and NASA are proposing to amend the FAR to implement section 217(b) of the

NDAA for FY 2017 (Pub. L. 114-328 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328))

and sections 805, 806, and 1702(a) of the NDAA for FY 2018 (Pub. L. 115-91

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91)). The proposed rule will also replace

non-statutory, stated dollar thresholds that are intended to correspond with the MPT and

SAT, with the text “micro-purchase threshold” and “simpli�ed acquisition threshold.”

Referencing some stated thresholds by name instead of by a speci�c dollar value will ease

maintenance of regulations, given the likelihood of future changes to the threshold

amounts. Text clarifying the use of the approval thresholds, based on the increase of the

SAT, for sole source justi�cations executed under the simpli�ed procedures for certain

commercial items has been added to subpart 13.5.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 3/24

http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/
mailto:michaelo.jackson@gsa.gov
mailto:michaelo.jackson@gsa.gov
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91


II. Discussion and Analysis

Section 217(b) amends 41 U.S.C. 1902 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902) to

increase the MPT for acquisitions from institutions of higher education or related or

a�liated nonpro�t entities, or from nonpro�t research organizations or independent

research institutes, from $3,500 to $10,000, or a higher amount as determined appropriate

by the head of the agency and consistent with clean audit �ndings under 31 U.S.C. Chapter

75 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501), an internal institutional risk

assessment, or State law.

Section 806 increases the MPT in 41 U.S.C. 1902(a)

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902) to $10,000.

Section 805 increases the SAT to $250,000. (  print page 52421)

Section 1702(a) amends section 15(j)(1) of the Small Business Act (15 U.S.C. 644(j)(1)

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/644)) to replace speci�c dollar thresholds with

the terms “micro-purchase threshold” and “simpli�ed acquisition threshold.”

This rule proposes to amend the FAR, as follows:

At FAR Part 2, to—■

○ Replace “$3,500” with “$10,000” and add an exception to the MPT for acquisitions from

institutions of higher education or related or a�liated nonpro�t entities, nonpro�t research

organizations, or independent research institutes, at the de�nition of “micro-purchase

threshold” and,

○ Replace “$150,000” with “$250,000” at the de�nition of “simpli�ed acquisition threshold.”

At FAR Part 3, to replace “simpli�ed acquisition threshold” with “$150,000” at 3.502-3
to conform to 3.502-2(i).

■

At FAR part 9, to replace “$3,500” with “$10,000” as the Federal tax delinquency
threshold, at 9.406-2(b)(1)(v) replaces “$3,500” with “the threshold at FAR 9.104-5(a)
(2)” and at 9.407-2(a)(7) replaces “$3,500” with “the threshold at FAR 9.104-5(a)(2)”.
When an offeror indicates in its representations and certi�cations a delinquency in
excess of the threshold, a contracting o�cer must report that information to the
agency's suspending or debarring o�cial, and, a suspending or debarring o�cial may
suspend or debar a contractor for delinquent Federal taxes in excess of the threshold.

■

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 4/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1902
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/644
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/644


At FAR part 13, to replace “$3,500” with “the micro-purchase threshold” and
“$150,000” with “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” when addressing the thresholds
for acquisitions that are reserved exclusively for small business concerns;

■

○ At FAR 13.005, List of laws inapplicable to contracts and subcontracts at or below the

simpli�ed acquisition threshold, there is an impact of this increase in the SAT. This list was

�rst required by section 4101 of FASA (Pub. L. 103-355), now codi�ed at 41 U.S.C. 1906

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1906). FASA sections 4102-4104 made certain

laws inapplicable below the SAT, and made other laws inapplicable below $100,000. At the

time, these two thresholds were of equivalent value, so there was no problem with listing

all of them at FAR 13.005. Intervening escalation raised all of these thresholds to

$150,000. However, now that the SAT has been increased to $250,000, those thresholds

that were set at a dollar value rather than at the SAT, are not increasing to $250,000.

Therefore, the following laws should be removed from the list at FAR 13.005: 13.005(a)(1),

(a)(2), (a)(3), and (a)(5);

○ At FAR 13.501(a)(2) to clarify the procedures to be used for justi�cations of other than

full and open competition, when the simpli�ed acquisition threshold is raised, e.g., for

contingency operations.

At FAR part 16, to replace “$150,000” with “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” when
addressing the maximum threshold for �xed-ceiling-price contracts with retroactive
price redetermination and the maximum threshold for �rm-�xed-price, level-of-effort
term contracts, without higher level approval.

■

At FAR part 19, to replace “$3,500” with “the micro-purchase threshold” and/or
“$150,000” with “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” when addressing set-aside
requirements, and inserting the clause for FAR 52.219-14, Limitations on
Subcontracting.

■

At FAR part 22, speci�cally, 22.1803, replace “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold”
with “$150,000.”

■

At FAR part 25, to replace “$3,500” with “10,000” as the “signi�cant transaction”
amount an offeror may not exceed when engaging with Iran's Revolutionary Guard
Corps or any of its o�cials, agents, or a�liates.

■

At FAR part 52, to—■

○ Replace “$3,500” with “the threshold at 9.104-5(a)(2)” at FAR 52.209-5(a)(1)(i)(D) and

FAR 52.212-3(h)(4);

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 5/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1906
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1906


III. Expected Impact of the Proposed Rule and Proposed Cost Savings

○ Replace “$150,000” with the “simpli�ed acquisition threshold” as the subcontractor �ow-

down threshold for FAR 52.203-16, Preventing Personal Con�icts of Interest;

○ Replace “$3,500” with “the micro-purchase threshold” as the threshold an offer must

exceed, unless otherwise required, for the offeror to be required to provide its unique entity

identi�er, as stated in paragraph (j) of FAR provision 52.212-1, Instruction to Offerors—

Commercial Items;

○ Replace the threshold an offeror must certify, in paragraph (o)(2)(iii) of FAR 52.212-3,

and FAR 52.225-25, Prohibition on Contracting with Entities Engaging in Certain Activities

or Transactions Relating to Iran—Representation and Certi�cations, it has not exceeded

when engaging with Iran's Revolutionary Guard Corps or any of its o�cials, agents, or

a�liates. The clause title of FAR 52.225-25 is also corrected. The threshold will be that at

FAR 25.703-2(a)(2);

○ Replace “$150,000” with “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” as the threshold a

subcontract award must exceed in order for a contractor to be required to keep records on

the corresponding subcontract solicitation, as identi�ed in FAR clause 52.219-9, Small

Business Subcontracting Plan and its Alternate IV.

This rule impacts any business, large or small, that prepares quotes exceeding $3,500

($5,000 for DoD) and not exceeding $10,000 (or higher for select educational institutions);

proposals exceeding $150,000 and not exceeding $250,000; and proposals exceeding

$300,000 and not exceeding $500,000, in support of humanitarian or peacekeeping

operations. This rule does not add any new solicitation provisions or contract clauses.

Rather, it reduces burden on contractors by increasing the thresholds at which various

regulatory burdens apply.

Increasing the MPT and SAT means additional awards could be made under the MPT and

additional awards could be made under the SAT. The additional awards at or below the

MPT would not require provisions or clauses, except as provided in FAR 13.202 and FAR

32.1110, and the additional awards at or below the SAT would be awarded without

provisions and clauses which are prescribed only above the SAT. In addition to including

fewer regulations in applicable awards, the proposed rule would allow for more awards

based on quotes in lieu of a formal proposal, thereby reducing the contractor's bid and

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 6/24



proposal costs. Costs associated with contractor �nancing could also be reduced by

increasing the number of micro-purchases, for which the Governmentwide purchase card

is the preferred method of purchase and payment (see FAR 13.201(b)).

To determine the dollar amounts and entities affected, data was pulled from the Federal

Procurement Data System (FPDS) from �scal years 2015-2018. For the micro-purchase

value change, there was an annual average in total impacted contract awards of

$2,442,317 for small businesses and $1,359,916 for other than small businesses for

contracts with values exceeding $3,500 ($5,000 for DOD), but less than or equal to

$10,000 (or higher, for educational institutions). For the simpli�ed acquisition threshold

change, there was an annual average in total impacted contract awards of $300,073,039

for small businesses and $161,715,144 for other than small businesses for contracts with

values exceeding $150,000, but less than or equal to $250,000 (from $300,000 to

$500,000 for contingency, humanitarian, or peacekeeping awards). (  print page 52422)

Commercial item awards, as well as orders placed through inde�nite-quantity contract

orders and other large contracting schedule orders, were removed from this calculation to

determine the cost reduction on offerors and contractors. Commercial items were

removed from this calculation because the simpli�ed threshold for commercial item

awards is set at $7 million, so the increased SAT threshold would not impact compliance

or business procedures for contractors with awards conducted through commercial item

procedures.

To calculate the burden reduction on Government by raising these thresholds, inde�nite-

quantity contracts were included, as the threshold changes would impact Government

acquisition procedures.

The Federal Acquisition Streamlining Act (FASA) made a number of laws inapplicable to

items procured under the SAT. This was meant to save both the Government and service

providers money while also expediting the entire contract process. When �nalized, this rule

will decrease the number of regulatory requirements agencies need to include in awards.

Because this rule will reduce bid and proposal costs and other administrative burdens and

since it does not implement any new requirements on offerors, DoD, GSA, and NASA

believe this rule to be deregulatory.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 7/24



Please see the Regulatory Cost Analysis narrative for an in-depth discussion of data used

to calculate the estimated reduced burden on contractors and the Government. To access

the full Regulatory Cost Analysis for this rule, go to the Federal eRulemaking Portal at

www.regulations.gov (http://www.regulations.gov), search for “FAR Case 2018-004,” click

“Open Docket,” and view “Supporting Documents.” The following is a summary of the

estimated public and Government cost savings calculated in perpetuity in 2016 dollars at

a 7-percent discount rate:

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisitio… 8/24

http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/


Present Value Costs −
$662,413,271

−
$2,216,678,757

−
$2,879,092,029

Annualized Costs −$46,368,929 −$155,167,513 −$201,536,442

Annualized Value Costs (as of
2016 if Year 1 is 2019)

−$37,850,858 −$126,662,911 −$164,513,770

Summary Public Government Total

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisition-thresholds 9/24



IV. Applicability to Contracts at or Below the Simpli�ed Acquisition
Threshold and for Commercial Items, Including Commercially Available
Off-the-Shelf (COTS) Items

In an attempt to quantify savings as a result of this rule, DoD, GSA, and NASA seek input

from contractors that could be impacted by this rule. In addition to the Government cost

savings discussed in the accompanying materials in the docket at www.regulations.gov

(http://www.regulations.gov), DoD, GSA, and NASA welcome feedback on contract

proposals and contract quotes (but not quotes for a task order or delivery order) on—

1. The total bid and proposal (B&P) cost and the total number of proposals in Fiscal Year

(FY) 2018 for proposals greater than $150,000 and less than or equal to $250,000,

including the hours expended in the preparation of the proposals and personnel involved.

If available, the total cost related to compliance for awards greater than $150,000 and less

than or equal to $250,000 that could be eliminated by using simpli�ed acquisition

procedures.

2. The total B&P cost and the total number of quotes in FY 2018 for quotes less than or

equal to $150,000, including the hours expended in the preparation of the quotes and

personnel involved.

3. The total B&P cost and the total number of quotes in FY18 for quotes greater than

$3,500 and less than or equal to $10,000, including the hours expended in the preparation

of the quotes and personnel involved. If available, the total cost related to compliance for

awards greater than $3,500 and less than or equal to $10,000 that could be eliminated by

conducting a micro-purchase.

4. The total B&P cost and the total number of quotes in FY18 for quotes less than or equal

to $3,500, including the hours expended in the preparation of the quotes and personnel

involved.

The rule applies to contracts at or below the simpli�ed acquisition threshold, and to

contracts for commercial items, including COTS items. However, it does not add any new

solicitation provisions or contract clauses, and it reduces burden on contractors by

increasing the thresholds at which various regulatory burdens apply.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 10/24

http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/


V. Executive Orders 12866 and 13563

VI. Congressional Review Act

VII. Executive Order 13771 (/executive-order/13771)

VIII. Regulatory Flexibility Act

Executive Orders (E.O.s) 12866 and 13563 direct agencies to assess all costs and bene�ts

of available regulatory alternatives and, if regulation is necessary, to select regulatory

approaches that maximize net bene�ts (including potential economic, environmental,

public health and safety effects, distributive impacts, and equity). E.O. 13563 (/executive-

order/13563) emphasizes the importance of quantifying both costs and bene�ts, of

reducing costs, of harmonizing rules, and of promoting �exibility. This is an economically

signi�cant regulatory action and, therefore, was subject to review under section 6(b) of

E.O. 12866 (/executive-order/12866), Regulatory Planning and Review, dated September

30, 1993. This rule is a major rule under 5 U.S.C. 804

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/804).

This proposed rule is subject to the Congressional Review Act provisions of the Small

Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996 (5 U.S.C. 801

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/801) et seq.) and will, if �nalized, be transmitted

to the Congress and to the Comptroller General for review in accordance with such

provisions.

This rule is subject to E.O. 13771 (/executive-order/13771) because this rule is an

economically signi�cant regulatory action under E.O. 12866 (/executive-order/12866). As

explained in section III of this preamble and in the accompanying documentation available

in the docket at www.regulations.gov (http://www.regulations.gov), DoD, GSA, and NASA

believe the rule is deregulatory and seek public input on this preliminary determination as

well as information that can better quantify savings.

DoD, GSA, and NASA expect this rule to have a positive signi�cant economic impact on a

substantial number of small entities within the meaning of the Regulatory Flexibility Act, 5

U.S.C. 601 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601), et seq. An Initial Regulatory

Flexibility Analysis (IRFA) has been performed and is summarized as follows:

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 11/24

https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13771
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13771
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13563
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13563
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13563
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/12866
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/12866
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/804
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/804
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/801
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/801
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13771
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/13771
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/12866
https://www.federalregister.gov/executive-order/12866
http://www.regulations.gov/
http://www.regulations.gov/
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601


DoD, GSA, and NASA are proposing to amend the FAR to implement a section of the NDAA

for Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 and several sections of the NDAA for FY 2018 that increase the

MPT, increase the SAT, clarify certain procurement terms, as well as align non-statutory

thresholds with the MPT and SAT.

The objective of the rule is to implement section 217(b) of the NDAA for FY 2017 (Pub. L.

114-328 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328)) and sections 805, 806, and

(  print page 52423) 1702(a) of the NDAA for FY 2018 (Pub. L. 115-91

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91)), as well as align non-statutory, stated

dollar thresholds that are intended to correspond with the MPT and SAT, with word-based

thresholds to ensure continued alignment with the current increase to these thresholds

and any future change to the threshold amounts. DoD, GSA, and NASA expect this rule to

have a positive signi�cant economic impact on a substantial number of small entities

within the meaning of the Regulatory Flexibility Act, 5 U.S.C. 601

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601), et seq.

According to data from the Federal Procurement Data System (FPDS), there were 505

contracts awarded in FY 2018 with a value exceeding $3,500 ($5,000 for DOD), but less

than or equal to $10,000 wherein contractors would have a change in compliance

requirements. Of the 505 new awards, 358 (71 percent) of these actions were awarded to

198 unique small business entities.

Data from FPDS also indicates that in FY 2018, there were no (0) small business entities

that had additional contract actions for educational or related institutions for contracts

with a value exceeding $10,000, but less than or equal to $15,000 (equivalent to the upper

bound of the expected micro-purchase value for these types of institutions) wherein

contractors would have a change in compliance requirements.

Data from FPDS also indicates there were 3,653 new contracts awarded in FY 2018 with a

value exceeding $150,000, but less than or equal to $250,000 wherein contractors would

have a change in compliance requirements. Of these, 2,621 (72 percent) of these actions

were awarded to 1,680 unique small business entities.

As mentioned previously, commercial items were removed from this calculation because

the simpli�ed threshold for commercial item awards is set at $7 million, so the increased

SAT threshold would not impact compliance or business procedures for contractors with

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 12/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/114/public/328
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/plaw/115/public/91
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/601


awards conducted through commercial item procedures.

Data from the FPDS further indicates that for contingency, humanitarian, or peacekeeping

contract actions, there were 11 new total contracts awarded in FY 2018 with a value

exceeding $300,000 but less than or equal to $500,000 wherein contractors would have a

change in compliance requirements. Of these, 4 (36 percent) of these actions were

awarded to 4 unique small business entities.

This rule will also change the small-business set aside threshold under FAR 19.502;

instead of being from greater than $3,500 to less than or equal to $150,000, the threshold

will be from greater than $10,000 to less than or equal to $250,000. This is expected to

increase the number of small business entities able to do business with the Government;

for contracts affected by this threshold change, (please see full regulatory cost analysis

for explanation of excepted contract types), in FY 2018, there were 3,653 records

exceeding $150,000 and less than or equal to $250,000, while there were 505 records

exceeding $3,500 ($5,000 for DOD) and less than or equal to $10,000.

As of September 30, 2017, there were 637,791 active entity registrations in SAM. Of those

active entity registrations, 452,310 (71 percent) completed all four modules of the

registration, in accordance with the de�nition “Registered in the System for Award

Management (SAM)” at FAR 52.204-7(a), including Assertions (where they enter their size

metrics and select their NAICS Codes) and Reps & Certs (where they certify to the

information they provided and the size indicator by NAICS).

Of the possible 452,310 active SAM entity registrations, 338,207 (75 percent) certi�ed to

meeting the size standard of small for their primary NAICS Code. Therefore, this rule may

be bene�cial to 338,207 small business entities that submit solicitation responses that

may now fall under the MPT or SAT and have streamlined procedures as a result of this

rule.

The proposed rule applies to all entities who do business with the Federal Government.

This proposed rule does not include any new reporting, recordkeeping, or other

compliance requirements. The rule reduces burden on contractors by increasing the

thresholds at which various regulatory burdens begin to apply. The proposed rule does not

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 13/24



IX. Paperwork Reduction Act

List of Subjects in 48 CFR Parts 2
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2), 9
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9), 13
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13), 16
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16), 19
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19), 22
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22), 25
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25) and 52
(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52)

Government procurement

duplicate, overlap, or con�ict with any other Federal rules. There are no known signi�cant

alternative approaches to the proposed rule that would meet the requirements of the

applicable requirement.

The Regulatory Secretariat Division has submitted a copy of the IRFA to the Chief Counsel

for Advocacy of the Small Business Administration. A copy of the IRFA may be obtained

from the Regulatory Secretariat Division. DoD, GSA, and NASA invite comments from small

business concerns and other interested parties on the expected impact of this rule on

small entities.

DoD, GSA, and NASA will also consider comments from small entities concerning the

existing regulations in subparts affected by the rule in accordance with 5 U.S.C. 610

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610). Interested parties must submit such

comments separately and should cite 5 U.S.C. 610

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610) (FAR Case 2018-004), in correspondence.

The rule does not contain any information collection requirements that require the

approval of the O�ce of Management and Budget under the Paperwork Reduction Act (44

U.S.C. chapter 35 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/44/3501)).

■

William F. Clark,

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 14/24

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/5/610
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/44/3501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/44/3501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/44/3501


2.101 De�nitions.

PART 2—DEFINITIONS OF WORDS AND TERMS

Director, O�ce of Government-wide Acquisition Policy, O�ce of Acquisition Policy, O�ce

of Government-wide Policy.

Therefore, DoD, GSA, and NASA propose amending 48 CFR parts 2

(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2), 9 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-

48/part-9), 13 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13), 16

(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16), 19 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-

48/part-19), 22 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22), 25

(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25), and 52 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-

48/part-52) as set forth below:

The authority citation for 48 CFR parts 2 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2),

9 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9), 13 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-

48/part-13), 16 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16), 19

(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19), 22 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-

48/part-22), 25 (https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25), and 52

(https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52) continues to read as follows:

1.

Authority: 40 U.S.C. 121(c) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/40/121); 10

U.S.C. chapter 137 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/13701); and 51 U.S.C.

20113 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/51/20113).

Amend section 2.101, in paragraph (b) by—2.

In the de�nition “Micro-purchase threshold” removing from the introductory text

“$3,500” and adding “$10,000” in its place, removing from paragraph (2) the word “and”

at the end of the sentence, removing from paragraph (3)(ii) “States.” and adding “States;

and” in its place, and adding paragraph (4); and

a.

In the de�nition “Simpli�ed acquisition threshold” removing from the introductory

text “$150,000” and adding “$250,000” in its place, and removing from paragraph (2)

“$300,000” and adding “$500,000” in its place.

b.

The addition reads as follows:

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 15/24

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-13
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-19
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-22
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-48/part-52
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/40/121
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/40/121
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/13701
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/13701
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/13701
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/51/20113
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/51/20113
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/51/20113


3.502-3 [Amended]

9.104-5 [Amended]

9.406-2
[Amended]

PART 3—IMPROPER BUSINESS PRACTICES AND PERSONAL
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

PART 9—CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

(  print page 52424)

* * * * *
(b) * * *

Micro-purchase threshold * * *

(4) For acquisitions of supplies or services from institutions of higher education

(20 U.S.C. 1001(a) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/20/1001)) or related

or a�liated nonpro�t entities, or from nonpro�t research organizations or

independent research institutes—

(i) $10,000; or

(ii) A higher threshold, as determined appropriate by the head of the agency and

consistent with clean audit �ndings under 31 U.S.C. chapter 75

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501), Requirements for Single

Audits; an internal institutional risk assessment; or State law.

* * * * *

* * * * *

Amend section 3.502-3 by removing “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” and adding

“$150,000” in its place.

3.

* * * * *

Amend section 9.104-5 by removing from paragraph (a)(2) “$3,500” and adding

“$10,000” in its place.

4.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 16/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/20/1001
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/20/1001
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/7501


9.407-2 [Amended]

13.003 Policy.

13.005 List of laws inapplicable to contracts and subcontracts at or below the simpli�ed
acquisition threshold.

PART 13—SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION PROCEDURES

Amend section 9.406-2 by removing from paragraph (b)(1)(v) “$3,500” and adding “the

threshold at 9.104-5(a)(2)” in its place.

5.

Amend section 9.407-2 by removing from paragraph (a)(7) “$3,500” and adding “the

threshold at 9.104-5(a)(2)” in its place.

6.

Amend section 13.003 by revising paragraph (b)(1) to read as follows:7.

* * * * *
(b)(1) Acquisitions of supplies or services that have an anticipated dollar value

exceeding the micro-purchase threshold but not exceeding the simpli�ed

acquisition threshold are reserved exclusively for small business concerns and

shall be set aside (see 19.000, 19.203, and subpart 19.5).

* * * * *
Amend section 13.005 by revising paragraph (a) to read as follows:8.

(a) The following laws are inapplicable to all contracts and subcontracts (if

otherwise applicable to subcontracts) at or below the simpli�ed acquisition

threshold pursuant to 41 U.S.C. 1905

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1905):

(1) 41 U.S.C. 8102(a)(1) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/8102) (Drug-

Free Workplace), except for individuals.

(2) 10 U.S.C. 2306(b) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2306) and 41

U.S.C. 3901(b) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/3901) (Contract

Clause Regarding Contingent Fees).

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 17/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1905
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/1905
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/8102
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/8102
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2306
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2306
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/3901
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/3901
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/3901


13.501 [Amended]

16.206-2 [Amended]

PART 16—TYPES OF CONTRACTS

(3) 10 U.S.C. 2313 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2313) and 41

U.S.C. 4706 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4706) (Authority to

Examine Books and Records of Contractors).

(4) 10 U.S.C. 2402 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2402) and 41

U.S.C. 4704 (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4704) (Prohibition on

Limiting Subcontractors Direct Sales to the United States).

(5) 15 U.S.C. 631 note (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/631) (HUBZone

Act of 1997), except for 15 U.S.C. 657a(b)(2)(B)

(https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/657a), which is optional for the

agencies subject to the requirements of the Act.

(6) 31 U.S.C. 1354(a) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/1354)

(Limitation on use of appropriated funds for contracts with entities not meeting

veterans employment reporting requirements).

(7) 22 U.S.C. 2593e (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e)

(Measures Against Persons Involved in Activities that Violate Arms Control

Treaties or Agreements with the United States). (The requirement at 22 U.S.C.

2593e(c)(3)(B) (https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e) to provide a

certi�cation does not apply).

* * * * *

Amend section 13.501 by removing from paragraph (a)(2)(i) “$150,000” and adding “the

simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its place, and removing from paragraph (a)(2)(ii)

“$700,000” and adding “$700,000 or the thresholds in paragraph (1) of the de�nition of

simpli�ed acquisition threshold in FAR 2.101,” in its place.

9.

Amend section 16.206-2 by removing from the introductory text “$150,000” and adding

“the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its place.

10.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 18/24

https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2313
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2313
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4706
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4706
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4706
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2402
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/10/2402
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4704
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4704
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/41/4704
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/631
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/631
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/657a
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/15/657a
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/1354
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/31/1354
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e
https://www.govinfo.gov/link/uscode/22/2593e


16.206-3 [Amended]

16.207-3 [Amended]

19.203 Relationship among small business programs.

19.502-1 [Amended]

PART 19—SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAMS

Amend section 16.206-3 by removing from paragraph (a) “$150,000” and adding “the

simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its place.

11.

Amend section 16.207-3 by removing from paragraph (d) “$150,000” and adding “the

simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its place.

12.

Amend section 19.203 by revising paragraph (b) to read as follows:13.

* * * * *
(b) At or below the simpli�ed acquisition threshold. For acquisitions of supplies

or services that have an anticipated dollar value exceeding the micro-purchase

threshold, but not exceeding the simpli�ed acquisition threshold, the

requirement at 19.502-2(a) to exclusively reserve acquisitions for small business

concerns does not preclude the contracting o�cer from awarding a contract to a

small business under the 8(a) Program, HUBZone Program, SDVOSB Program, or

WOSB Program.

* * * * *

Amend section 19.502-1 by—14.

Removing from paragraph (b) “of $3,500 or less ($20,000 or less for acquisitions as

described in 13.201(g)(1))” and adding “valued at or below the micro-purchase

threshold” in its place, and

a.

Removing “Part 8” in paragraph (b) and adding “part 8” in its place.b.

Amend section 19.502-2 by—15.

Revising the second sentence in paragraph (a), anda.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 19/24



19.502-2 Total small business set-asides.

19.508 [Amended]

22.1803 [Amended]

25.703-2 [Amended]

25.703-4 [Amended]

PART 22—APPLICATION OF LABOR LAWS TO GOVERNMENT
ACQUISITIONS

PART 25—FOREIGN ACQUISITION

Removing from paragraph (b) “$150,000” and adding “the simpli�ed acquisition

threshold” in its place.

b.

The revision reads as follows:

(a) * * * Each acquisition of supplies or services that has an anticipated dollar

value exceeding the micro-purchase threshold, but not over the simpli�ed

acquisition threshold, is automatically reserved exclusively for small business

concerns and shall be set aside for small business unless the contracting o�cer

determines there is not a reasonable expectation of obtaining offers from two or

more responsible small business concerns that are competitive in terms of

market prices, quality, and delivery. * * *

* * * * *

Amend section 19.508 by removing from paragraph (e) “$150,000” and adding “the

simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its place.

16.

Amend section 22.1803 by removing from the introductory text “the simpli�ed

acquisition threshold” and adding “$150,000” in its place.

17.

Amend section 25.703-2 by removing from paragraph (a)(2) “$3,500” and adding

“$10,000” in its place.

18.

Amend section 25.703-4 by removing from paragraphs (c)(5)(ii), (c)(7)(iii), and (c)(8)

(iii) “$3,500” and adding “the threshold at 25.703-2(a)(2)” in its place, respectively.

19.

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 20/24



52.203-16 Preventing Personal Con�icts of Interest.

52.209-5 Certi�cation Regarding Responsibility Matters.

52.212-1 Instructions to Offerors—Commercial Items.

PART 52—SOLICITATION PROVISIONS AND CONTRACT
CLAUSES

Preventing Personal Con�icts of Interest (DATE)

(  print page 52425)

Certi�cation Regarding Responsibility Matters (DATE)

Amend section 52.203-16 by revising the date of the clause and removing from

paragraph (d)(1) “$150,000” and adding “the simpli�ed acquisition threshold” in its

place.

20.

The revision reads as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *

Amend section 52.209-5 by revising the date of the provision and removing from

paragraph (a)(1)(i)(D) introductory text “$3,500” and adding “the threshold at 9.104-5(a)

(2)” in its place.

21.

The revision reads as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *
Amend section 52.212-1 by revising the date of the provision and removing from

paragraph (j) “$3,500, and offers of $3,500” and adding “the micro-purchase threshold,

and offers at the micro-purchase threshold” in its place.

22.

The revision reads as follows:

* * * * *

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 21/24



52.212-3 Offeror Representations and Certi�cations—Commercial Items.

52.212-5 Contract Terms and Conditions Required To Implement Statutes or Executive Orders—
Commercial Items.

Instructions to Offerors—Commercial Items (DATE)

Offeror Representations and Certi�cations—Commercial Items (DATE)

Contract Terms and Conditions Required To Implement Statutes or
Executive Orders—Commercial Items (DATE)

* * * * *
Amend section 52.212-3 by—23.

(a) Revising the date of the provision;

(b) Removing from paragraph (h)(4) introductory text “$3,500” and adding “the

threshold at 9.104-5(a)(2)” in its place; and

(c) Removing from paragraph (o)(2)(iii) “$3,500” and adding “the threshold at 25.703-

2(a)(2)” in its place.

The revision reads as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *
Amend section 52.212-5 by—24.

(a) Revising the date of the clause;

(b) Removing from paragraph (b)(17)(i) “(Aug 2018)” and adding “(DATE); and

(c) Removing from paragraph (b)(17)(v) “(Aug 2018)” and adding “(DATE) in its place.

The revision reads as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 22/24



52.219-9 Small Business Subcontracting Plan.

52.225-25 Prohibition on Contracting with Entities Engaging in Certain Activities or Transactions
Relating to Iran—Representation and Certi�cations.

Small Business Subcontracting Plan (DATE)

Prohibition on Contracting With Entities Engaging in Certain Activities
or Transactions Relating to Iran—Representation and Certi�cations
(DATE)

Amend section 52.219-9 by—25.

Revising the date of the clause;a.

Removing from paragraph (d)(11)(iii) “$150,000” and adding “the simpli�ed

acquisition threshold” in its place;

b.

Revising the date of Alternate IV; andc.

In Alternate IV, removing from (d)(11)(iii) “$150,000” and adding “the simpli�ed

acquisition threshold” in its place.

d.

The revisions read as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *
Alternate IV (DATE). * * *

* * * * *
Amend section 52.225-25 by revising the provision title and date, and removing from

paragraph (c)(3) “$3,500” and adding “the threshold at 25.703-2(a)(2)” in its place.

26.

The revisions read as follows:

* * * * *

* * * * *
[FR Doc. 2019-20796 (/d/2019-20796) Filed 10-1-19; 8:45 am]

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 23/24

https://www.federalregister.gov/d/2019-20796
https://www.federalregister.gov/d/2019-20796


PUBLISHED DOCUMENT: 2019-20796 (84 FR 52420)

BILLING CODE 6820-EP-P

9/25/24, 8:02 AM Federal Register :: Federal Acquisition Regulation: Increased Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds; 2018-004

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2019/10/02/2019-20796/federal-acquisition-regulation-increased-micro-purchase-and-simplified-acquisiti… 24/24



N



5i

o

o

rA

3- 

s., 

sA  

O

cn

ooc

00p

0o

M +

Gn

O

O

V1

Vt

N

N .

N. '

o, 

O

h

N

y

O

O

3 ^~' 

M

o

r

N

v 

M

W) 

Ln

V

cn

Y

cn

En

03

Cd

o0
0

0

o°
o

X

0

0

o

0

0

o

r

10

o

o

L

O

O

M

M

OC

M

O

M

xy

i••-

1

O

O

O

O

M

M

O

7

00

S

O

M

C> 

N

CO

cz3

3

z

Q

O

p

CO

b

oo
D

c °' 

m ^

C

U

c

c

o

S

W

U ° 

a

8

O

O

O ~ 

O¢ 

o

Q

L

o _ _ 

U

p

z

O• 

O

V] 

k

N '

L '

L

O

OV

0. 

c¢ 

C

C

V1 % • .-

r

u

al

N

O

O

W

W

E

E

N

b + 

N

v 

nncb $ 

as

r

Cd

N

NV] 

Vl
E

7 ) 

C 

Q

Q

O

O

is

Q 

cd

cdO = 
x

O

V] 

wwww

NNNQ-
2

V] 

M

F

ai ,

o • — 

cd

C7 > ? > 

E

E ¢ 

N

N

www
o

0

d9

r .

N

a

V

p

b

C1 ° 

aci

a°

i

a°

i

a=

i . 

Q

v ° 

U

U

W

N

cl

cd

W + . ° 

O > > > > 

Kn .

sg .

5

w

w

ai

4.

r. 

r

i

N

O

x

x64

o

0

o

3

0

0

0

bA

b

V

O
C4-
4

Okn69

Ri

63

s..  

w

cd

LLI

N

W

CDU

Q

U



O



iU

who
I

U

C = N

U

O

U

U

J^" 

t

N

N

o

o

U

NO

U

c (

L) 

m

cd

d4-
4

H

3'

3

N

o

o

V

N

a

CIA

d

00

00

a

t

U

Qn

U

N

a

p

O

7:; 

w

c/

n

U

o

N

Q

N

M

0

0

7

0

N

O

r

0

0

l

r ` 

UG 

t

OC

O

00

ou 
a

a

U

cn

U

al_ 

y, 

O. 

cd - 

co

O

ot

o

U

03

64

N

M

O

7

O

Q. 

3

o6

o6

Io
M 

o

A

N

N

O

l^ 

O '

cY

N

00

p

O

U

W

N

o

o

00

00

10h

N

o0

acdQ
u

U

o

y

cn

b1.
0 a 

cz

N

ct

Cd

O

W

U

UD

ft$ 

Q

C0 . 

x

9

5

U

0

w

O

O

U

m

C/

1

V1

j

W

O? 

o

3

a O

Gti

CIS

p

Meae

ami

n

o

O

U

U

w

cd

0

x

x

uoQ
x

o

3cd

o4; 

o

ami

cd

r. 

w

t

b 

w 

Baa
H

NNWCdU
d

U





P

Catherine Gwynn
Typewritten Text
9/27/24



E

Cd

is

0

0

0

0

un

Cd

w > °

ori

bn

0

0

0 -

a

o

z 

c

o

o'' 

a 

o 

w 

o 

0

0

0

0

00

0

p

Edc ° 
040. 

N

O

ca

w .-,  > > 

C,

3b
p

U

s9

59

69

Fes. 

on

on

o

3

d , 

U

Q

3 >°, 

c° 

U

O

O

N

cd

O

vctl
bA

bA

w

3

N

Q. 

CZ3

al

b

v  >> 

Cd

cdCd3

a°' 

u

U ° 

b °" 

3

W

a

u

ZWFa- .
x

t -

d  

o _ _-

dam   

cc

o

a

a7

a

U

p

as

Q

UD

Ln

b

o

o  

Q

a

o

o

o

cc

b

C

b ? ' 

w' 

O  

U >

cn

U

o

lull

0

co

a

p

ami

b . 

o" >° 

Y

o° 

C

b

cd

rn

rn

a° 

rn

cn

CA

U

U

o

U 

4

U

o

a

on

d ;" 

v ? 

Q

w 

wz,•.' 

W 

ww' 

L 

rs

ai

N

a' 

iY

a
J-- 

p

a

Z

a

o

o

a

i

w

a

W

Z

o

x

x

3b
anQ

x„ 

x

oP 

3

3

o.

N• 

3V

O '

p

a) 

c °° 

l

A :

C

y

y

wc y
N

un

U

Q

a

U



 

 

 

 

August 23, 2024 
 
The Honorable Charles Gaylor, Mayor 
City of Goldsboro 
200 N Center St 
Goldsboro, NC 27530 
 

Subject: Letter of Intent to Fund 
City of Goldsboro 
PFAS Treatment Evaluation and Pilot 
April 2024 Application Cycle 
Project No.: SRF-D-EC-0022 

 
Dear Mayor Gaylor: 
 

The Division of Water Infrastructure (Division) has reviewed your application, and the 
State Water Infrastructure Authority (SWIA) has approved your project as eligible to receive a 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Emerging 
Contaminants (EC) loan of $500,000. One hundered percent of the loan will be forgiven. A fee 
of 2% will be invoiced after scope approval. 

 
Please note that this intent to fund is contingent on meeting all of the following milestones:  

 
Milestone Deadline date 

Scope of Work Submittal  January 6, 2025 
Scope of Work Approval  March 10, 2025 
Completion of Scope of Work  March 2, 2026 

 
The first milestone is the submittal of the Scope of Work on January 6, 2025, via the 

Laserfiche link below. Failure to meet any milestone may result in the forfeiture of funding for 
the proposed project. 

 
If the PFAS Treatment Evaluation Study project is to evaluate treatment alternatives, the 

final report should describe the proposed treatment with the following information: 

1. Data to justify the use of the PFAS treatment technology (granular activated carbon 
(GAC), ion exchange, membranes, etc.) to treat the source water. 

2. Data demonstrating design and operation consistent with the existing treatment facility 
(flow rate, hydraulics, etc.). 

Docusign Envelope ID: B7AAFCFE-E373-4F04-B49E-97938594F742



The Honorable Charles Gaylor, Mayor 
August 23, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

3. Protocol for conducting the study, including the duration, testing procedures, reporting 
procedures, plant scale, etc. 

4. Time frame of study to adequately treat worst-case water quality conditions and maintain 
simultaneous compliance with other regulatory requirements. 

5. Goal of proposed treatment technology (complete removal, below MCL, below health 
advisory level, etc.). 

6. Waste management considerations (NPDES permit changes, backwash/concentrate 
storage/disposal, media replacement, etc.). 

Upon detailed review of the scope during the funding process, it may be determined that 
Public Water Supply needs to review/approve portions of your project. Additionally, the final 
report after completion of the study must also be submitted to Public Water Supply. Changes in 
the scope or priority points awarded – based on additional information that becomes apparent 
during project review – may also result in changes to the total funding amount. 

 
All project documents are to be submitted via Laserfiche at the following link: 

https://edocs.deq.nc.gov/Forms/DW-Document-Upload-Form. 
 
Disbursement of Funds 
Funds are disbursed to the recipient for eligible costs that are documented as part of the project 
only after the costs have been incurred by the Recipient and all necessary documentation has 
been received and approved by the Division beforehand. Prior to requesting the first 
disbursement on your project, you will be asked to submit to the Division via the link above 
several required documents, including but not limited to:  

1. One copy of the original funding offer-and-acceptance document, executed by the 
Authorized Representative for the project, along with the signed “Standard Conditions 
and Assurances”.  

2. A resolution adopted by the governing body accepting the funding offer and making the 
applicable assurances contained therein. 

3. Federal Tax ID/Unique Entity ID (UEID) Form (attached). 
4. Sales Tax Certification, if applicable (attached). 
5. One copy of executed Engineering service agreement. 

The Division will communicate with you when these documents will be required. Once all 
documents have been received and approved, the Recipient will request disbursements using the 
Division's Disbursement Request form. If the Recipient requests funds prior to paying 
contractors, the Recipient will have three business days to pay contractors upon receipt of funds. 

Davis-Bacon Requirements and American Iron and Steel Provisions 
Projects funded through the State Revolving Fund (SRF) programs must comply with 
Davis-Bacon wage requirements and American Iron and Steel provisions. You can find standard 
specifications covering these requirements on our website. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: B7AAFCFE-E373-4F04-B49E-97938594F742

https://edocs.deq.nc.gov/Forms/DW-Document-Upload-Form


The Honorable Charles Gaylor, Mayor 
August 23, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Build America, Buy America Act (BABA) 
BIL SRF EC projects will be required to comply with the Federal Build America, Buy America 
Act (BABA). The BABA requires that iron, steel, manufactured products, and construction 
materials used in infrastructure projects are produced in the United States. You can find 
additional information at the following link: https://www.epa.gov/cwsrf/build-america-buy-
america-baba  
 

Upon receipt of your letter of intent to fund, please fill out the attached Federal ID & 
Unique Entity ID (UEI) form and email it to DEQ.DWI.FundingOffer@deq.nc.gov. If you 
choose to decline this funding, the Authorized Representative as declared in the application must 
directly contact the Division project manager via email or letter on the applicant’s letterhead. 

 
If you have any questions, please contact Jeannine Press at jeannine.press@deq.nc.gov or 

by phone at (910) 796-7441. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Shadi Eskaf, Director 
Division of Water Infrastructure, NCDEQ 

 
Enclosures: Federal Tax ID/Unique Entity ID (UEID) Form 

 
EC:  Reed Barton, CDM Smith (via email) 
  Dustin Rhodes (via email) 
  Jeannine Press (via email) 
  DWI Agreement ID 2000078091 (COM – LOIF) 

Docusign Envelope ID: B7AAFCFE-E373-4F04-B49E-97938594F742

https://www.epa.gov/cwsrf/build-america-buy-america-baba
https://www.epa.gov/cwsrf/build-america-buy-america-baba
mailto:DEQ.DWI.FundingOffer@deq.nc.gov


Q



Al
ucluI/ r



R



C

3

3

03

O

cd

y

p ° 

ctin, 
O

U

cd

cnz

cn

cn

y

C • -- 

O  

a 

x

z

SO

0

0

0

V

Cn

ct

Cd

m

O

N

N

Qn

U

7:

f'

1401

N

o ~°

o

Q

3

cd

O

O

O

V) 

U

O

cn

r

z

O

N

C

1

y

S' 

N

M

un

x 

x

0

xOx

xoU
3 o 

3m 

n

U

O

cd

cnz

v 

M

x

z

SO

0

0

0

V

O

7:

f'

1401

N

o ~°

o

cd

O

O

O

V) 

U

O

cn

r

z

O

N

C

1

o

N

M





S



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 — lD 1

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK

TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH

THE WAYNE COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has had a long- standing relationship with the Wayne
County Chamber of Commerce and hopes to continue that relationship for many years to come; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to formalize its membership with the Chamber of Commerce and
the sponsorship for the events held by the Chamber. The City will be listed as an Executive Level
Sponsor ($ 10, 000); and

WHEREAS, The City will also be billed $ 5, 000 for Wayne County Chamber of Commerce

membership; and

WHEREAS, the total funding for the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce in the current
fiscal year budget is in the amount of $15, 000. 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County Chamber of Commerce have worked
closely together to provide benefits for both the city, and the county. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro North Carolina, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign an agreement
with the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce for membership and the sponsorship of events for
FY24- 25. 

Adopted this the
7t' 

day of October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

r'harles Gayl , 

4ayor



Page 1 of 3 
 

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into the 8th day of October, 2024 by and between the City of 
Goldsboro, a municipal corporation, organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina 
(hereinafter referred to as "City"), and the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Chamber”).  

The Chamber is agreeable to providing membership and benefits to the City of Goldsboro Council and 
staff under the terms and conditions of this agreement as a Sponsor and Member as are set forth below: 

• Executive Sponsor Benefits ($10,000) 

 Benefits for each sponsorship level plus six complimentary tickets are included for our annual 
dinner.  

 

The City is agreeable to provide sponsorships of the following events:  

• Foodie Week - $1,000 - Community Sponsor  

o Agriculture is king in Wayne County. The entire food supply chain is captured and 
delivered right here in our community. Foodie Week is a celebration of just that.  We 
spend the week enjoying delicious meals from participating restaurant vendors as well as 
educating the community about where our food comes from.  

• Forward Conference - $3,500 - Presenting Sponsor 

o The FORWARD Conference is an opportunity to look ahead at a snapshot of the regional 
economic outlook and communication about the obstacles we are facing as a community 
and our plan to address them.  

• Goldsboro Christmas Parade - $500 - Friend Sponsor 

o Goldsboro & Wayne County's largest parade and one of the greatest in NC - an authentic 
Christmas experience! The parade journeys through historic downtown, inviting visitors 
to town and providing our residents with a Christmas to remember year after year. 

• State of the Military - $2,500 - Presenting Sponsor  

o Military Affairs Committee event where government and local officials brief the 
community on the state of the base, the health of our community, issues of concern, and 
achievements. 

• WEN Career Expo & Job Fair - $1,000 - Community Sponsor  

o This countywide school career fair connects students to careers while providing relevancy 
to the school curriculum. The goal is to expose students to a wide variety of career 
options, and to make crucial connections with adults who might be working in the 
student's chosen career area. 

• WEN STEAM Festival - $500 - Friend Sponsor 



Page 2 of 3 
 

o This fun event encourages students to create a project that is based in the areas of Science, 
Technology, Engineering, Arts, Agriculture and Math! It involves interactive 
demonstrations and significant dialogue between the students. 

• WISE Women's Event - $1,000 - Community Sponsor  

o The WISE Gala was created to showcase inspirational stories and the extraordinary 
achievements by women of all ages across diverse cultures & roles through the power of 
individuality to spark change and improve the community. Each year a WISE Woman of 
the Year is celebrated for her contributions of success and empowerment in our 
community. 

• Membership Dues - $5,000 

o One year membership in the Chamber of Commerce of Wayne County, to be billed 
quarterly. 

In consideration for the City agreeing to pay the Chamber the sum of $15,000 for Wayne County 
Chamber of Commerce membership and as a sponsor of the events listed above, the Chamber agrees to 
provide all benefits of sponsorships as detailed above as a well as all membership benefits as stated in 
the Chambers’ promotional materials and on its website for the said period of time. 

The Chamber agrees that it is responsible for all funds made available to the Chamber by this agreement 
and further agrees that it will reimburse the City any funds expended in violation of City, State or Federal 
law or in violation of this agreement. 

The Chamber shall be liable, and agrees to be liable for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold the City 
harmless from all claims, suits, judgments or damages, including court costs and attorney's fees, arising 
out of or in the course of the operation of this agreement. 

The City shall be entitled to conduct program evaluations of the agency's activities particularly as it 
relates to the accomplishments of established goals and objectives and the quality and impact of services 
being delivered. 

This Agreement shall be for a term of twelve months commencing on July 1, 2024, and ending on June 
30,2025; provided, however, that either party may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days written 
notice, in which event all reports required by the agreement shall be submitted within thirty (30) days 
following the effective date of said termination. It is further understood and agreed upon that total 
payment for services under this agreement shall be limited to annual appropriations made available by 
City for funding this agreement as the Chamber acknowledges that the City is a governmental entity, and 
the contract validity is based upon the availability of public funding under the authority of its statutory 
mandate. 

 

Ratification 

This Agreement shall not be binding upon either party until ratified by the governing boards of the City 
and the Chamber of Commerce and recorded in the meeting minutes of a meeting of each respective 
governing board, as applicable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed by their duly 
authorized officers the day and year first above written. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Wayne County Chamber of Commerce  

 
 

BY: _________________________________ 
Scott Satterfield 
 President  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janet Brock  
Wayne County Chamber of Commerce  

 
 

 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, meet in regular session on_________________, 20___, and 
approved this Agreement dated _________________, 20___. 

 
 

  CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 

BY: _________________________________ 
Charles Gaylor, IV  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
City of Goldsboro 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 
______________________________________     
Name:  Catherine Gwynn, City of Goldsboro Finance Director 



T



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - I Q

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE SERVICES OF

THE NC MAIN STREET AND RURAL PLANNING CENTER

FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO NC

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council wish to undertake the preparation of a Vision
Forum to focus on business development; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council would like assistance with this project from the
NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center; and

WHEREAS, the NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center and the Goldsboro City Council
have reached an agreement on the work to be performed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will reimburse the NC Department of Commerce for
materials, mileage, meal allowances and other costs directly related to the Project of approximately

300. 00 from the City Manager' s Office current budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City

of Goldsboro hereby: 
1. Request the NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center to assist the City with the

preparation of a vision forum; 

2. Agree to reimburse the NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center for the materials, 
mileage, and meal allowances of the Rural Planning staff who assist the City on this
proj ect; 

3. Commit to adoption of the assessment, and implementation of the plan when completed. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 7' day of October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gayl , V

Mayor















 

 

 

City of Goldsboro 
 

Economic Development Assessment and Plan 

 
 

 

May 2022 

 

 

 
 

 

 
For City of Goldsboro by the 

North Carolina Department of Commerce 

Rural Economic Development Division 

NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center 

 

 



2 
 

Acknowledgements 

City of Goldsboro – Economic Development Assessment and Plan 
 

Work Group 
Mayor David Ham  

Sherry Archibald, Nonprofit Representative 

Bobby Croom, City of Goldsboro Infrastructure Representative 

Erin Fonseca, Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation

Dennis Goodson, Seymour Johnson Air Force Base 

Brandon Jenkins, Vice President, Wayne Community College 

Kevin Johnson, Agriculture Representative 

Vita McNair, Board of Trustees, Wayne Community College 

David Perry, Industry/Economic Development Alliance Representative 

Anthony “Bishop” Slater, Faith-Based Community Representative 

Scott Satterfield, President, Wayne County Chamber of Commerce 

Dr. Jessie Tucker, Healthcare Representative 

 
City of Goldsboro 

City Hall, 200 North Center Street 

 P.O. Drawer A, Goldsboro, NC  27530 

Phone: 919-580-4362 

 

David Ham, Mayor 

Councilmember Hiawatha Jones, District 1 

Councilmember Bill Broadaway, District 2 

Councilmember Taj Polack, District 3 

Councilmember Brandi Matthews, District 4 

Councilmember Charles Gaylor, IV, District 5 

Councilmember Gene Aycock, District 6 

 

Tim Salmon - City Manager 

 

Laura Getz – City Clerk    

   

City Website   goldsboronc.gov 

  



3 
 

Planning and Economic Development Assistance 

 
 

 

 

 

North Carolina Department of Commerce 

Rural Economic Development Division 

NC Main Street & Rural Planning Center  
 

Amy Suggs – Project Manager, Community Economic Development Planner 

Southeast Prosperity Zone, Morehead City Office, 3813 Arendell St., Morehead City, NC 28557 

Phone: 910-530-0278   Email: amy.suggs@commerce.nc.gov 

 

Lee Padrick – Community Economic Development Planner 

Northeast Prosperity Zone, Greenville Office, PO Box 1587, Greenville, NC  27835 

Phone: 252-565-2060  Email: lpadrick@commerce.nc.gov 

 

Will Best – Special Projects Coordinator 

 Raleigh Central Office, 4301 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC  27699-4301 

 Phone:  984-365-0298  Email: wbest@commerce.nc.gov 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

Table of Contents 

  Page # 

 

Acknowledgements 2 

 

Executive Summary 5 

 

Section 1. Introduction 7 

o Project Summary 

o Brief Overview 

 

Section 2. Situation 9 
o Population, Households, Income, Employment 

o Population Basics 

o Labor Force 

o Commuting 

o Top Employers 

o Location Quotient 

o Regional Requirements 

o Retail Service Economic Assessment 

 

Section 3. Assessment 21 

• Assets and Economic Drivers 

• SWOT Analysis 

• Work Group and Stakeholder Surveys 

 

Section 4. Recommended Plan Actions 24 

 

Section 5. Plan Review, Adoption, and Monitoring 27 

o Plan progress items to address and follow 

 

Appendix A:  Plan Implementation 28 

 

  



5 
 

Executive Summary 

The City of Goldsboro, NC has a population of 32,156 people.  The county seat of Wayne County 

and a regional hub for employment, shopping, and food and drinks, the area within Goldsboro’s 

sphere of economic influence has a Gross Regional Product of $8,135,306,945, including a retail 

supply of $1,860,936,195.   

Seymour Johnson Air Force Base is home to 4,547 active-duty military, 833 reservists, 898 

civilians, 4,870 dependents, and 11,428 retirees, with total personnel of 22,576.  The base has a 

employment impact of $436,217,184 and an economic impact of $612,1569,657. 

Each day, 19,922 people come to Goldsboro for employment, with 9,248 leaving the city for 

employment.  There are 4,260 people who live and work within the city.   

 

The NC Main Street and Rural Planning Center (MS&RPC) is part of the NC Department of 

Commerce, the state’s lead agency for workforce, community, and economic development. In 

this capacity, the Center provides revitalization and planning assistance to communities across 

the state, primarily in economic development planning.   The City of Goldsboro met with the 

MS&RP staff and determined that an Economic Development Assessment Plan is needed for the 

City of Goldsboro. 

 

On April 25, 2022, the MS&RP staff facilitated an all-day workshop with the work group using 

information gathered from the work group and stakeholders in recent surveys. During that 

discussion, the work group came to a consensus that the City should focus on the following 

areas of focus to facilitate economic development and growth: Housing, Business, Culture, and 

Education. 

 

The work group believes that for economic development and growth, the City needs to increase 

housing options, support business development of both small and large businesses, recognize 

and celebrate all cultures within the City, and the perception of local schools needs to be 

improved. The Economic Development Assessment Plan with the strategies, goals, objectives, 

and actions is outlined in the following pages of this report. Appendix A goes into detail of how 

these strategies will be implemented. 

 

It is important that the City of Goldsboro work with its partners to achieve these economic 

strategies together now and moving forward.  Partners identified in this plan include but are not 

limited to Seymour Johnson Airforce Base, Wayne County Public Schools, Wayne County Board 

of Commissioners, Wayne County Community College, Wayne County Development Alliance, 

Eastern Carolina Council of Governments and NC Department of Commerce. 

 

The Economic Development Assessment Plan outlined below has a five (5) year time horizon 

that provides framework to meet job creation and economic prosperity opportunities and better 

position the City for grant opportunities.   The plan should be reviewed annually as the situation 

changes for the City of Goldsboro.



6 
 

Goldsboro Community Economic Development Assessment – 2022 

Economic Positioning Statement:  Goldsboro is eastern North Carolina’s center for innovation, national defense, affordable living, 

and cultural diversity.  In our community, dreams take flight while people and businesses grow. 

Housing Business Culture Education 
Strategy:  Support diversified housing 

initiatives 

 

Goal:  Increase housing options and 

availability in the City 

Strategy:  Support business 

development 

 

Goal:  Retain, expand, and grow the local 

economy 

Strategy:  Celebrate the City’s 

cultural diversity and historic assets 

 

Goal:  Recognize and appreciate all 

cultures and history within the City 

Strategy:  Improve perception of 

local schools 

 

Goal:  Identify opportunities for the 

City to support the school system 

Objectives: Increase infill housing, 

increase market rate housing, increase 

owner occupancy 

Objectives: Increase the number of 

businesses, increase number of available 

jobs, strengthen businesses, increase 

workforce development programs that 

support local industries 

Objectives: Increase cultural offerings 

and programs, increase support at the 

local level, preserve and enhance 

historic assets, increase the number of 

new visitors 

Objectives: Increase support of city 

schools, increase enrollment in Career 

and College Promise program 

Actions: 

1.  Explore National Register of Historic 

Places districts in older neighborhoods 

to utilize state and federal tax credits 

for income-producing and non-income-

producing properties 

 

2.  Implement neighborhood plan for 

residential areas surrounding 

downtown 

 

3.  Identify land available to build 

market rate housing 

 

 

Actions: 

1.  Support the Wayne Occupational 

Readiness Keys for Success (WORKS) 

initiative and customized training 

solutions 

 

2.  Better promote the 

LaunchGoldsboro.com website to assist 

local entrepreneurs by expanding access 

to business training and financial 

resources  

 

3.  Develop a comprehensive City 

Economic Development Plan, with 3, 5, 

and 10-year goals and objectives 

 

4.  Expand wastewater capacity to 

accommodate future industrial growth 

 

5.  Develop a prospectus for business 

recruitment and video to entice 

potential residents to Goldsboro 

Actions: 

1.  Measure and assess current owner 

business diversity 

 

2.  Host an annual Multi-Cultural 

Business Fair 

 

3.  Revisit the Union Station study and 

work with interested developers to 

acquire land 

 

4.  Coordinate cultural diversity plans 

with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base 

 

5.  Promote the Tourism Assistance 

Program to attract new visitors from 

outside the local community and 

enhance the long-term growth of the 

travel industry in Goldsboro and 

Wayne County  

 

 

Actions: 

1.  Develop a committee (comprised of 

City representatives, Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base, Wayne 

County Commissioners, Wayne 

County Development Alliance, and 

Wayne Community College) to meet 

with County School Superintendent to 

learn ways the City can best support 

the city schools and their programs 

 

2.  Work with local sports 

tournaments and Goldsboro Parks and 

Recreation to use city school facilities 

and showcase the schools to potential 

residents 

 

3. Assist promotion of the Career and 

College Promise program to students 

and the community by sharing success 

stories of former program participants 

and providing transit via Goldsboro-

Wayne Transit Authority 

 



7 
 

Section 1.  Introduction 

 

Project Summary  
The City of Goldsboro invited the North Carolina Department of Commerce - NC Main Street 

and Rural Planning Center to prepare an Economic Development Assessment and Plan (EDAP). 

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed and the City adopted a resolution for the project. 

The three-member Commerce planning team lead a day workshop input with City participants. 

The plan was written and prepared. Next, the plan was reviewed and recommended for adoption 

by the Work Group Study Committee. The Work Group Study Committee forwarded the 

document to the City Council who reviewed the plan and adopted it. 

 

 The plan parts are presented in the following five sections. 

• Introduction 

• Situation 

• Assessment 

• Recommended Plan Actions 

• Plan Review, Adoption, and Monitoring 

 

This plan is a working document and will help to guide the City of Goldsboro with economic 

developments efforts. The EDAP is a shorter version of the Rural Planning Center’s approach to 

traditional economic development planning.  It is intended to be an objective assessment, with 

short-term actionable items the City can undertake in the next few years to improve the 

economic development climate.  From the workshop, it was evident that the residents of 

Goldsboro desire to improve the City.  

 

Brief  Overview 

The City of Goldsboro, NC was founded in 1787 and incorporated in 1847.  Goldsboro is 

populated by 34,156 people and is the County seat of Wayne County.  Seymour Johnson Air 

Force Base is located in the southern area of the city.   Goldsboro is approximately 50 miles 

southeast of Raleigh and sits on the banks of the Neuse River. The city limit encompasses 

an area of approximately 29 square miles.  

 

Goldsboro and Wayne County are strategically located, within 30 minutes of I-95, an hour 

east of Raleigh, and 2 hours west of the coast.  US Hwy 70 is the major east-west artery 

running along the northern side of the city limits, and US Hwy 117/I-795 is the major north-

south highway running along the western edge of the city.  US Hwy 70 supports 26,000 

Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) counts, and US Hwy 117 supports 30,500 AADT. 

(source:  NC DOT Average Annual Daily Traffic Mapping Application)  
 

 

Goldsboro is the county seat of Wayne County (pop. 117,333 as of Census 2020).  Wayne 

County's surface is level to gently rolling uplands with broad bottoms along the rivers and some 

creeks. Elevations are predominantly 120 to 145 feet above sea level. The largest waterway, 



8 
 

the Neuse River, bisects the lower central portion of the county and cuts a deep channel 20 to 

40 feet deep as it flows in an eastward direction. In addition to the Neuse River, the county is 

drained by the Little River, the Northeast Cape Fear River, and numerous creeks.  

From ESRI Business Analyst 

 

Seymour Johnson Air Force Base is home to 4,547 active-duty military, 833 reservists, 898 

civilians, 4,870 dependents, and 11,428 retirees, with total personnel of 22,576.  The base has a 

employment impact of $436,217,184 and an economic impact of $612,1569,657 (source:  

www.seymourjohnson.af.mil) 

 

  



9 
 

Section 2.  Situation 
 

Population, Households, Income, Employment 

 

 

 

X 
3.4% as of Dec 2021* 

*US Bureau of Labor Statistics 



10 
 

While the city limit encompasses an area of approximately 29 square miles, in order to 

understand the local economy and based on available data, the larger area of 4 zip codes 

(27530, 27531, 27534, and 28333) were used for much of the following analysis. Zip code 

27530 is a relatively large area of approximately 107 square miles. 27534 is another large 

area of 73 square miles.  28333 contains 48 square miles, and 27531 is approximately 3.5 

square miles.   

 



11 
 

The following table is a summary of Goldsboro Zip Codes (27530, 27531, 27534, and 

28333): 
2021 Summary  

Population 84,365 

Households 33,765 

Families 22,280 

Average Household Size 2.44 

        Owner-Occupied Housing Units 19,581 

 Renter-Occupied Housing Units 14,184 

Median Age 38.1 

Median Household Income $42,368 

Average Household Income $56,150 
 

This data and the occupation data below is from ESRI Business Analyst. It shows 

population and owner-occupied household figures to be increasing from 2010 to what is 

predicted for 2026. Median household income is expected to rise 1.6% annually from 2021 

to 2026.  

 

Population Basics 

The Goldsboro Zip Codes (study area) have 17,852 millennials (ages 25-39), while the 

national average for an area this size is 18,326. There are also 26,514 people aged 55 or 

older in these zip codes compared to a national average of 26,468 for an area this size, 

which means that retirement risk is about average in Goldsboro.  

(Source: EMSI) 

 

 

 

 

 



12 
 

Labor Force 

The workforce for the Goldsboro Zip Codes (27530, 27531, 27534, and 28333) is broken 

down as follows: 
 

Occupation Employed Percent US Percent 

Total 32,846 100.0% 100.0% 

White Collar 17,710 54% 63.1% 

Blue Collar 9,421 29% 21.8% 

Services 5,715 17% 15.1% 

 

The workforce for Goldsboro City Limits is broken down as follows: 
 

Occupation Employed Percent US Percent 

Total 11,893 100.0% 100.0% 

White Collar 6,370 54% 63.1% 

Blue Collar 3,091 26% 21.8% 

Services 2,432 20% 15.1% 

 

For both areas, the data shows a slightly smaller percentage of workers in this area in 

white collar occupations as the national average, with blue collar and services workers 

slightly higher.   

 

The labor force of the study area is employed in the following North American Industry 

Classification System (NAICS) sectors. The following table shows the occupations with 

the highest number of workers within the 4 Goldsboro Zip Codes. Most job categories 

remained relatively stable between 2020 and 2021. Keep in mind that not all of the study 

area (zip code) residents work within the study area: 

 

Occupation 
2020 

Jobs 

2021 

Jobs 

Median 

  Hourly 

Earnings 

Military-only occupations 2,338 2,382 $14.90 

Retail Salespersons 1,594 1,642 $10.05 

Psychiatric Aides 1,569 1,426 $14.79 

Cashiers 1,192 1,209 $9.75 

Fast Food and Counter Workers 1,061 1,078 $9.56 

Registered Nurses 1,025 1,047 $31.90 

Office Clerks, General 753 756 $15.29 

Elementary School Teachers, Except Special Education 805 747 $22.37 

Home Health and Personal Care Aides 763 741 $10.36 

Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers 702 724 $17.64 

Source: EMSI 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 
 

Within the 4 Goldsboro Zip Codes, the following table shows the highest paying 

occupations: 

 

Occupation 2020 Jobs 2021 Jobs 
Median Hourly 

Earnings 

Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons 16 17 $126.90 

Physicians, All Other; and Ophthalmologists, Except 

Pediatric 
70 73 $117.70 

General Internal Medicine Physicians 12 12 $115.55 

Nurse Anesthetists 51 51 $107.57 

Psychiatrists 54 54 $96.85 

Chief Executives 34 34 $77.20 

Postsecondary Teachers 456 503 $64.54 

Computer and Information Systems Managers 28 29 $64.10 

Training and Development Managers 23 23 $63.52 

Pharmacists 83 84 $63.10 

Source: EMSI 

 
Commuting 

Each day, 19,922 people come to Goldsboro for employment, with 9,248 leaving the city for 

employment.  There are 4,260 people who live and work within the city.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              Source:  US Census On-The-Map data 

 

 



14 
 

Top Employers 

The top employers in Goldsboro Zip Codes (27530, 27534, 27531) are: 
  *Goldsboro Top Employers (2022)  
Company Name Employees 

Cherry Hospital 1,000 

Goldsboro Milling Co 1,000 

O’Berry Neuro Med Treatment 700 
O’Berry Center Personnel 650 
Wal-Mart Supercenter (N Spence Ave) 494 
AP Exhaust Technologies 450 
AP Emissions 400 
Uchiyama America 400 
Wal-Mart Supercenter (US Hwy 70 W) 335 
Franklin Baking 300 

  Source: NC Labor Economic Analysis Division 

 

Location Quotient 

A location quotient (LQ) is an analytical statistic that measures an area’s industrial specialization 

relative to a larger geographic unit (usually the nation). An LQ is computed as an industry’s 

share of an area total for some economic statistic (earnings, Gross Domestic Product by region, 

employment, and similar measures) divided by the industry’s share of the national total for the 

same statistic. In this case the area is for zip code 27549. For example, an LQ of 1.0 in farming 

means that the region and the nation are equally specialized in farming; while an LQ of 1.8 

means that the region has a higher concentration in farming than the nation. 

 

Occupation 2020 LQ 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing, and Hunting 2.81 

Government 1.87 

Retail Trade 1.36 

Accommodation and Food Services 1.14 

Educational Services 1.00 

Health Care and Social Assistance 0.98 

Other Services (except Public Administration) 0.86 

Manufacturing 0.84 

Construction 0.81 

Wholesale Trade 0.76 

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 0.72 

Transportation and Warehousing 0.61 

Finance and Insurance 0.58 

Utilities 0.56 

Administrative and Support and Waste Management 0.49 

Management of Companies and Enterprises 0.45 

  Source: EMSI 

 

For the 4 Goldsboro Zip Codes, there is a higher concentration of farming, fishing and forestry 

related occupations than the nation along with the other categories in the above table with 

values over 1. This is consistent with the history of agribusiness in Goldsboro and Wayne 

County. 

 

* Military occupations did 

not show up with this 

source, those jobs are 

likely enumerated outside 

the local zip codes 



15 
 

Conversely, there are a number of occupations that are underrepresented in the 

Goldsboro area, as opposed to the nation. These occupations can be identified by their LQ 

numbers that are lower than 1.0. Management of Companies and Enterprises occupations 

are the most underrepresented as compared to the nation with a location quotient of 

0.45. 

 

Regional Requirements 

EMSI has developed ‘Regional Requirement’ data based on models of census and 

economic data. Demand for 3 digit NAICS (North American Industry Classification 

System) categories are calculated for a given area along with how much of that demand is 

being met, versus imported from other areas into the region. Regional Requirement data 

is also available for 6 digit NAICS, which provides a further breakdown into smaller and 

more narrow categories. This data can be provided if there is interest in delving deeper. 

For more information, see: siccode.com/naics-code-lookup-directory 

 

For example, 80.1% of Local Government Demand is met in-region, suggesting that only 20% of 

NAICS category (903) is imported from outside the region.  Professional, Scientific, and 

Technical Services (541) demand is only met 13.4% in-region, suggesting that 86.6% of demand 

is imported.  There is opportunity to capture a significant percentage of this demand locally. 

 

The following table shows Regional Requirement data for the Top Ten 3-digit NAICS for 4 

Goldsboro Zip Codes, along with the Regional Total for all NAICS. 

NAICS Demand for 
Demand met  

In-region 

% 

Demand 

met  

In-region 

Demand met 

by Imports 

% 

Demand 

met by 

Imports 

Total Demand 

903 Local Government $360,828,939 80.1% $89,908,654 19.9% $450,737,593 

622 Hospitals $159,577,437 93.5% $11,070,446 6.5% $170,647,882 

531 Real Estate $159,029,290 60.3% $104,643,240 39.7% $263,672,530 

621 
Ambulatory Health 

Care Services 
$156,634,960 79.3% $40,918,390 20.7% $197,553,350 

238 
Specialty Trade 

Contractors 
$142,332,703 52.0% $131,421,224 48.0% $273,753,928 

524 
Insurance Carriers and 

Related Activities 
$140,341,011 57.1% $105,497,756 42.9% $245,838,767 

722 
Food Services and 

Drinking Places 
$126,034,041 97.4% $3,429,381 2.6% $129,463,422 

902 State Government $104,254,453 21.3% $384,584,106 78.7% $488,838,559 

541 
Professional, Scientific, 

and Technical Services 
$87,666,022 13.4% $565,792,693 86.6% $653,458,715 

561 
Administrative and 

Support Services 
$86,988,091 43.6% $112,338,377 56.4% $199,326,469 

Total (all 3 digit NAICS) $2,406,172,952 29.6% $5,729,133,993 70.4% $8,135,306,945 

Source: EMSI 

 

 

https://siccode.com/naics-code-lookup-directory


16 
 

Retail Service Economic Assessment 
 

A retail service economic assessment within a 10-minute, 20-minute, and 30-minute drive time 

(in normal traffic) was done.   

 

The purpose of the assessment is to give Goldsboro baseline information for a better 

understanding of its current market.  The retail leakage and surplus analysis (Gap Analysis) 

examines the quantitative aspects of the community’s retail opportunities.  

By reviewing the demand (retail potential) and supply (retail sales) we can:   

• Understand how well the retail needs of local residents are being met; 

• Uncover unmet demand and possible opportunities; 

• Understand the strengths and weaknesses of the local retail sector; and 

• Measure the difference between actual and potential retail sales 

 



17 
 

When consumers spend their dollars outside these specific trade areas of Goldsboro, this is 

known as “Retail Leakage,” referred to as Leakage throughout the report. Leakage indicates an 

unmet demand in the trade area.  This suggests the possibility the community can support 

additional retail for that business type.  Residents within the specified primary trade areas are 

purchasing products outside of the trade areas indicating opportunity to capture those dollars 

within the trade area with the most leakage. (Leakage is shown as a positive value in green 

when reviewing the raw data.) 

 

Retail Surplus means the community’s trade area is capturing the local market plus attracting 

non-local shoppers.  Surplus doesn’t necessarily imply that the community can’t support 

additional businesses, but rather the community has possibly developed strong clusters of retail, 

such eating and drinking establishments that have broad geographical appeal. (Surplus is shown 

as a negative value in red when reviewing the data.)  

 

To summarize, surplus (sales is greater than demand in the trade areas) is displayed in red, while 

leakage (demand is greater than sales) is displayed in green. 

   
Leakage / Surplus   

10 Min 20 Min 30 Min 
Automotive 

 
-$194,535,289 -$179,775,964 -$165,049,773 

Home Furnishings, Appliances, and Related -$44,219,146 -$3,651,533 $1,869,447 
Grocery and Liquor Stores 

 
-$98,260,079 -$60,657,247 -$43,549,989 

Health and Personal Care 
 

-$4,943,351 $11,324,366 $18,183,339 
Gasoline 

 
-$13,957,127 $20,633,108 $36,148,930 

Apparel and Related 
 

-$21,790,790 -$1,484,524 $14,163,153 
Sporting and Leisure 

 
-$7,653,139 $251,039 $3,823,962 

Music and Book Stores 
 

-$1,527,710 $1,112,757 $2,697,818 
General Merchandise Stores 

 
-$326,534,012 -$359,166,585 -$342,751,350 

Miscellaneous Goods 
 

$1,884,906 $49,088,527 $70,902,202 
Retail at Hospitality and Accommodations -$977,193 $2,598,782 $4,848,372 
Restaurants and Drinking Places -$68,190,576 -$22,848,020 -$5,979,758      

 
Total 

 

-$780,703,506 -$527,390,738 -$404,693,647 
Source:  Applied Geographic Solutions 

 

Dollar surplus ($) amounts coming into the trade areas are shown.  This means that customers 

are drawn in from outside the city trade area for the retail service categories shown. For 

example, “General Merchandise Stores” category is the largest positive draw to the Goldsboro 

trade areas within a 30-minute drive at approximately $343 million dollars’ surplus.  Goldsboro, 

according to the retail data, is a regional hub (people will drive at least 30 minutes to shop) for 

General Merchandise, Automotive, Grocery and Liquor Stores, and Restaurants and Drinking 

Places (for all categories combined, at a total of $404,693,647 dollars in retail sales greater than 

local demand). 

 

Conversely, there is Leakage within all three trade areas for “Miscellaneous Goods.”  By looking 

deeper at the subcategories, where those dollars are going can be seen. 

 



18 
 

Within 10 Minutes   
Demand Sales Gap # of Stores 

Miscellaneous Goods $34,125,673 $32,240,767 $1,884,906 89 
Florists $266,270 $292,607 -$26,337 5 
Office and Stationary Stores $765,644 $4,643,394 -$3,877,750 1 
Gift and Souvenir Stores $934,932 $486,590 $448,342 8 
Used Merchandise Stores $537,248 $1,734,291 -$1,197,043 13 
Pet and Pet Supply Stores $3,126,612 $3,706,635 -$580,023 3 
Art Dealers $254,923 $663,716 -$408,793 1 
Mobile Home Dealers $457,921 $5,089,635 -$4,631,714 3 
Other Miscellaneous Retail Stores $1,475,297 $2,849,156 -$1,373,859 40 
Mail Order and Catalog Stores $21,777,679 $3,950,835 $17,826,844 4 
Vending Machines $625,917 $0 $625,917 0 
Fuel Dealers $2,203,386 $8,062,274 -$5,858,888 3 
Other Direct Selling Establishments $1,699,844 $761,634 $938,210 8 

Source:  Applied Geographic Solutions 

 

As expected, “Mail Order and Catalog Stores” from outside the trade areas are taking dollars out 

of the community.  This is a good indicator of the effect that online retail sales are having on the 

local economy.  Of the $21,177,679 local demand for mail order and catalog stores, local sales are 

supplying $3,950,835, a percentage of 19%.  Within a 10-minute drive of Goldsboro, “Fuel 

Dealers” and “Mobile Home Dealers” are showing a surplus ($10,055,847) in this category.   

 

By looking at the different drive times, it appears Goldsboro is generating a surplus in all 

categories, except for Mail Order and Catalog Stores within a 10-minute drive.  Looking at the 

20-minute and 30-minute drive times, there are opportunities to draw more retail dollars to 

Goldsboro.  The categories of Health and Personal Care, Gasoline, Sporting and Leisure, Music 

and Book Stores, Miscellaneous Goods, and Retail at Hospitality and Accommodations show 

leakage at the 20-minute drive time.  In all categories except Automotive, Grocery and Liquor 

Stores, and General Merchandise Stores, there is significant leakage ($152,637,223) at the 30-

minute drive time. 

A quick internet search of each category and subcategory will explain what retail businesses are 

included.  For example, Grocery Stores (NAICS Code 445110) include: 

Establishments generally known as supermarkets and grocery stores primarily engaged in 

retailing a general line of food, such as canned and frozen foods; fresh fruits and 

vegetables; and fresh and prepared meats, fish, and poultry. Included in this industry are 

delicatessen-type establishments primarily engaged in retailing a general line of food. 

This subcategory does not include Convenience Stores and associated food sales, and there 

may be some overlap with Fish and Seafood Markets.  



19 
 

All Categories Within 10 Min, 20 Min, and 30 Min of Goldsboro   
Leakage / Surplus   

10 Min 20 Min 30 Min 
Automotive -$194,535,289 -$179,775,964 -$165,049,773 

New Car Dealers -$160,795,813 -$141,718,508 -$118,275,257 
User Car Dealers -$11,182,774 -$20,283,214 -$28,376,729 
Recreational Vehicle Dealers $273,920 $1,933,473 $3,050,538 
Motorcycle and Boat Dealers -$5,459,882 -$7,841,931 -$9,603,472 
Auto Parts and Accessories -$12,159,911 -$10,413,822 -$10,175,428 
Tire Dealers -$5,210,829 -$1,451,962 -$1,669,425   

   

Home Furnishings, Appliances, and Related -$44,219,146 -$3,651,533 $1,869,447 
Furniture Stores $482,037 $4,563,834 $1,964,856 
Floor Covering Stores $67,136 $1,563,626 $2,084,709 
Other Home Furnishing Stores $2,425,440 $6,419,562 $6,896,397 
Appliances and Electronics Stores $541,888 $9,917,792 $13,854,286 
Home Centers -$16,347,200 $236,903 $624,851 
Paint and Wallpaper Stores -$568,435 -$373,888 -$956,631 
Hardware Stores -$234,373 $777,685 -$712,672 
Other Building Materials Stores -$29,402,067 -$27,828,398 -$22,092,993 
Outdoor Power Equipment Stores $332,773 $444,300 $786,009 
Nursery and Garden Stores $531,505 $627,051 -$579,365   

   

Grocery and Liquor Stores -$98,260,079 -$60,657,247 -$43,549,989 
Grocery Stores -$92,909,668 -$56,954,547 -$30,348,842 
Convenience Stores -$4,939,321 -$9,172,606 -$10,566,625 
Meat Markets -$1,674,186 -$814,083 -$11,595,702 
Fish and Seafood Markets -$39,870 $322,179 $350,721 
Fruit and Vegetable Markets $262,424 $237,337 $614,317 
Other Specialty Food Markets $415,141 $1,205,070 $1,588,553 
Liquor Stores $625,401 $4,519,403 $6,407,589   

   

Health and Personal Care -$4,943,351 $11,324,366 $18,183,339 
Pharmacy and Drug Stores -$4,840,309 $7,592,278 $12,705,324 
Cosmetics and Beauty Stores $722,094 $1,881,066 $2,491,570 
Optical Goods Stores -$664,286 $658,621 $1,332,195 
Other Health and Personal Care Stores -$160,850 $1,192,401 $1,654,250   

   

Gasoline -$13,957,127 $20,633,108 $36,148,930 
Gasoline Stations -$13,957,127 $20,633,108 $36,148,930   

   

Apparel and Related -$21,790,790 -$1,484,524 $14,163,153 
Men's Clothing Stores -$793,705 $234,958 $685,708 
Women's Clothing Stores -$2,664,585 $670,106 $2,902,945 
Children’s and Infant's Clothing Stores -$4,012,323 -$2,062,328 -$868,604 
Family Clothing Stores -$9,963,424 -$3,388,774 $3,950,711 
Clothing Accessory Stores -$348,831 $355,878 $905,916 
Other Apparel Stores -$308,620 $1,088,839 $1,971,073 
Shoe Stores -$5,186,827 -$2,311,811 -$795,336 
Jewelry Stores $1,373,193 $3,628,830 $4,998,060 
Luggage Stores $114,332 $299,778 $412,680   

   

 -$7,653,139 $251,039 $3,823,962 



20 
 

  
Leakage / Surplus   

10 Min 20 Min 30 Min 
Sporting and Leisure 

Sporting Goods Stores -$3,861,080 $2,069,055 $4,269,761 
Hobby, Toy, and Game Stores -$2,761,291 -$1,324,646 -$280,061 
Sewing and Needlecraft Stores -$1,030,768 -$493,370 -$165,738   

   

Music and Book Stores -$1,527,710 $1,112,757 $2,697,818 
Musical Instrument Stores $5,264 $497,798 $809,729 
Book Stores -$1,522,446 $614,959 $1,888,089   

   

General Merchandise Stores -$326,534,012 -$359,166,585 -$342,751,350 
Department Stores -$49,188,506 -$67,248,032 -$68,221,378 
Warehouse Superstores -$255,291,309 -$194,508,787 -$166,488,373 
Other General Merchandise Stores -$22,054,197 -$97,409,766 -$108,041,599   

   

Miscellaneous Goods $1,884,906 $49,088,527 $70,902,202 
Florists $26,337 $198,788 $285,677 
Office and Stationary Stores -$3,877,750 -$2,627,046 -$2,432,893 
Gift and Souvenir Stores $448,342 $1,927,598 $2,826,931 
Used Merchandise Stores -$1,197,043 -$380,696 -$138,970 
Pet and Pet Supply Stores -$580,023 $4,460,330 $7,642,573 
Art Dealers -$408,793 $3,435 $257,367 
Mobile Home Dealers -$4,631,714 -$3,870,350 -$3,600,769 
Other Miscellaneous Retail Stores -$1,373,859 $60,158 $743,068 
Mail Order and Catalog Stores $17,826,844 $51,011,580 $72,898,704 
Vending Machines $625,917 $1,622,309 $2,243,242 
Fuel Dealers -$5,858,888 -$6,901,321 -$14,632,096 
Other Direct Selling Establishments $938,210 $3,583,742 $4,809,368   

   

Retail at Hospitality and Accommodations -$977,193 $2,598,782 $4,848,372 
Retail at Hotels and Other Travel Accommodations -$1,023,542 $2,545,737 $4,774,495 
Retail at RV Parks $27,239 $71,869 $75,289 
Retail at Rooming and Boarding Houses $19,110 -$18,824 -$1,412   

   

Restaurants and Drinking Places -$68,190,576 -$22,848,020 -$5,979,758 
Full-Service Restaurants -$19,066,670 $12,661,260 $30,225,016 
Limited-Service Restaurants -$40,307,357 -$32,953,116 -$35,343,257 
Special Food Services and Catering -$8,816,549 -$2,556,164 -$861,517      

 
Total -$780,703,506 -$527,390,738 

 
-$404,693,647 

Source:  Applied Geographic Solutions 

 
Disclaimer: This report was prepared by the NC Main Street & Rural Planning Center. Information contained in the report is primarily from Applied Geographic 
Solutions. Every effort is made to ensure that the information contained within is accurate, however, no warranty is made about the accuracy of this report by the 
NC Main Street & Rural Planning Center or its sources.  

 

 

  



21 
 

Section 3.  Assessment 
 
The following items provided the information for the Plan Assessment (page 6). This 

information was gathered from online surveys and at the work group meeting on April 25, 2022. 

• Community Assets 

• Economic Drivers 

• SWOT 

• Work Group and Stakeholder Surveys 

 

Community Assets 
Economic Assets Cultural Assets Natural/Recreational 

Transportation Historic Housing  Cliffs of the Neuse State Park 

I-795 Downtown Goldsboro   Parks 

Future I-42 Maxwell Center Herman Park 

Active Rail Bryan Sports Complex Stoney Creek Park/ Bike Path 

Sidewalks Goldsboro Event Center Golf Courses 

Bicycle Lanes Union Station Walnut Creek 

Restaurants Festivals Baseball Fields 

SJAFB Downtown Events Soccer Fields 

Downtown Goldsboro History of the City Walking Trail Behind Hospital 

Sports Complex Dillard Alumni Mountains-to-Sea Trail 

Low cost of housing Air Show Sports tournaments 

Agriculture Freedom Festival  

Parks Arts Community  

Greenways Public Art  

 Paramount  

 The Hub  

 The Firehouse  

 Progressive small-town 

atmosphere  

 

Institutional Community  Governmental Assets 

Wayne Community College All Civic Groups/Non-Profits Bryan Sports Complex 

Wayne Memorial Hospital Leadership Maxwell Center 

Wayne Country Day School SJAFB Fire & Police Department 

University of Mount Olive Caring People Paramount Theatre 

Wayne School of Engineering  United Way Union Station 

Elementary School Kitty Askins Goldsboro Event Center 

Religious Institutions (100+) Values and Quality of Life County TDA 

Wayne Co School of Tech Arts Chamber of Commerce Water Tower 

 YMCA SJAFB 

 Boys & Girls Club Wayne Executive Jetport 

  Library 

 



22 
 

Economic Drivers 
Economic Drivers 

SJAFB Wayne Community College 

Transportation Small Town Progressive Atmosphere 

Industries Case Farms 

Wayne Memorial Hospital/Healthcare Cost of Living 

Maxwell Center Mount Olive Pickle Company 

Downtown  

 

S.W.O.T. (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) 
Strengths Weaknesses 

Low cost of housing Lack of Work Force Housing 

People Lack of Subsidized Housing 

Key People Lack of County Public Transportation 

Proximity Lack of Trained Workforce 

Strong business climate Limited sewer capacity 

Downtown Local Perception – schools, hospital, nightlife, divisive 

Transportation Blighted Property 

Developable Property Businesses aren’t growing and expanding 

Historic Heritage Lack of leaders/volunteers 

Key Property or condition Infrastructure 

Wayne Community College Low government revenues 

Education Resources No industrial growth or reduction 

Industrial Growth Too reliant on "free" funding 

Global TransPark No Functional Passenger Train Station 

Historic Properties No/low residential growth 

Vacant Lots/Infill Lack of destination or anchor businesses 

Industrial Parks  

Opportunity Zones (5)  

Downtown Master Plan  

Neighborhood Plan  

Community Events  

Sweet Potatoes  

Value Added Food Products  

  

  

Opportunities Threats 

SJAFB Public School System – lack of funding 

Global TransPark Vidant 

Developable properties Progress of other cities 

Connectivity to environmental strengths Inflation  

Industrial and residential growth Middle class flight 

Future aircraft at SJAFB Perception 

Renewal/renovation of neighborhoods Aging aircraft at SJAFB 

Attract outside investment or resources 
 

Federal money 
 

 



23 
 

Work Group and Stakeholder Surveys 
Prior to the work group meeting on April 25, 2022, online surveys were distributed to the work 

group and Goldsboro stakeholders. The surveys allowed both groups to give their perspective 

and input about where Goldsboro is currently and how to improve the economic conditions for 

Goldsboro in the future. 8 work group members and 813 stakeholders completed the survey.  

 

The consensus from both surveys is that the people in the community, the lower cost of living, 

the location of the city in NC, downtown amenities, and the proximity to Seymour Johnson 

Airforce Base and Global TransPark are the biggest assets of Goldsboro. Some of the biggest 

obstacles mentioned are the substandard schools, crime, and lack of housing at all income levels. 

The respondents say that there is potential for significant economic growth in Goldsboro, both 

industrial and small businesses and it is important that Wayne Community College be involved 

in the community and train workers of all ages.  

 

The surveys show that they would like to see development surrounding downtown, 

improvement of community appearance, and additional/improved infrastructure that prepares 

for growth. They would like to see education and training for underserved populations, military 

spouses, and military retirees to be part of the local workforce. 

 

A full report of the survey is available upon request. 

 

 

  



24 
 

Section 4.  Recommended Plan Actions 
 
The Work Group members (p. 2) at the workshop on April 25, 2022 at DGDC reviewed and 

discussed the City: assets and economic drivers; strengths; weaknesses; opportunities; threats; 

and survey information, as shown in the preceding Section 3. Based on this information, the 

Work Group members were asked with further discussion and by agreement to craft an 

economic positioning statement and determine economic strategies with goals and objectives 

for the City to work on for the next two to five years following the Plan adoption. 

 

The three economic strategic goals categories selected to work on are: housing, business, 

culture, and education which are referenced in the economic positioning statement below. 

 

Economic Positioning Statement 

Goldsboro is eastern North Carolina’s center for innovation, national defense, affordable living, 

and cultural diversity.  In our community, dreams take flight while people and businesses grow. 

 

Housing 

 
Strategy:  Support diversified housing initiatives 

 

Goal:  Increase housing options and availability in the City 

 

Objectives: Increase infill housing, increase market rate housing, increase owner 

occupancy 

 

Actions: 

1.  Explore National Register of Historic Places districts in older neighborhoods to utilize 

state and federal tax credits for income-producing and non-income-producing properties 

 

2.  Implement neighborhood plan for residential areas surrounding downtown 

 

3.  Identify land available to build market rate housing 

 



25 
 

Business  

Strategy:  Support business development 

 

Goal: Retain, expand, and grow the local economy 

 

Objectives: Increase the number of businesses, increase number of available jobs, 

strengthen businesses, increase workforce development programs that support local 

industries 

 

Actions: 

1.  Support the Wayne Occupational Readiness Keys for Success (WORKS) initiative and 

customized training solutions 

 

2.  Better promote the LaunchGoldsboro.com website to assist local entrepreneurs by 

expanding access to business training and financial resources  

 

3.  Develop a comprehensive City Economic Development Plan, with 3, 5, and 10-year 

goals and objectives 

 

4.  Expand wastewater capacity to accommodate future industrial growth 

 

5.  Develop a prospectus for business recruitment and video to entice potential residents 

to Goldsboro 
 

Culture  
Strategy:  Celebrate the City’s cultural diversity and historic assets 

 

Goal:  Recognize and appreciate all cultures and history within the City 

 

Objectives: Increase cultural offerings and programs, increase support at the local level, 

preserve and enhance historic assets, increase the number of new visitors 

 

Actions: 

1.  Measure and assess current owner business diversity 

 

2.  Host an annual Multi-Cultural Business Fair 

 

3.  Revisit the Union Station study and work with interested developers to acquire land 

 

4.  Coordinate cultural diversity plans with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base 

 

5.  Promote the Tourism Assistance Program to attract new visitors from outside the 

local community and enhance the long-term growth of the travel industry in Goldsboro 

and Wayne County 



26 
 

Education 
Strategy:  Improve perception of local schools 

 

Goal:  Identify opportunities for the City to support the school system 

 

Objectives: Increase support of city schools, increase enrollment in Career and College 

Promise program 

 

Actions: 

1.  Develop a committee (comprised of City representatives, Seymour Johnson Air Force 

Base, Wayne County Commissioners, Wayne County Development Alliance, and Wayne 

Community College) to meet with County School Superintendent to learn ways the City 

can best support the city schools and their programs 

 

2.  Work with local sports tournaments and Goldsboro Parks and Recreation to use city 

school facilities and showcase the schools to potential residents 

 

3. Assist promotion of the Career and College Promise program to students and the 

community by sharing success stories of former program participants and providing 

transit via Goldsboro-Wayne Transit Authority 



27 
 

Section 5.  Plan Review, Adoption, and Monitoring 

 
The following are recommended steps to review, adopt, and monitor this one-to-two-year plan. 

 
✓ Work Group makes any changes, recommends approval of the Plan, and forwards it to the 

City Council. 

 

✓ Goldsboro City Council reviews, makes any changes and adopts the Plan. 

 

✓ Goldsboro City Council implements the Plan actions (Section 4) and or appoints a 

Work Group to do this. 

 

✓ Recommend every six months after Plan adoption that the City Council has a 

progress update from the Mayor. The progress update would address the actions 

items in Section 4 of the Plan.  

 

✓ After Plan adoption, the NC Main Street and Rural Planning staff shall meet annually with 

the Mayor to review progress. The MS&RPC staff are also ready and willing to meet more 

frequently, should they desire additional assistance. 

 

✓ If actions in Section 4 need revisions or adjustments, the Plan should be amended by 

the City Council. These amendments should also be adopted by the City Council. 

 

✓ A suggestion is that the easiest action items in Section 4 should be addressed and 

accomplished first. The more difficult action items and parts of them will take more 

persistence and time.   

 

 

  



28 
 

Appendix A 

Plan Implementation 
 

Housing 
 

Strategy:  Improve perception of local schools 

Goal:  Identify opportunities for the City to support the school system 

Objectives: Increase support of city schools, increase enrollment in Career and College Promise program 
Action 

 

Name of Person 

Responsible 

In-House-

Outsource 

Cost / Time Partners / Assistance Date To Be 

completed 

1.  Explore National Register of Historic Places 
districts in older neighborhoods to utilize state and 
federal tax credits for income-producing and non-
income-producing properties 

     

2.  Implement neighborhood plan for residential 
areas surrounding downtown 

     

3.  Identify land available to build market rate 
housing 

     

 

  



29 
 

 

 

Business 
 

Strategy:  Support business development 

Goal: Retain, expand, and grow the local economy 

Objectives: Increase the number of businesses, increase number of available jobs, strengthen businesses, increase workforce development 

programs that support local industries 
Action 

 

Name of Person 

Responsible 

In-House-

Outsource 

Cost / Time Partners / Assistance Date To Be 

completed 

1.  Support the Wayne Occupational Readiness Keys 
for Success (WORKS) initiative and customized 
training solutions 

     

2.  Better promote the LaunchGoldsboro.com 
website to assist local entrepreneurs by expanding 
access to business training and financial resources 

     

3.  Develop a comprehensive City Economic 
Development Plan, with 3, 5, and 10-year goals and 
objectives 

     

4.  Expand wastewater capacity to accommodate 
future industrial growth 

     

5.  Develop a prospectus for business recruitment 
and video to entice potential residents to Goldsboro 

     

  



30 
 

Culture 
 

Strategy:  Celebrate the City’s cultural diversity and historic assets 

Goal:  Recognize and appreciate all cultures and history within the City 

Objectives: Increase cultural offerings and programs, increase support at the local level, preserve and enhance historic assets, increase the 

number of new visitors 
Action Name of Person 

Responsible 

In-House-

Outsource 

Cost / Time Partners / Assistance Date To Be 

completed 

1.  Measure and assess current owner business 
diversity 

     

2.  Host an annual Multi-Cultural Business Fair      
3.  Revisit the Union Station study and work with 
interested developers to acquire land 

     

4.  Coordinate cultural diversity plans with Seymour 
Johnson Air Force Base 

     

5.  Promote the Tourism Assistance Program to 
attract new visitors from outside the local 
community and enhance the long-term growth of 
the travel industry in Goldsboro and Wayne County 

     

 

  



31 
 

 

Education 
 

Strategy:  Improve perception of local schools 

Goal:  Identify opportunities for the City to support the school system 

Objectives: Increase support of city schools, increase enrollment in Career and College Promise program 
Action 

 

Name of Person 

Responsible 

In-House-

Outsource 

Cost / Time Partners / Assistance Date To Be 

completed 

1.  Develop a committee (comprised of City 
representatives, Seymour Johnson Air Force Base, 
Wayne County Commissioners, Wayne County 
Development Alliance, and Wayne Community 
College) to meet with County School Superintendent 
to learn ways the City can best support the city 
schools and their programs 

     

2.  Work with local sports tournaments and 
Goldsboro Parks and Recreation to use city school 
facilities and showcase the schools to potential 
residents 

     

3. Assist promotion of the Career and College 
Promise program to students and the community by 
sharing success stories of former program 
participants and providing transit via Goldsboro-
Wayne Transit Authority 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NC Department of Commerce, NC Rural Planning Program  



U



V



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 103

RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS

TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City government; and

WHEREAS, several members on the City' s Advisory Boards and Commissions have moved, 
resigned, or been requested to be replaced; and

WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizens have expressed a desire to serve upon the indicated
Board or Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the specified Boards and Commissions. 
The terms of the appointees shall expire on the dates indicated: 

Commission on Community Relations and Development

Filling Unexpired Term
Jamar Branch Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

John Twitty
David G. Elliott

Eric Ostendorf

Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

Term Expires 12- 31- 2024

Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

Mayor' s Committee for Persons with Disabilities

Filling Unexpired Term
Althea K. Brooks Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

Kiara Manley Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
7th

day of October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

C a—, 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gayl r, IV

Mayor



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - I oy' 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON ADVISORY

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

WHEREAS, citizen participation is vital to responsible government; and

WHEREAS, the following individuals have served the local citizenry by their service upon the
advisory Boards and Commissions of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to commend these civic -minded citizens for their
voluntary contributions to the City of Goldsboro. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individuals are recognized for their service on the City' s advisory Boards and
Commissions and are commended for their contributions to the operation of Goldsboro' s

municipal government: 

Commission on Community Relations and Development
Chretien Dumond

Terri Bradley
Tondalayo Clark

Jeremy Whitley

Mayor' s Committee for Persons with Disabilities

David Simmons

Joel Bledsoe

2. Certificates of Appreciation signed by the Mayor, City Manager, and Chairperson will be sent to
the individuals by the liaison of the various Boards and Commissions. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 7'' day of October, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylo , 

Mayor



W



Catherine Gwynn
Typewritten Text
9/28/24



4.
1

o

14

w' 

U

zi

O

U' 

3

C'

s

OwO

b

A

n

cz

N

in

N

cd

N

cz

O

O

oN

atiCA

b  , 

soj  

y

o •° 

E" 

t4. 

z 

Ct

U

co

cl

4. 

V . 

0cd

o

00

co

o'

ov

rx

A

o

o

0

0

0

3

cg. 

d

ani

O

cdcrs

o >, 

Cd  

2

V

00

O 

O

U '-

C

0Cd
0

0

ry

O

o

y= 

0

co

cd

w

a 

U

o- 

o

o ` 

p

cfl

yr  

O " «

i ''~  

O

O

cd

cz ^

C

W 

It

WW 

QQ

i

d

0

o . 

d

u

cqj

N

a

a

w

pb
F„

w

o 

ago 

CO

W

N

W

b

W

ecd

co

d

W •  

W  

i

O

N

p

Oco
b ' - 

O

O

O

O

o 

o

C6

e

A  

O

a, zWWzwOl

a Uo0

U

ocd

U

cd

0y'

U

d   

d  

LO

00c 
c+ 

II

O

O

O

O

M

O

O

O

G& 

4

y (

2) 

a

o

y

y

w

00

A4C: 

0

U

a) 

L6c NLO

OO

00LOLO
L— 

m2) 
Hs aa W0F

4

ti  

LO

00 

C09

M

O

co

c6

d

c

OLO

6s

CO

M

O —

4 .

4

G& 

4

y (

2) 

a

o

y

y

w

00

A4C: 

0

U

a) 

L6
c 

NLO

OO

00LOLO
L— 

m
2) H

s 
aa W0F

LO

6s

CO

M

O —

4 .

4

616D

C6

4

CYJ

LO

G& 

4

y (

2) 

a

o

y

y

w

00

A4C: 

0

U

a) 

L6c NLO

OO

00LOLO
L— 

m2) Hs aa W0F



A

0

0

uo

o

ooc

o

r- 

C

00
Lo

0

00010

co

0

c 

co

o  

coo

0

oc

Lo

L- 

Lo

Lo

O '

tI0
00

00

00N

C) 

co

o

N

N

o00m(

Lo

cYJ

cG

O

c0

m

co

Lo

o

N

1114

o0

C

o

co

0

0

Lo

00

N

o

N

N

cU

W

Lo

000

a

U

0

0

00

0

0

0

d

47

co

c+

6

N

fNW) 

O

O

w

aUi

41

w

a

w

a

a> 

m

d

A

ct

A

0

0

uo

o

ooc

o

r- 

C00
Lo

000010

co

0

c 

co

o  

coo

0

oc

Lo

L- 

Lo

Lo

O '

tI000

00

00N

C) 

co

o

N

N

o00m(
Lo

cYJ

cG

O

c0

m

co

Lo

o

N

1114

o0

C

o

co

0

0

Lo

00

N

o

of0C6Lo

N

NcU

W

Lo

000

a

U

00

0

0

L

cf

O

d

co

c+

6

N

of
0C6Lo

w
Ocn

4-, 

0

NN

N

cU

W

a

U

fNW) 

aUi

41

w

a

w

a

a> 

m

d

ct

HGo

ao

y

7. 

o

o

o

p

I^ 

4

Lo

s, 

G2. 

4% 

c 

Z

ai

C

z

b-

0

4 

v

W41
fYi

w

F

F

F

C

E- 

wOcn

4-, 

0

NN

NcU

W

a

U


	Agenda 10-7-24
	w.s. item a - Code of Ethics
	ws item b - Goldsboro MS&RP Overview + Vision Forum
	Slide Number 1
	Who are we?
	City of Goldsboro Community Economic Development Assessment & Plan: May 2022
	Where does the City fit into the economy? What role or gaps is the city taking on?
	What is a Vision Statement?
	What is a Vision Forum & Who Participates? 
	What are the Outcomes and Impacts of a Vision?
	CONTACT:

	ws item c - 2024-09-27_GoldsboroCityCouncil_MTP
	Council Work Session
	MTP Agenda
	Project Background
	What is an MTP?
	Planning Process
	2050 MTP Goals
	Engagement Recap
	Purpose
	Outreach Events
	Engagement Phases
	Engagement Phases
	Engagement Phases
	Recommendations
	Recommendations Development
	Recommendation Types
	Recommendation Types
	Recommendations
	Public Comment So Far
	Prioritization
	STI/SPOT
	STI/SPOT
	SPOT 7.0 Weighting
	Prioritization Results
	Slide Number 24
	Financial Constraint 
	Financially Constrained Plan
	Financial Forecast – How? 
	Roadway Capital Revenues
	Project Funding Horizon 
	Bicycle and Pedestrian Capital Revenues
	Transit Revenues
	Aviation Capital Revenue
	Rail Capital Revenue
	Next Steps
	Next Steps

	ws item d - GoldsboroBikePedGwy_Council_10.7.24
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20

	Item A - Minutes 9-16-24
	Item A2 - exhibits
	Item C - Domestic Violence Awareness 2024
	Item D - Industry Appreciation month 2024
	Item E - Breast Cancer Awareness Month 2024
	Item F - Halloween 2024
	Item G - Ch 90 Update
	Junk Car Ordinance memo to City Council-revised HJ
	Chapter 90 ordiance amendment- HJ
	§ 90.03 UNLAWFUL; REMOVAL AUTHORIZED.
	§ 90.04 NUISANCE VEHICLE REMOVAL AUTHORIZED.
	§ 90.06 NOTICE REQUIREMENT EXCEPTIONS.
	§ 90.08 RIGHT TO PROBABLE CAUSE HEARING.
	§ 90.09 REDEMPTION OF VEHICLE DURING PROCEEDINGS.
	§ 90.10 SALE AND DISPOSITION OF UNCLAIMED VEHICLES.
	§ 90.11 REMOVAL OF VEHICLE FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY.
	§ 90.12 PROTECTION AGAINST CRIMINAL OR CIVIL LIABILITY.
	§ 90.13 EXCEPTIONS.
	§ 90.14 REMOVAL OF IMPOUNDED VEHICLE.
	§ 90.15—90.19 RESERVED.


	Item H - SU-16-24
	Item I - JAG
	Item I2 - 2024 JAG - Certification and Assurance  9-26-24
	Item J -  Neuse Intake
	Item K - PFAS
	Item L - Agenda 2024-10-07 Fleet & Fuel Policy Amend_0
	Agenda Memo Fleet & Fuel Policy 10-07-24_0
	Fleet and Fuel Policy (Rev 2024-10-07_0)
	Resolution Fleet & Fuel Policy_0

	Item M - Agenda 2024-10-07 Procurement Policy App A Amend_0
	Agenda Memo-Procurement Policy Appendix A Update_10-7-24_1
	RESOLUTION-Procurement Policy Appendix A Update_10-7-2024_1
	Policy - Procurement Procedures with Federal Funds 10-07-24_0
	Federal Acquisition Regulation Case No 2018-004

	Item N - Agenda 2024-10-07 G1109 State Appropr Amendmt Parks & Rec
	Agenda G1109 State Approp Grant 10-07-24_0
	ORDIN G1109 State Approp Grant 10-07-24_0

	Item O - Agenda 2024-10-07 T2201 Ordin Amend Musgrave Manor_0
	Agenda T2201 Stormwater Cap Proj Amend 2024-10-07_0
	ORDIN T2201 Stormwater CPF 2024-10-07_0
	MEMO - Musgrave Manor Stormwater Project Cost (9-16-24)

	Item P - Agenda 2024-10-07 W1115 PFAS Study and Treatment CP Ordinance_0
	Agenda Memo W1115 PFAS Grant 2024-10-07_0
	ORDIN W1115 PFAS 2024-10-07_0
	LOI PFAS Study NCDEQ

	Item Q - Agenda 2024-10-07 6110 Utility Capital Reserve Amend_0
	Agenda Memo 6110 Utility Capital Reserve 10-07-24
	ORDIN 6110 CRF Amend 10-07-24_0

	Item R - NCDOT - Speed Limit on Ash St btw Meadow Lane and Greenwood School
	Item S - WC Chamber Agreement
	Item S- Chamber of Commerce Agreement Memo and Resolution
	Item S-2  Wayne County Chamber of Commerce Agreement 2024
	SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT


	Item T1 - Dept of Commerce MOU
	Item T2 - Goldsboro CEDAP Draft 6.1.22
	Item U - Veterans Parade
	Item V - B&C
	Item W - Agenda 2024-10-07 FY25 Operating Amendment_0
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2024-10-07_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2024-10-07_0




